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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of
directors (the “Directors”) of Hang Sang (Siu
Po) International Holding Company Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”), | am pleased to present the annual
report for the year ended 30 June 2019. In return for
our shareholders’ support to the Group, the Board
recommended a final dividend of HK5.00 cents per
ordinary share.

The principal activities of the Group are
manufacturing and sale of apparel labels and
packaging printing products.

For the year ended 30 June 2019, the Group
recorded revenue of approximately HK$82.2
million, representing a decrease of approximately
23.1% as compared with that of the year ended 30
June 2018. Gross profit margin was approximately
35.0% for the year ended 30 June 2019 which
was approximately 6.4 percentage point lower
than that for the year ended 30 June 2018. Profit
and total comprehensive income decreased by
approximately HK$11.0 million to approximately
HK$1.7 million for the year ended 30 June 2019 as
compared with last year.

The global geopolitical and economic instability
around the world and the challenge of US-
Mainland trade and technology tensions will
also impact on global trade flows. The increasing
concerns of environmental protection around
the world due to global warming, which has led
to a growing demand for paper reduction. The
shortage of skilled labour and the soaring Hong
Kong’s property rentals are the major impacts to
the production costs. The decrease in orders and
escalating production costs will continually bring
a huge challenges to the printing market and the
Group.
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Nevertheless, the Group will continue to making
efforts to strengthen our existing printing business
and also actively consider business diversification,
seek for other business opportunities or partners
that are beneficial to the Group, and continue
to do its utmost to maximise the interests of the
Group and its shareholders.

On behalf of the Group, | would like to express our
sincere gratitude to our shareholders, business
partners and all colleagues for their persistent
support.

Fung Man Wai Samson
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director
Hong Kong, 20 September 2019
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THEF WK S

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year, the business and operations of
the Group were mainly on manufacturing and sale
of apparel labels and packaging printing products
to customers which comprised mainly garment
manufacturers and garment related accessories
trading companies. Most of the sales of the
Group’s products was ultimately used as labels on
or packaging materials for finished garments of the
garment brand companies.

Frequent global trade disputes and mounting
trade protectionism posed more uncertainties and
risks to the economic development across the
globe for the year. The Group recorded revenue
of approximately HK$82.2 million for the year
ended 30 June 2019, representing a decrease of
approximately 23.1% as compared with that for
the year ended 30 June 2018. Gross profit margin
was approximately 35.0% for the year ended 30
June 2019 which was approximately 6.4 percentage
point lower than that for the year ended 30 June
2018. Profit for the year ended 30 June 2019 was
approximately HK$1.7 million.

OUTLOOK

Looking for the immediate future, the global
geopolitical and economic instability around the
world and the challenge of US-Mainland trade
and technology tensions will impacts on global
trade flows. With all the unfavourable factors and
more prudent and conservative business strategies
adopted by the clients, the global economy is
expected to experience a slowdown. Nevertheless,
the Group will continue to enhance its sales
effort, the quality of its production and its internal
controls, and will strive to implement stringent
cost controls to cope with the challenging global
market conditions.

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In order to diversify the Group’s business
foundation and maximise the interests of the
Group and the shareholders, the Group will
continue to explore for suitable and appropriate
business opportunities.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

Our Group generated revenue mainly from the
sale of apparel labels and packaging printing
products. It decreased by approximately HK$24.7
million or 23.1% from approximately HK$106.9
million for the year ended 30 June 2018 to
approximately HK$82.2 million for the year ended
30 June 2019. Such decrease was primarily due
to customers place orders cautiously due to
uncertainties of global economies.

Cost of sales and gross profit

Cost of sales over the total revenue of the Group
for the year ended 30 June 2019 was approximately
65.0%. While comparing with 2018 of 58.6%, there
was increase of approximately 6.4 percentage
point. Such increase was mainly caused by
increase of rental expenses of the factory premises
and warehouse and depreciation expenses of plant
and machinery.

As a result, the gross profit margins for the year
ended 30 June 2019 decreased by approximately
6.4 percentage point to approximately 35.0% (2018:
41.4%). And the gross profit for the year ended
30 June 2019 decreased to approximately HK$28.7
million (2018: HK$44.2 million).

Other income

Other income primarily comprises commission
income, net exchange gain and interest income.
Decrease in other income was mainly caused by
decrease in commission income.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THEF WK S

Selling expenses

Selling expenses primarily consist of freight
charges, transportation and marketing service
fees. Selling expenses decreased by approximately
HK$1.5 million to HK$6.6 million for the year ended
30 June 2019. Such decrease was mainly caused by
decrease of marketing expenses paid for sales and
marketing purpose.

Administrative and other operating expenses

Administrative and other operating expenses
primarily comprise salaries, office rental, utilities,

professional fee, depreciation and other
miscellaneous administrative expenses. There was
decrease in administrative and other operating
expenses by approximately HK$0.6 million to
HK$22.3 million for the year ended 30 June 2019.
The decrease in administrative and other operating
expenses was primarily due to less professional fee
and staff costs incurred during the period in 2019.

Profit and total comprehensive income

Profit and total comprehensive income decreased
by approximately HK$11.0 million to approximately
HK$1.7 million for the year ended 30 June 2019
as compared with last year. The decreases in net
profit was primarily due to decrease of revenue
and gross profit.

Liquidity and Financial Information

As at 30 June 2019, the total amount of cash and
cash equivalents of the Group was approximately
HK$69.1 million, representing an increase of
approximately HK$0.5 million as compared
with that as at 30 June 2018. Such increase was
mainly caused by financial resources remained
under stringent control with prudently and
precisely managed. There was no bank and other
borrowings as at 30 June 2018 and 2019.

As at 30 June 2019, the current ratio (current
assets/current liabilities) was 10.38 times (2018:
10.68 times) and the quick ratio ((current assets
— inventories)/current liabilities) was 9.94 times
(2018: 10.19 times).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Treasury policies

The Group has adopted a prudent financial
management approach towards its treasury
policies and thus maintained a healthy liquidity
position throughout the year. The Board closely
monitors the Group’s liquidity position to ensure
that the liquidity structure of the Group’s assets,
liabilities and other commitments can meet its
funding requirements from time to time.

Capital structure

The capital of the Company comprises ordinary
shares and reserves. The shares of the Company
were first listed on the Stock Exchange on 18 May
2016. There has been no change in the capital
structure of the Company since that date.

Share option

A share option scheme was adopted on 26 April
2016, there was no share options granted during
the year ended 30 June 2019. And there was no
outstanding share options granted as at 30 June
2019.

Commitments

The contractual commitments of the Group were
primarily related to the leases of its office premises
and warehouses, and the purchase of office
equipment and plant and machinery. Relevant
commitments was shown under note 22 of this
annual report.

Pledge of assets

As at 30 June 2019, the Group had not pledged any
assets (2018: HKS$Nil).

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THEF WK S

Exposure to foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly carries out of its transactions
in United States dollars (“USD”) and Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”) and mainly of its bank balances,
trade and other receivables and trade and other
payables are denominated in USD and HKS. As
HKS$ is pegged to USD, the management does not
expect any significant movements in the USD/
HK$ exchange rate and considers the Group is not
exposed to significant currency risk.

The Group does not hedge its foreign currency
risks with USD as the rate of exchange between
HK$ and USD is controlled within a tight range.
Permanent changes in foreign exchange rates
would have an impact on consolidated financial
statements. The Management will closely
monitor the changes of the rate of exchange and
government policies from time to time.

Material contingent liabilities

The Group is not aware of any material contingent
liabilities as at 30 June 2019.

USE OF PROCEEDS AND CHANGE IN USE OF
PROCEEDS

The Company’s shares have been listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange since 18 May
2016.The receipts of proceeds, net of listing
expenses (including underwriting fee), including
both recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income and deducted from the share premium
from the Company’s listing were approximately
HK$36,100,000 (the “Net Proceeds”). In respect of
the proposed applications set out in the section
headed “Net Proceeds from the Share Offer” of
the announcement of offer price and allotment
results dated 17 May 2016 (the “Allotment
Results”), the Company has changed the use of the
unutilised Net Proceeds, the details of the utilised
Net Proceeds up to 30 June 2019 and the proposed
change of use of proceeds are summarised in
Directors’ Report of this Annual Report.

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EMPLOYEES AND EMOLUMENT POLICIES

As at 30 June 2019, the Group had 85 full time
management, administrative and operation staff in
Hong Kong (as at 30 June 2018: 95).

The Group provides competitive remuneration
packages with discretionary bonus to employees.
The Group regularly reviews its remuneration
packages in light of the overall development
of the Group as well as the market conditions.
In addition, the Group has adopted a share
option scheme for eligible employees (including
directors) to provide incentives to those with
outstanding performance and contribution to the
Group.

DIVIDEND

The Board proposed a dividend in respect of
the year ended 30 June 2019 of HK5.00 cents
per ordinary share (2018: HK5.00 cents per
ordinary share), amounting to HK$9,200,000 (2018:
HK$9,200,000), and to be recommended to the
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. This dividend has not been recognised as
a liability at the end of the reporting period.

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited
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Biographical Details of the Directors and Senior Executive

EFRERITHRARBNEEFR

Biographical details of the Directors and senior
executive are set out as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Fung Man Wai Samson (“Mr Samson Fung”),
aged 59, is one of our controlling shareholders,
and our chairman, chief executive officer and
executive Director. Mr Samson Fung joined the
Group on 20 December 1997 and is a co-founder of
our Group. Mr Samson Fung is a director of each of
subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr Samson Fung was appointed as our Director on
8 October 2015 and designated as our chairman,
chief executive officer and executive Director
on 1 December 2015. Mr Samson Fung has had
approximately 21 years of experience in the
printing industry when he assisted his family’s
printing business before joining our Group, and
has had more than 18 years of experience in the
apparel label and packaging printing industry.
In December 1997, Mr Samson Fung and Mr
Fung Man Kam (“Mr David Fung”) acquired A W
Printing & Packaging Limited (“A W Printing”)
which specialised in the trading of apparel labels
and packaging printing products. Subsequently
in November 1999, Mr Samson Fung and Mr
David Fung established Hang Sang (Siu Po) Press
Company Limited (“Hang Sang (Siu Po)”) which
focused on the manufacturing and sale of apparel
labels and packaging printing products. Mr
Samson Fung is a director of Hang Sang (Siu Po)
Holding Limited (“Hang Sang (Siu Po) Holding”), A
W Printing and Hang Sang (Siu Po). He is the father
of Mr Fung Kar Chue Alexander (“Mr Alex Fung”)
and the elder brother of Mr David Fung.

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited

RN AAATBON B RS ST

PATHE

WSO A (N30 1) > 5958 » RIEBUBRERZ
—RERTEN - TRAERKKRATES o RS
RIS+ ZH A HMAAREE > ByAsE
Ay G ) R N 2 — o U SO S A T A AR T 4%
NFEZHES -

WA R R -HETANIERERERK
MoF—RE+ A HERERERFTEN 17
AR B AT HE T o I SO AR S A I I A A SR [ i B
B 3T BEIE G TR BRI 6785 T BRI AT 36 O v B A4 21
AR AR > S IR e A A % A 2 B R AT 3 i A R
WA o R — LB T » WoCESE
Te 53 Se A (TG 38 S 4 1) Wl A W Printing &
Packaging Limited ([A W Printing]l) (33 24¢
o5 I 2R B B % R o B W R SR ) o BEAR R
—JUIUIUEE+— A o ISR S A B U SCER SE A aar
A (JRR) BB AT B2 ) ([ A (JEPR) 1) > 2
0 T 5B JIi 2 R e B 2 B R E i o U5 SCfRESE AR
% Hang Sang (Siu Po) Holding Limited ([Hang
Sang (Siu Po) Holding]) ~ AW Printing & 1.4 (J&
1%;@3@%% o A Hy U5 AL 58 A Y AL B U5 SC R S 2k
oL o

Annual Report 2019 4E#t



p

Biographical Details of the Directors and Senior Executive

Mr Fung Man Kam (“Mr David Fung”), aged 52,
is one of our controlling shareholders, and our
senior vice president and executive Director. Mr
David Fung joined the Group on 20 December 1997
and is a co-founder of our Group. Mr David Fung is
a director of each of subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr David Fung was appointed as our Director on
8 October 2015 and designated as our senior vice-
president and executive Director on 1 December
2015. He graduated from York University, Toronto,
Canada with a bachelor of arts in mathematics for
commerce in November 1990. Mr David Fung has
had approximately 2 years of experience in the
printing industry when he assisted his family’s
printing business before joining our Group, and
has had more than 18 years of experience in the
apparel label and packaging printing industry. In
December 1997, Mr David Fung and Mr Samson
Fung acquired A W Printing which specialised
in the trading of apparel labels and packaging
printing products. Subsequently, in November
1999, Mr David Fung and Mr Samson Fung
established Hang Sang (Siu Po) which focused
on the manufacturing and sale of apparel labels
and packaging printing products. Mr David Fung
is a director of Hang Sang (Siu Po) Holding, A W
Printing and Hang Sang (Siu Po). Mr David Fung is
the younger brother of Mr Samson Fung and an
uncle of Mr Alex Fung.

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited
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Mr Fung Kar Chue Alexander (“Mr Alex Fung”),
aged 33, is our vice president and executive
Director. Mr Alex Fung joined the Group on 24
August 2015. Mr Alex Fung is a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr Alex Fung was appointed as our Director on 8
October 2015 and designated as our vice president
and executive Director on 1 December 2015. Mr
Alex Fung obtained a master’s degree in business,
entrepreneurship and technology at the University
of Waterloo, Ontario, Canada in October 2010. He
worked at The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited between February 2012 and
February 2014, with his last position being an
associate portfolio manager. He was confirmed
employment by J.P. Morgan Chase Bank, N.A.
under private banking analyst program in February
2014. His employment with J.P. Morgan Chase
Bank, N.A. was between March 2014 and August
2015 before joining our Company. Mr Alex Fung is
a director of Hang Sang (Siu Po) Holding. Mr Alex
Fung is the son of Mr Samson Fung and a nephew
of Mr David Fung.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr Loke Yu alias Loke Hoi Lam (“Dr Loke”), aged
70, was appointed as our independent non-
executive Director (“INED”) and the chairman of
our Audit Committee and member of each of the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee on 26 April 2016.

Dr. Loke has over 40 years of working experience
in accounting and auditing for private and public
companies, financial consultancy and corporate
management. He holds a Master of Business
Administration degree from Universiti Teknologi
Malaysia and a Doctor of Business Administration
degree from University of South Australia. He is a
Fellow of The Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales; Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries. He is also a
member of The Hong Kong Independent Non-
executive Director Association.

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited
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In addition to his directorship in the Company,
Dr. Loke also serves as an independent non-
executive director of the following companies
whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange:
Chiho Environmental Group Limited (stock code:
976), CIMC-TianDa Holdings Company Limited
(stock code: 445), Forebase International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 2310), Hong Kong Resources
Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 2882),
Lamtex Holdings Limited (stock code: 1041), Matrix
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1005), TC Orient
Lighting Holdings Limited (stock code: 515), Tianhe
Chemicals Group Limited (stock code: 1619),
Tianjin Development Holdings Limited (stock
code: 882), TradeGo Fintech Limited (stock code:
8017), V1 Group Limited(stock code: 82), Zhenro
Properties Group Limited (stock code: 6158)and
Zhong An Real Estate Limited (stock code: 672).

Ms Fung Po Yee (“Ms Fung”), aged 43, was
appointed as our INED and the chairman of our
Nomination Committee. She is also a member of
each of our Remuneration Committee and Audit
Committee on 26 April 2016.

Ms Fung obtained her bachelor of laws degree in
December 1998 and was awarded the Postgraduate
Certificate in Laws in September 1999 at The
University of Hong Kong. She was also awarded
the Postgraduate Diploma in International
Commercial Law at The University of Nottingham
of the United Kingdom in December 2003. Ms Fung
was admitted as a solicitor in September 2002.

Ms Fung worked at Woo, Kwan, Lee & Lo between
September 2002 and June 2007, with her last
position being an assistant solicitor. She then
joined Reed Smith Richards Butler (formerly
known as Richards Butler) as an assistant solicitor
between July 2007 and August 2009, and between
April 2011 and December 2012. She joined BOC
Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 2388),
the issued shares of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange, as an assistant company secretary
between August 2009 and March 2011. In January
2013, Ms Fung co-founded CFN Lawyers, a law firm
in association with Broad & Bright, and is currently
a partner of the firm.

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited
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Ms Sung Ting Yee (“Ms Sung”), aged 45, was
appointed as our INED and the chairman of our
Remuneration Committee. She is also a member
of each of our Nomination Committee and Audit
Committee on 26 April 2016.

Ms Sung obtained a bachelor’s degree in
accountancy at the Birmingham City University
(formerly known as University of Central England
in Birmingham), United Kingdom and a master’s
degree in business administration at the University
of Birmingham, United Kingdom. She is a certified
public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants.

She has more than 21 years of experience in
accounting, finance, internal and external auditing.

In April 2008, Ms Sung joined Capital Finance
Holdings Limited (stock code: 8239) (formerly
known as Ming Kei Energy Holdings Limited and
Ming Kei Holdings Limited), the issued shares
of which are listed on the Stock Exchange, as an
internal audit manager, and was appointed as
the chief investment officer in March 2010 and
also as the chief financial officer in September
2010. In May 2012, Ms Sung resigned as the chief
investment officer but remained as the chief
financial officer, and was re-designated from
her position as the chief financial officer to the
position of the group financial controller in
August 2012. She was re-designated as the chief
financial officer from July 2013 to September 2015,
and the company secretary from October 2014
to January 2015, respectively. Ms Sung has been
re-designated to the chief investment officer of
Capital Finance Holdings Limited since July 2013
and resigned from this position with effect from
September 2016.

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited
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Besides, Ms Sung was appointed as an executive
director of Newtree Group Holdings Limited
(stock code: 1323), the issued shares of which are
listed on the Stock Exchange, in April 2012. In May
2012, she was appointed as a financial controller
and was designated as the group finance director
in November 2012 but resigned as the group
finance director in January 2013. She was then
appointed as the joint vice-chairman and the chief
executive officer in July 2014. She retired as an
executive director and ceased to be a joint vice-
chairman in August 2015 and the chief executive
officer on 31 March 2016.

In addition, Ms Sung was appointed as the
chairman, an executive director and the finance
director of China Ocean Fishing Holdings Limited
(stock code: 8047) (formerly known as Sky Forever
Supply Chain Management Group Limited, Rising
Power Group Holdings Limited and China Neng
Xiao Technology (Group) Limited), the issued
shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange,
in May 2013. She resigned as the chairman in
September 2013 but remained as an executive
director and the finance director. Ms Sung
resigned as an executive director and the finance
director on 10 January 2014 and 17 January 2014
respectively.

Ms Sung is currently the Responsible Officer
of AccFin Corporate Finance Limited, which is
principally engaged in advising on corporate
finance (with SFC Type 6 license) and a certified
public accountant (practicing) of her wholly-
owned audit firm.

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited
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SENIOR EXECUTIVE

Mr Li Kit Chung (“Mr Li”), aged 37, is the chief
financial officer and the company secretary (the
“Company Secretary”) of the Group. Mr Li joined
the Group in August 2015.

Mr Li is a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators. Mr Li has more than 13 years of
experience in accounting, auditing and corporate
finance. Prior to joining the Group, he worked
in a managerial grade position in the assurance
department of an international accounting firm
and chief financial officer of listed company in
Hong Kong. He was awarded a bachelor’s degree
of commerce (honours) in accountings at the
Hong Kong Shue Yan University in 2006 and a
master degree of corporate governance at the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2017. Mr
Li oversees the overall financial, budget control,
internal control, company secretarial matters and
corporate finance affairs of the Group.

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited
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The Company is committed to maintaining good
standard and procedures of corporate governance
to ensure the integrity, transparency and quality
of disclosure in order to enhance the shareholder
value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Board considers that good corporate
governance of the Company is crucial to safeguard
the interests of the shareholders of the Company
and to enhance the performance of the Group.
The Board and management of the Company are
committed to enhancing corporate governance
standard, in compliance with all relevant
provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance
Code and Corporate Governance Report (the “CG
Code”) in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”). The Company has, through
out the year ended 30 June 2019, complied with
the code provisions of the CG Code (“Code
Provisions”), save for the deviations disclosed
under the sub-section headed “chairman and chief
executive officer” below.

THE BOARD

The Directors, individually and collectively, are
committed to act in good faith and in the best
interests of the Company and its shareholders.
As at the date of this report, the Board comprised
three executive Directors and three INEDs. The
profile of all Directors are set out on pages 12 to 17,
where relationships among members of the Board
(including financial, business, family or other
material or relevant relationship(s), if any) are also
disclosed.

The Board is responsible for performing the
corporate governance functions of the Company
in accordance with the CG Code, including
determining the Group’s corporate governance
policies, and reviewing and monitoring the
corporate governance practices of the Group.

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited
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The Board is responsible for the management of
the business and affairs of the Group with the
objective of enhancing shareholders value and
presenting a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment of the Company’s performance,
position and prospects in the annual and
interim reports, and of other inside information
announcements and accounting policies, and
reports to regulators any information required to
be disclosed pursuant to the relevant statutory
requirements.

The Board has fiduciary duty and statutory
responsibility towards the Company and the
Group. Other responsibilities include, formulation
of the Group’s overall strategy and policies,
setting corporate and management targets
and key operational initiatives, monitoring and
control of operational and financial performance,
and approval of budgets and major capital
expenditures, major investments, material
acquisitions and disposals of assets, corporate or
financial restructuring, significant operational,
financial and management matters.

The Board delegates day-to-day management of
the business of the Group to the management
of the relevant principal subsidiaries and certain
specific responsibilities to the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee (collectively, “Committees”).
These Committees have specific functions and
the authority to examine issues and report
to the Board with their recommendations (if
appropriate). Final decisions rest with the Board,
unless otherwise provided for in the terms of
reference of the relevant Committee.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability
insurance cover for liabilities in respect of legal
actions against Directors arising out of corporate
activities. The coverage of such insurance is
reviewed regularly.

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited
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The Company Secretary provides the Directors
with updates on developments regarding the
Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements. Any Director may request the
Company Secretary to arrange for independent
professional advice at the expense of the Company
to assist the Directors to effectively discharge their
duties to the Company.

All INEDs, whose designations as INEDs are
identified in all corporate communications of
the Company, bring a variety of experience and
expertise to the Group. The INEDs serve the
important function of ensuring and monitoring
the basis for an effective corporate governance
framework. The INEDs participate in Board
meetings to bring an independent judgment on
the issues arising in the meetings and monitor
the Group’s performance in achieving the
corporate goals and objectives. Each of the INEDs
has to provide an annual confirmation of his/
her independence to the Company. The Board
considers that each of the INEDs is independent
in character and judgment and that they all meet
the specific independence guidelines as set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

All Directors are regularly updated on governance
and regulatory matters. There is an established
procedure for Directors to obtain independent
advice where necessary at the expense of the
Company in discharging of their duties to the
Company.

Board Meetings

The Board meets at least four times each year to
review the overall strategy and to monitor the
operation as well as the financial performance of
the Group. During the year ended 30 June 2019, the
Board held 4 regular meetings.

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited
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The attendances of the respective Directors at the
meetings are set out below:

Executive Directors Pupr

Mr Samson Fung® W0
Mr David Fung® B s
Mr Alex Fung® ERR: 0
Independent Non-executive Directors Bin AT
Dr Loke Yu PR GL:

Ms Fung Po Yee HEELL

Ms Sung Ting Yee KLt
Notes:

(1) Mr Samson Fung is the father of Mr Alex Fung and the elder
brother of Mr David Fung.

(2) Mr David Fung is the younger brother of Mr Samson Fung
and an uncle of Mr Alex Fung.

(3) Mr Alex Fung is son of Mr Samson Fung and a nephew of
Mr David Fung.

Notice of at least 14 days is served for regular
board meetings. Reasonable notice would
be given for all other special board meetings
which are not held regularly. The chairman of
the Board is primarily responsible for drawing
up and approving the agenda for each board
meetings in consultation with all Directors and
ensure that all Directors are properly briefed on
issues arising at board meetings. Agenda and
accompanying board papers in respect of board
meetings are sent out in full to all Directors
within a reasonable time before the date of every
board meetings to allow them to review these
documents in advance. Minutes of all board
meetings, and meetings of the Remuneration
Committee, the Nomination Committee and
the Audit Committee are kept by the Company
Secretary and the Directors may inspect these
minutes at any time during office hours upon
giving reasonable notice. Minutes of all board
meetings, and meetings of the Remuneration
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited
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Audit Committee, have recorded in sufficient
detail the matters considered by the Board and
the board committees, including any concerns
raised by Directors or dissenting view expressed.
Draft and final versions of these minutes were sent
to all Directors for their comment and records
respectively, normally within 10 days after the
relevant meeting was held.

General Meeting
The attendances of the respective Directors at

the general meetings of the Company are set out
below:

Name of director

& 3%

ERELIRS
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Attendance of genreal meeting

R B HOR 1 Z 45 0t

Executive Directors PATH P

Mr Samson Fung WA 171
Mr David Fung e 11
Mr Alex Fung RS 17
Independent Non-executive Directors BT g

Dr Loke Yu 3y N mn
Ms Fung Po Yee HER L 11
Ms Sung Ting Yee Rig et 11

The Board is responsible for maintaining an on-
going dialogue with shareholders and in particular,
uses annual general meetings or other general
meetings to communicate with them and
encourage their participation. The Board notes
that the chairman of the Board and the chairmen
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T RAZTEGRAHMZ B & 3 M55 B
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or, in their absence, the Audit Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee of the Company should attend annual
general meetings to answer questions and collect
views of shareholders.
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Directors’ Training

According to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code,
all directors should participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. The Directors have
been given relevant guideline materials to ensure
that they are apprised of the latest changes in the
commercial, legal and regulatory requirements
in relation to the Company’s businesses, and to
refresh their knowledge and skills on the roles,
functions and duties of a listed company director.

The Company also continuously updates Directors
on the latest developments regarding listing rules
and other applicable regulatory requirements to
ensure compliance and enhance their awareness
of good corporate governance practices. Circulars
or guidance notes are also issued to Directors
where appropriate to ensure their awareness of
best corporate governance practices.

This is to ensure that their contribution to the
Board remains informed and relevant. Directors
are required to provide a record of the training
they received to the Company annually. The
participation by Directors in the continuous
professional development with appropriate
emphasis on duties of a Director of a listed
company and corporate governance matters
during the year ended 30 June 2019 is as follows:

Name of director

L3S

Executive Directors WarHg

Mr Samson Fung DL

Mr David Fung HocH et

Mr Alex Fung RIS
Independent Non-executive Directors B i FEPf7 % 3
Dr Loke Yu e AT

Ms Fung Po Yee R Lt

Ms Sung Ting Yee PR IR

including physical attendance or by webcast

B R B A R
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REERHRFEETRWHRGRE > LaEF
(70 £7) 5% 8 o Bt 51 > DAREARIL 7 M B A 3
EIRWHL o

e Tl PR AP S5 A A A L 2 B R S U B Bl 2 A L
THEFFMEHER o EFHGE AL R R
G RWINRE c REZF—NWEANA=ZTHIE
P HREYZE TP E WA F E R kA
EERFHZ I HERTR

Attending seminars/
conferences/forums*
St

WAC R T ik
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code provides
that the roles of the chairman and chief executive
officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. The Company
does not at present separate roles of the chairman
and chief executive officer. Mr Samson Fung is
both the chairman and chief executive officer of
the Company. The Board believes that vesting
the roles of both chairman and chief executive
officer in the same person has the benefit of
ensuring consistent leadership within the Group
and enables more effective and efficient overall
strategic planning for the Group. The Board further
believes that the balance of power and authority
will not be impaired by the present arrangement,
and is adequately ensured by the current Board,
which comprises experienced and high calibre
individuals and a sufficient number of INEDs.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The number of INEDs throughout the year ended
30 June 2019 has met the minimum requirement of
the Listing Rules and represented at least one-third
of the total Board members. Further, at least one of
the INEDs possesses the appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise as required under the
Listing Rules.

The Company has received from each of the
INEDs an annual written confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Board has reviewed their independence
based on such confirmation and considers that all
of them remain independent.

All' INEDs have been appointed for a term of 2 years
commencing from 26 April 2019 and are subject
to retirement by rotation in accordance with
the Articles of Association of the Company (the
“Articles”).

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited
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BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board currently comprises the following three
executive Directors and three INEDs:

Executive Directors

Mr Fung Man Wai Samson (Chairman)
Mr Fung Man Kam
Mr Fung Kar Chue Alexander

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr Loke Yu
Ms Fung Po Yee
Ms Sung Ting Yee

All INEDs are expressly identified as such in all of
the Company’s corporate communications that
disclose the names of Directors.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company adopted a board diversity policy
(the “Board Diversity Policy”) from 18 May 2016
up to the date of this corporate governance
report. A summary of this Board Diversity Policy,
together with the measureable objectives set for
implementing this Board Diversity Policy, and the
progress made towards achieving those objectives
are disclosed as below.

The Company recognised the benefits of having
a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its
performance. The Board Diversity Policy aimed
to set out the approach to achieve diversity on
the Board. In designing the Board’s composition,
Board diversity has been considered from a
number of measurable aspects including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of services, all of which
the Company considers to be important to
enhance the quality of its performance. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objective
criteria, having due regards for the benefits of
diversity on the Board.
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The Nomination Committee will monitor the
implementation of the Board Diversity Policy and
recommend any proposed changes to the Board
for approval. The Nomination Committee will from
time to time review the Board Diversity Policy as
appropriate to ensure its effectiveness.

The Nomination Committee of the Board has
reviewed the Board Diversity Policy to ensure
its effectiveness and considered that the Group
achieved the Board Diversity Policy for the year
ended 30 June 2019.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

In accordance with the Article 84(1) of the Articles,
any new Director appointed by the Board, whether
to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the
existing Board, is subject to retirement and re-
election by shareholders at the next following
general meeting of the Company following his/her
appointment. At every annual general meeting of
the Company, one-third of the Directors for the
time being (or, if the number of Directors is not a
multiple of three, the number nearest to but not
greater than one-third) shall retire from office and
being eligible for re-election.

All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election by shareholders at annual general
meetings of the Company at least once every three
years.

BOARD COMMITTEES

As an integral part of good corporate governance,
the Board has established the following
Committees with defined terms of reference.

Audit Committee

The Company has established an Audit Committee
in compliance with the Rule 3.21 of the Listing
Rules. As at 30 June 2019, the Company’s Audit
Committee comprised a total of three members, all
being INEDs, namely, Dr Loke Yu (chairman), Ms
Fung Po Yee and Ms Sung Ting Yee.
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The Audit Committee oversees the financial
reporting process, risk management and internal
control system of the Company. The management
of the Company is responsible for the preparation
of the Group’s financial statements while the
external auditors are responsible for auditing
the Group’s financial statements. Members of
the Audit Committee assist the Board in fulfilling
its responsibilities by providing an independent
review of the financial statements, and supervising
the Company’s system of financial reporting and
internal control. The Audit Committee presents a
report to the Board on its findings after each Audit
Committee meeting.

The Audit Committee also provides an important
link between the Board and the Company’s
auditors in matters coming within the scope of its
terms of reference and keeps the independence
and objectivity of the auditor’s under review.

The written terms of reference, which describe the
authority and duties of the Audit Committee, are
regularly reviewed and were updated by the Board
to comply with Code Provision C.3.3 of the Code
in 2019. The Audit Committee held three meetings
during the year ended 30 June 2019.

Subsequent to the year ended 30 June 2019 and
up to the date of this annual report, the Audit
Committee reviewed and discussed the 2019
consolidated financial statements included in
this report with management and the external
auditor. In this regard, the Audit Committee held
discussions with management with regard to new
accounting policies or changes in accounting
policies that had been applied, and significant
judgements of the management which affected
the Group’s financial statements. The Audit
Committee received reports and met with the
external auditor to discuss the general scope of
their audit work, including the impact of new
or changes in accounting policies that had been
applied and their assessment of the Group’s
internal controls. Based on these reviews and
discussions, and the report of the external auditor,
the Audit Committee recommended the Board to
approve the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 30 June 2019 and the independent
auditor’s report.
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During the year, the Audit Committee also
reviewed the unaudited condensed consolidated
financial statements for the six months ended 31
December 2018 and recommended the Board to
approve the unaudited condensed consolidated
financial statements.

The members of the Audit Committee considered
the appointment of external auditor, their audit
fees and recommended the Board to seek
shareholders’ approval for the re-appointment of
Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited as the Group’s
external auditor for the year ending 30 June 2020.

Nomination Committee

The Company has established a Nomination
Committee with terms consistent with the CG
Code Provisions A.5.1 to A.5.6. The written terms
of reference of the Nomination Committee have
included the duties as set out in the relevant
CG Code Provisions. As at 30 June 2019, the
Nomination Committee comprises a total of five
members, being two Executive Directors, namely,
Mr Samson Fung and Mr Alex Fung, and three
INEDs, namely, Ms Fung Po Yee (Chairman), Dr
Loke Yu and Ms Sung Ting Yee. Accordingly, a
majority of the members are INEDs.

The primary responsibilities of the Nomination
Committee include (i) making recommendations
to the Board regarding candidates to fill
vacancies on the Board; (ii) reviewing the Board
Diversity Policy for the Board’s consideration,
and monitoring the progress on achieving the
objectives of the Board Diversity Policy to ensure
effective implementation, and (iii) reviewing
the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge, experience) of the Board
on a regular basis at least annually and make
recommendations to the Board regarding any
proposed change to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy.

The Nomination Committee held two meetings
during the year ended 30 June 2019 to review the
structure, size, composition and diversity of the
Board.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company has established a Remuneration
Committee to deal with matters of remuneration
and compensation arrangement of Directors
and senior management. The written terms of
reference of the remuneration committee have
included the duties as set out in the relevant CG
Provisions. As at 30 June 2019, the Remuneration
Committee comprises a total of five members,
being two Executive Directors, namely, Mr Samson
Fung and Mr Alex Fung, and three INEDs, namely,
Ms Sung Ting Yee (Chairman), Dr Loke Yu and
Ms Fung Po Yee. Accordingly, a majority of the
members are INEDs.

The primary responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee include, among others, (i) making
recommendations to the Board on the policy and
structure for all remuneration of the Directors
and senior management and on the establishment
of a set of formal and transparent procedures
for developing policies on such remuneration;
(ii) reviewing and approving the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the
Board’s corporate goals and objectives; and (iii)
making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of executive Directors
and members of senior management. The
Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once
ayear.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings
during the year ended 30 June 2019 to review the
remuneration package of the individual Executive
Directors and senior management for submission
to the Board for approval.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Company’s corporate governance functions
are carried out by the Board pursuant to the code
provisions as set out in the CG code.
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The corporate governance functions currently
performed by the Board are (i) to develop and
review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance to ensure compliance
with the CG Code and other legal or regulatory
requirements; (ii) to oversee the Company’s
orientation program for new Directors; (iii) to
review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management; (iv) to develop, review and monitor
the code of conduct and compliance manual (if
any) applicable to employees and Directors; and
(v) to review the Company’s disclosure in this
Corporate Governance Report.

During the year ended 30 June 2019, the Board has
reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The position of Company Secretary is held by Mr
Li, a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and the Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators, who
is an employee of the Company. The Company
Secretary reported to the Board from time to time.
All Directors have access to the advice and services
of the Company Secretary to ensure that Board
procedures, and all applicable laws, rules and
regulations are followed.

Pursuant to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, the
Company Secretary must take no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training in each
financial year. The Company Secretary provided
his training records to the Company indicating he
took more than 15 hours of relevant professional
development by means of attending inhouse
briefings, attending seminars and reading relevant
guideline materials.

DIVIDEND POLICY

In considering the payment of dividends, there
shall be a balance between retaining adequate
reserves for the Group’s future growth and
rewarding the shareholders of the Company.
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The Board shall also take into account, among
other things, the following factors when
considering the declaration and payment of
dividends:

— the Group’s overall results of operation,
financial condition, expected working
capital requirements and capital expenditure
requirements, liquidity position and future
expansions plans;

- the amount of retained profits and
distributable reserves of the Company;

- general economic conditions, business cycle
of the Group's business and other internal or
external factors that may have an impact on the
business or financial performance and position
of the Group; and

- any other factors that the Board deems
relevant.

The declaration and payment of dividends by
the Company is subject to any restrictions under
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association, the Listing Rules and any other
applicable laws and regulations.

The Company does not have any pre-determined
dividend distribution ratio. The Company’s
dividend distribution record in the past may not be
used as a reference or basis to determine the level
of dividends that may be declared or paid by the
Company in the future.

The Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute
a legally binding commitment by the Group in
respect of its future dividend and/or in no way
obligate the Group to declare a dividend at any
time or from time to time.

The Board will continually review the Dividend
Policy and reserves the right in its sole and
absolute discretion to update, amend and modify
the Dividend Policy at any time.
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PERFORMANCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ DUTIES

The Company has adopted the rules and
procedures on INEDs” work. The Company
has three INEDs, representing more than one-
third of the total number of the Directors as
required under the Listing Rules. The INEDs
are professionals with extensive experience in
the fields of accounting, finance and business
management. Dr. Loke Yu has appropriate
accounting and financial experience. The INEDs
do not hold other positions in the Company other
than being members of the board committees.

During the year ended 30 June 2019, the INEDs
had no objections to the resolutions made by the
Board.

During the year, the INEDs earnestly and diligently
performed their duties in accordance with the
relevant laws and regulations and the Articles of
the Company. The INEDs actively attended board
meetings during the year ended 30 June 2019, and
reviewed documents presented by the Company.
They also provided professional and constructive
advice on the Company’s major decisions.

The Company has received confirmation from
each of the INEDs about their independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers that the INEDs are completely
independent of the Company, its substantial
shareholders and its affiliates and comply fully
with the requirements concerning the INEDs
under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

It is the external auditor’s responsibility to form
an independent opinion, based on their audit,
on the consolidated financial statements and to
report their opinion solely to the shareholders of
the Company, as a body, and for no other purpose.
They do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the content
of the auditor’s report. For the year ended 30 June
2019, the Board has accepted the recommendation
from the Audit Committee on re-appointing Grant
Thornton Hong Kong Limited as the external
auditor of the Group.
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For the years ended 30 June 2019 and 2018, the
remuneration paid and payable to the Company’s
external auditor for the provision of services are as
follows:

BEZR-JERZFREAAZTHIEEE
Sﬂf&@ﬁ?ﬂi&ﬂ9#%1%%&%%%3‘%9%5&?%%%
nE :

2019
—

2018
A
HK$'000
Tt

HK$’000
T

Statutory audit services ViE BRI 540 640
Non-statutory audit services ek e T s
—for interim review — v T s 360 360
900 1,000
DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES Ee i g

STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility
for preparing the Group’s financial statements
in accordance with statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards. The
responsibilities of the Directors are to prepare the
financial accounts for each financial period which
gives a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Group and of the results and cash flows for that
period. The Directors also acknowledge that the
publication of the financial statements should be
distributed to the shareholders of the Company
in a timely manner. In preparing the accounts for
the year ended 30 June 2019, the Directors have
selected suitable accounting policies and applied
them consistently; adopted appropriate Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and Hong
Kong Accounting Standards; made adjustments
and estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable
and prepared accounts on a going concern basis.
The Directors are also responsible for keeping
proper accounting records which disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Company.

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited
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Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems.

The risk management process includes risk
identification, risk evaluation, risk management
and risk control and review.

The management is entrusted with duties to
identify, analyze, evaluate, respond, monitor
and communicate risks associated with any
activity, function or process within its scope of
responsibility and authority.

The Group has conducted a review of the
implemented system and procedures, including
areas covering financial, operational, compliance
and risk management functions.The systems are
implemented to minimise the risk to which the
Group is exposed and is used as a management
tool for the day-to-day operation of business.
The system can only provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against misstatement or losses.

The Group does not have an internal audit
function as the Board has reviewed the
effectiveness of the internal control system of the
Company and is currently of the view that there
is no immediate need to set up an internal audit
function within the Group in light of the size,
nature and complexity of the Group’s business.
The situation will be reviewed from time to time.

The Group has engaged an external professional
consultant to conduct an independent internal
control review for the year ended 30 June 2019.

For the year ended 30 June 2019, the Board
considered the Group’s risk management and
internal control system as adequate and effective
and that the Company has complied with the code
provisions on internal control of the CG Code.

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited
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ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT
FRAMEWORK

The Group established its enterprise risk
management framework. While the Board has
the overall responsibility to ensure that sound
and effective internal controls are maintained,
management is responsible for designing and
implementing an internal control system to
manage all kinds of risks faced by the Group.

Through the risk identification and assessment
processes, risks are identified, assessed, prioritised
and allocated treatments. The Group’s risk
management framework follows the COSO
Enterprise Risk Management — Integrated
Framework, which allows the Board and
management to manage the risks of the Group
effectively. The Board receives regular reports
through the Audit Committee that oversees risk
management and internal audit functions.

Principal Risks

For the year ended 30 June 2019, the following
principal risks of the Group were identified and
classified into Market Rate Risk, Liquidity Risk,
Operational Risk, Legal and Compliance Risk and
Listing Risk.

Risk Areas

JE B R

Market Rate Risk
TG AR B

Liquidity Risk

L FE i

Operational Risk

B

Legal and Compliance Risk
HHA AR

Listing Risk

i R

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited
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BEZFJUEANH =T HIRERE » ARG S
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Principal Risks
B0 1

No significant risk identified
PR S PN
No significant risk identified
PR S PN
No significant risk identified
PR S PN
No significant risk identified
PR S PN
No significant risk identified

ARBEH K B
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RISK CONTROL MECHANISM

The Group adopts a “three-layer” corporate
governance structure with operational
management and controls performed by
operations management, coupled with risk
management monitoring carried out by the
finance team and independent internal audit
outsourced to and conducted by external
professional consultant. The Group maintains
a form of enterprise risk to keep track of all
identified major risks of the Group. The form
of enterprise risk provides the Board, the Audit
Committee, and management with a profile of its
major risks and records management’s actions
taken to mitigate the relevant risks. Each risk is
evaluated at least annually based on its likelihood
of occurrence and potential impact upon the
Group. The form of enterprise risk is updated
by management as the risk owners with addition
of new risks and/or removal of existing risks,
if applicable, at least annually, after the annual
risk evaluation has been performed. This review
process can ensure that the Group proactively
manages the risks faced by it in the sense that all
risk owners have access to the form of enterprise
risk and are aware of and alert to those risks in their
area of responsibility so that they can take follow
up actions in an efficient manner.

The Group’s risk management activities are
performed by management on an ongoing
process. The Company has adopted risk
management policy and procedures. The
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
framework will be evaluated at least annually,
and periodic management meeting is held to
update the progress of risk monitoring efforts.
Management is committed to ensure that risk
management forms part of the daily business
operation processes in order to align risk
management with corporate goals in an effective
manner.

The Company will continue to engage external
independent professionals to review the Group’s
system of internal controls and risk management
annually to further enhance the Group’s internal
control and risk management systems as
appropriate.

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited
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HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF
INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company regulates the handling and
dissemination of inside information according
to the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside
Information” published by the Securities and
Future Commission in June 2012 to ensure
inside information remains confidential until the
disclosure of such information is appropriately
approved, and the dissemination of such
information is efficiently and consistently made.
The Company regularly reminds the Directors
and employees about due compliance with all
policies regarding the inside information. Also, the
Company keeps Directors, senior management
and employees appraised of the latest regulatory
updates. The Company shall prepare or update
appropriate guidelines or policies to ensure the
compliance with regulatory requirements.

MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by Directors
(the “Securities Code”) on terms no less exacting
than the required standard set out by the Stock
Exchange in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) contained in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiries, all
Directors have confirmed that they have met the
required standards of dealings as set out in the
Model Code and the Securities Code during the
financial year under review. Directors’ interests as
at 30 June 2019 in the shares in the Company and
its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) are set out on pages 83 to 84 of
this annual report.

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide
an opportunity for communication between the
shareholders and the Board. An annual general
meeting of the Company shall be held each year
and at such place as may be determined by the
Board. Each general meeting, other than an annual
general meeting, shall be called an extraordinary
general meeting.

Shareholders to convene an extraordinary general
meeting

According to the Articles, extraordinary general
meetings shall be convened on the requisition
of one or more shareholders holding, at the
date of deposit of the requisition, not less than
one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
having the right to vote at general meetings. Such
requisition shall be made in writing to the Board
or the Company Secretary at the address set out
in the sub-section headed “Putting enquiries
by Shareholders to the Board” for the purpose
of requiring an extraordinary general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition. The
requisition must state clearly the name(s) of
the requisitionist(s) concerned, its/his/her/their
shareholding in the Company as at the date of
the of the requisition, the reason for convening
an extraordinary general meeting, the agenda
proposed to be included and the details of the
businesses proposed to be transacted at the
extraordinary general meeting, signed by all the
requisitionist(s) concerned. Such meeting shall
be held within 2 months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit, the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting,
the requisitionist(s) himself/themselves may do so
in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the
failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited
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Putting Enquiries by shareholders to the Board

Shareholders may send written enquiries to
the Company for the attention of the Company
Secretary at the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong. The relevant address is as
follows:

Block C, 5/F., Gee Hing Chang Industrial Building
No. 16 Cheung Yue Street

Cheung Sha Wan

Kowloon

Hong Kong

Procedures for putting forward proposals by
shareholders at shareholders” meetings

Shareholders should follow the procedures set
out in the sub-section headed “Shareholders to
convene an extraordinary general meeting” above
for putting forward proposals for discussion at
general meetings.

Voting by Poll

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any
vote of shareholders at a general meeting must be
taken by poll except where the chairman, in good
faith, decides to allow a resolution which relates
purely to a procedural or administrative matter
to be voted on by a show of hands. As such, all
the resolutions to be set out in the notice of 2019
Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) will be voted by
poll.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION

The Company is responsible for ensuring that
shareholders’ rights are protected. In order to
fulfill this responsibility, the Company endeavours
to maintain a high level of transparency in
communicating with shareholders and the
investment community at large. The Company is
committed to continue to maintain an open and
effective investor communication policy and to
update investors with the relevant information
on its business in a timely and accurate manner,
subject to the relevant regulatory requirements.
In order to ensure effective, clear and accurate
communication with investors, all corporate

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited
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communications are arranged and handled by
the executive Directors and designated senior
executives according to established practices and
procedures of the Company.

The Board uses annual general meetings and
other general meetings as the principal channel
to meet and communicate with the shareholders.
Registered shareholders are notified by post for
these general meetings, and the notice of meeting
contains the agenda and the proposed resolutions.
Any registered shareholder is entitled to attend
the annual and special general meetings, provided
that their shares have been recorded in the register
of shareholders. The Board also encourages
shareholders to participate in these general
meetings to maintain an on-going dialogue with
the shareholders.

Extensive information about the Company’s
activities is provided in its interim and annual
reports, which are sent to shareholders, analysts
and other interested parties. The Company’s
publication of announcements on the annual and
interim results, issue of other announcements
and shareholders’ circulars in accordance with
the continuing disclosure obligations under
the Listing Rules are circulated on the Stock
Exchange’s website in a timely and accurate
manner.

Separate resolutions will be proposed by the
chairman of the meeting in respect of each
substantially separate issue at the Company’s
forthcoming AGM. The chairman of the AGM,
audit committee, the nomination committee
and remuneration committee will attend the
forthcoming annual general meeting to answer
questions of shareholders.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS OF THE
COMPANY

During the year under review, there were no
changes in the constitutional documents of the
Company. A copy of the latest version of the
Memorandum and Articles of Association are
available on the Company’s website and the
website of the Stock Exchange.

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited
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BRI - tERERWE

ABOUT THE REPORT

This is the third Environment, Social and
Governance (“ESG”) report of Hang Sang (Siu
Po) International Holding Company Limited
(the “Company”), presenting the Company’s
management approach and performance on
environmental and social aspects. The Board
confirms that it has reviewed and approved
the report which, to the best of its knowledge,
addresses material issues and fairly presents the
ESG management approach and performance of
the Company.

REPORTING GUIDELINE

The report is prepared in compliance with the
ESG Reporting Guide set out in Appendix 27 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. It aims to improve
stakeholders’ understanding and to introduce
ongoing sustainability initiatives directed towards
fulfillment of our obligations to the community
and the environment at locations where we have
operations.

In respect of governance, the Company has met
Code Provisions of the Corporate Governance
Report as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules; please refer to Pages 19 to 41 of our Annual
Report 2019 for the Corporate Governance Report.

REPORTING PERIOD & SCOPE

This report presents the ESG management
approach and performance of Hang Sang (Siu Po)
International Holding Company Limited and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the period from
1 July 2018 to 30 June 2019. The report boundary
includes the Group’s core business of investment
holdings and manufacturing and sale of apparel
and packaging and printing products.

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited
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FEEDBACK

Your comments and ideas are appreciated and will
help us improve contents of the report as well as
our performance. You may contact us by email:
IR@QHANGSANGPRESS.COM.

ESG MANAGEMENT APPROACH

Viewing proper management of ESG issues
as essential to long-term success in a rapidly
changing world, the Group incorporates
sustainability in its business strategy and daily
operations, making it an important matter
embedded in its business model. By better
identifying risks and opportunities, the Group
believes it can be better positioned when
allocating resources for improving its ESG
performance.

The Group’s ESG policy promotes integration
of environmental and social aspects with
the business decision-making process. The
Chief Financial Officer, General Manager and
Administrative Manager monitor and implement
ESG-related policies and practices, reporting to the
Board which oversees the overall strategy.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Building strong relationships with our
stakeholders enables us to align our strategy in line
with long-term values and operate the business
in a sustainable way. The Group acknowledges
the need for and importance of stakeholder
engagement and views this as one of the key
elements in ESG reporting.

We engage with internal and external stakeholders
including customers, the government,
community, investors and shareholders through
various approaches in order to keep abreast of
their concerns. The table below indicates the
engagement channels with different stakeholders
and the issues they are concerned about.

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited
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Investors and

Employees Customers The Government Community Sh
BT % B R areholders
B HABK
Concerned Topics
ot I
Training and Product Business Helping Corporate
development quality ethics people in governance
Sl 8t fgg 7 A B [EE Sk need SRR
Occupational Lawful HBAEREAN Operational risk
health and operation + S A
safety BERE Environmental Disclosure
Tk S fekt B B 22 protection P FRE K
£ BB
Remuneration
155
Workplace
discrimination
Tk B A
Engagement Channels
L2 S

Training Customer Compliance Support Annual General
courses Satisfaction with laws and charity Meeting
ol aRfR Survey regulations organisations SRR KRG
Grievance PR JEAS e, ik TR EE Annual Report
redressal o Compliance and public
system Recall system with laws and announcement
H R A [ i BE regulations G Y YN
Employee AP IEAEN ESG report
activities ESG # it
HT{EE) Company

website

O ) B o
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

This reporting year, we conducted the second
stakeholder survey, which included both internal
and external stakeholders. The Group is gradually
integrating identified material issues into its
business development strategy. We believe
reporting and responding to material issues in an
open and transparent way is key to meeting the
expectations of our stakeholders.

@ Identification %51
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*Determined a pool of ESG issues considering both buisness and stakeholders

perspectives

e Identified 27 potentially material topics based on the HKEX ESG Reporting

Guideline
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o MR WAL 5 FTESG ok e » Gt 27 8 T8 A T B o

—| Prioritization #51# K

¢ Assessed material topics in terms of their influence on decisions and the

significance of their impacts

* Ranked the topics into 9 categories based on materiality

o oAl TR Pl S e SR 2 D R LS B v
o R4 T R A o 2 5 O IR 81

¢ Validated the results internally

e |[dentified gaps for future improvement

o 73 R R 4 R
o BRI A5 5 2 1 2

Validation & Review B F b8 )

Materiality Assessment Process

HE A
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BRI -tERELIEE

Further to the materiality assessment conducted in G B EREAG AR 45 B SRS E 2
previous year, the management confirmed the six A% B2 itk R B 3R O B B B 5 05 By B o

material topics identified that remained significant
to our business and stakeholders.

’Q =
A\a
[~"\

Customer Satisfaction Product Quality and Safety
B JEE ity LB R B A
00
Talent Management Occupational Health and Safety
NA B TSR R B % 2

Identified Material Topics
7 BB P
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BRE -IIEREIHLSE

Environment 3%

® Anti-discrimination

SR

o Protection of intellectual
property rights

DR il

© Community engagement
M2 8

® Precautionary measures of
child/forced labour
TR 3 TR R 25 T

Low &

® Employee BT

® Supply chain management

A3 1 i A B

® Employee engagement

BT 25
® Employee training & promotion

H RIS E T

® Anti-corruption
REi5
® Protection of human rights

PRER R

Cleaner production &
green product

TR A LA 0

Greenhouse gas emissions

B SR AR A

Medium
Significance to the Group

A £ T ) R
Materiality Matrix
EHEHHAHPE

® Operation &7

o Customer satisfaction

E-9RN 7 -9)d

® Product compliance
R fih 81

o Product quality & safety
EME R LS

e Talent management
A B

® Occupational health & safety
k% B R B 2 2

Materials consumption
JE AR
© Business ethics

LES ,
© Operating compliance
BEAH
© Protection of customers’ privacy
PRI P AARR
Energy
AEIR
Hazardous waste

A H R

Effluent & reduction

JEE K BBk

Environmental compliance
RIRGH

Water

Air pollutant
Non-hazardous waste

JiE T g R
High %

We are committed to creating sustainable and
long-term business growth, while leading and
shaping positive change for our marketplace and
customers, our people and the environment,
and the communities we operate in. The Group’s
response to the identified material topics is
summarised in the table below and is reflected in
the corresponding sections of this report.

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited

FAM I T A WY R AR R SR B R o BRI
MY ~ %5 ~ B~ B5E > DARAEE B A
Fh o G G % A T T SO o AR B T
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BRI -tERELIEE

Identified Material Topics

ik i1 Py TR

Our Actions

FeAM w47 8)

Our People

Our Environment

Operational Excellence

L5 2

M E T

FAM p BT

“Ze\Y
.@\.
[~

Customer Satisfaction

E-9RT 759}

Product Quality and Safety
i B B2

Product Compliance

FE il

Occupational Health and Safety
LHE 3113 9,8

Talent Management

NA BB

Materials Consumption

JEATRHE

Conduct Customer Satisfaction Survey and address
customer feedback

HEAT R P I T B 2 % [ 5 I A
Closely monitor complaints handling

B D) B e B P

Conduct three steps of quality control

43 =2 BT R Ak )

Measures to prevent mix-up of Forest Stewardship
Council® (“FSC™") and non-Fsc™ products

B 57 13RS CT i B IS CT™ il i ) it
Establish product recall procedures

o b TR

Provide training to employees on quality control
s B TR B Ak ] )

Check the correct usage of FSC™ labels

A FSC ML 7 T B i

Understand the up-to-date laws and regulations

T AR B R B

Conduct product testing

HEAT R LR

- Evaluation of finished products
R Al

- Recall and dispose unqualified products
A4 I A A

- Assign product testing to a third party
R =IEATEE S LR

Conduct noise evaluation and annual safety review

HEAT R RPN AN A B L R A

Make improvements to meet any higher standards
stipulated by the Occupational Safety and Health Council
R FETRSOHE AR 5 W 2 2R ) LA F B o B

Provide safety training and personal protective
equipment

HEB L 2 RTIAN A A B e

The Occupational Safety and Health Council conducts
annual safety review

T L A SR AT A L R 2k Ay

Establish a reward system to encourage employees to
conceive constructive ideas

HeSr B RE > S B TR R A s i AR vk

Provide training and discretionary bonus to employees

H B THBERE IR G AT

Offer FSC™ certified paper to clients as an option
PRPCARART BT H Rl AR 4 % P R

Use vegetable and soy-based inks

A58 FERELAD) B R TR il 22

Adopt new Computer to Plate imaging technology and
digital printing

R Mt 432 Pl 5 S B R

Develop an in-house ERP system

WL N HPERP R 4
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OUR ENVIRONMENT

Embracing principles and practices that contribute
to improvement of ecological environment and
sustainable development, the Group is committed
to measuring, managing and minimising
environmental impacts by incorporating
environmental and ethical perspectives in its
business.

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE

The Group is committed to continually improving
its environmental performance as an integral
and fundamental part of its business models
and operating methods. We strictly comply
with environment-related laws and regulations,
including but not limited to the Air Pollution
Control Ordinance, the Air Pollution Control
(Volatile Organic Compounds) Regulation, the
Water Pollution Control Ordinance and the Waste
Disposal Ordinance.

To ensure compliance, we have established
a set of management policies and measures
regarding environmental protection to facilitate
sustainable development and efficient operations
of the Group. We also closely monitor the use
of resources and emissions to minimise our
ecological impacts. We have explained in detail
our performance and results achieved in the
subsequent paragraphs.

During the year, the Group was not aware of
any non-compliance of laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the Group relating
to air and greenhouse gases (“GHG”) emissions,
discharges into water and land, or generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited

BIE - tERERWE

LAy BREE

ACEE B ARG B0 B AT BRI R R R
A BR BT K P SR E R A A o RNV EAT R
1 REBR BT M W] 4 2 o e 4 D S A A 1] o

BREH

ACER B B0 WA BRI Y R o R AR TTBR AR A
BB iy S 205 A 5 B 78 T X e A T s A R 2 1
g o FRAM B I BRBEAH B A R SRk AL > AR
A BRI 2 5RT5 B ) ~ (22 SRS B ) (%
YA AL S ) BB ~ CR5 R Hl e ) B g
V& BB

R TERR AR > T2 — R B A B B DR e R A B
B SR 0 > DL AR O A AR T R A % e A A ROE
A o A I 5 1) BB 5 S DR R A PR dg > DAl B A
B GRS o BRAMI BEAR Be ¥ 5 AN I B AM AY T
Ve B0 B AR

SR > ACHR 3 A S B A A 0 A R D SR B R A AR
HEHRIB > Tk BT o B R AT % S E R
W HL AR SR I3 S R R R B L R
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BRI - tERERWE

RAW MATERIALS MANAGEMENT

We are committed to embracing principles
and practices that contribute to sustainable
development along the entire production
processes. Forest Stewardship Council® (“FSC™”)
certified paper is provided to our customers. FSC™
certifies our printing products along the supply
chain are sourced from well-managed forests and
recycled materials. Our customers can opt for
more environment-friendly, socially responsible
and economically viable raw materials for their
products.

By replacing petroleum-based printing ink with
a lower volatile organic chemicals-emitting
(“VOCs”") option, vegetable and soy-based inks for
most of printing assignments; the Group promotes
sustainability practices starting from choosing the
raw materials.

RESOURCES CONSUMPTION
Energy

Operations of the Group rely on various resources
such as energy, water and packaging materials.
Approximately 4,097.67 Gigajoules (“GJ)”) of energy
was consumed during the year, with purchased
electricity and petrol accounting for 92% and 8%
respectively. The energy intensity was 12.43 GJ per
million pieces of product produced.

Electricity consumption of about 1,052.784 kWh is
attributable to the use of electrical appliances in
the offices and the regular operations of machines
in production sites. The Group maintained three
company vehicles for daily commuting purpose,
which consumed approximately 9,652.77 litres of
petrol during the year.

Electricity usage was lower by approximately 18%
compared to the preceding year. A number of
energy conservation initiatives were implemented
effectively. For example, we gradually replaced
the damaged fluorescent lamp tubes with LED
lightings and promoted energy conservation
culture by posting energy-saving reminders in the
offices.

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited

JEAE R B

FAM By s B A AR R IR A B W) A
RWER GG AR FREFKEHZE G
([FSC™]) B3 AR 24 o FS CTME PR IR AM B
o DA Pt R G X M 15 R AT A B AR MK % el ikt
a2 @ o T AM B9 & 5 W) DL 2 Al Al B B S R i IR
PR~ o8 HL g 5 AT B R A JE AR o

7 S [0 08 38 452 I ARk B A D T e A e R > DA
SRR AL G4 (TVO Cs ) il S HARCH RS
T o KA ED R b 8 DA R B K 2 S i o
B -

Y UFEH
fil U5

AR A [ ) RO S R R > W RBYR - K R
YRk o 4R > FEH M RBIR A %5 4,097.67 T IR AEH- »
AP R 1 B I 4 A 92% F18% o VR %5 2
BEE BB WRE12.43 TIRAEHE -

HHHREL %1,052.784 T LI » ARMEASNEKE
TR M AR Y R MRS AR o AREEE DL =2
A EEEEEZ H > F£NILFEHA9,652.77 AT

BB R A WA 4 18% » BWFRABHEE —F
FIEREEER A o Bl > FAMIZ L DL LED BRI
BCHEA > AT A 2 TR 3 6 HB $RE 718 DA 28 £ 58 S
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Total Energy Consumption and Intensity
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. Electricity
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Water

We consumed approximately 3,271.17 m3 of
municipal water for domestic and industrial
uses. The total water consumption intensity was
approximately 9.92 m? per million pieces of product
produced. In our printing processes, water is used
for washing of machineries and alcohol removal.
There were no issues on sourcing of water fit for
the purpose reported during the year.

FY 2019
SR VR MR

Petro| e [ntensity
il i

AT FER 3,271.17 32 J7 K W 38 77 AR P A 98 & A
EZH > SRR A B H B0 E M IH#£9.9257
Jiok s BRI - 7 SE AT K b vk
K o 4RI A PSR BRUE K U5 G T o

Total Water Consumption and Intensity

A K AN
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BRI - tERERWE

Packaging Materials

Packaging materials used in our operation include
paper boxes, transparent wrap and rubber bands.

(28 2708

P A A B R B AR - BB IR AR
B o

Packaging Materials Amount Intensity

(2% 2700 it W

Paper boxes 41,463 pieces 125.77 pieces/million pieces of product produced
AR 41,463 1 125.77 118,45 1 8 ok 2 A

Transparent wrap 1,056 rolls 3.20 rolls/million pieces of product produces

E W B 1,056 % 3.20% /i A A A A A

Rubber bands 438,750 pieces 1,330.83 pieces/million pieces of product produced
5z B 438,750 1 1,330.83 k4 7 i E

By encouraging clients to use big carton boxes instead of several small boxes for packaging,
consumption of paper boxes and transparent wrap are reduced by 24% and 49%

respectively.

I E % 5 P AR (10 2 IR A ARAS
A0 W) TR P R 2 43 T IR A 24 % #1149 % -

RESOURCES CONSERVATION

Striving to conserve resources and improve
environmental performance, the Group is further
implementing initiatives that minimise use of
electricity, water and packaging materials in its
offices and printing rooms. We regularly monitor
and report the resources usage to reduce their
consumption, and thereby our carbon footprint.

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited

R 49

F TG VR TP BRAR IR > AR M IE RAG AT 2
SEAE M > WA N B R BRI =R ) - K K
PRk e 15 o AP R 19T B 0 A e S DR R AR O
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BE HERELIHRE

*Deploy natural light,
energy-saving T5
fluorescent tubes and
LED lightings, when
feasible
FTAT IR A 2R
TSHiENEH K LED W]

eParticipate in No Air
Con Night 2018

2 81201884 I

e|nstall dual-flush toilets

L KA E A

from suppliers
T £ M e WA B Y
BRARAARRAR

R | *Regularly maintain % | eUse recycled water Z | *Minimise the use of
i equipment and replace 5 instead of running N tape and strapping for
> the obsolete ones = water for rinsing zinc KR sealing
S S S AEAG R B S e = plates & it B Yol A 0 FH B A A
2 A AR BRI Ih PR EEAR 2 | WEEH
£ | Switch off idling REF L A 20K s
machines ‘" | °Reuse plastic and
I o ) B = timber pallets received
g
=
]
=
o
5]
o

ADOPTING ADVANCED TECHNOLOGY

In our production process, we use digital printing
machines which avoid using setups and reduce
ink consumption. Therefore, generation of scrap
materials such as chemical solutions, zinc plates,
printing inks, wastewater and paper are greatly
reduced.

We adopt an advanced imaging technology,
Computer to Plate, in our printing processes. It
takes a finalised file from a computer and outputs
it directly to a plate. Compared to the Computer
to Film process, it saves photographic plates
and associated chemicals. The new technology
eliminates generation of hazardous waste.

We have also developed an in-house ERP
System, which supports the whole business
operation starting from the Customers Service
Representatives to the Production Team by
generating electronic notes, such as sales orders,
packing lists and sales invoices.

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited

R 1 e L

T A AR v > AN BR FH O B R A DL G
Al D SRR RE o L > KRR B A AL B
FERR ~ BRI - BEK AR SEBER o

Fo AP 7 BN R 20 A5 b PR S0 B AR e Alg — R A
M (Computer to Plate) o M1l i ] B i
VR dpe AR 8 EL i 1 SR R o M LGRS B G R 1 BTl
(Computer to Film) > B4 A i AR B AL 22
WIRE R - LR B AlG A B B A A R -

A5 BA B R ERP R AT > A 3% R 1 S 0 (g
AR RA MBI E RS > XRRE P RENR
AT A 7 T R B S T
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BRI -tERELIEE

AIR EMISSIONS

Our operations generate carbon emissions
directly due to petrol consumed by vehicles
(Scope 1) and indirectly from purchased electricity
consumption (Scope 2). The total amount of
GHG emissions during the year was about 562.60
tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent (tCO,e)
while Scope 1 and Scope 2 carbon emissions
were approximately 25.68 tCO,e and 536.92 tCO e
respectively. The total GHG emissions intensity
was 1.71 tCO e per million pieces of product
produced. With implementation of energy
conservation measures, carbon emissions have
been successfully reduced.

R

P AM A 2 4 R B Y R Vel T A B B i (i
B —) > DA KR A TR g i 2 A 2 ik i (o
) o Bk ik AE A AR A 2% 562.60 ME A AL IR
B > i i — S B AR BE i 4 i £ 2 25.68 W
TEALIRE B % 536.92 M A LR E B o 4 T 4A Mk
T Bl Tl 5% B 0 R A A AR 1.7 M AR AR
B o BEEEATHREI G o OB E A R BE -

Total Carbon Emission and Intensity
AR BR PR AR AN e T

750
2= 1.37
8 48 600
=B
s =
w5 450
E | .
w & 657.86
c -
_g I 300
=
T xE 150
R ®
23.42
0
FY 2018

T AU

mmm Scope 1 (Direct)
i (H%)

* FY 2018 data is restated

As offset printing involves the use of mineral oil-
based printing inks, fine powder and chemical
solvent, our production inevitably emits VOCs.

To mitigate the impacts to the environment, the
Group continues to replace the conventional
inks with soy oil-based processing inks, thereby
reducing VOCs emissions. We have also identified
high emission processes from operations and
installed a ventilation system at the printing rooms.

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited

Scope 2 (Indirect)
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Petrol consumption for business commute by the
Group emitted approximately 3.58 kg NOx, 0.14
kg SOx and 0.26 kg PM during the year, which is
similar to last year.

BIE - tERERWE

A A [ R AR 9 ol AF ) BE A 3.58 A T RUAAL
Y~ 0.14 AT ALY B 0.26 A T S8 FERL » HETR
BH R -

FY 2018 FY 2019
Air Pollutants (kg) —EB N\ B —JUE Change (%)
2RI (AF) W WA W WA 1k (%)
Nitrogen oxides (NOXx)
REALY 3.58 3.58 -
Sulphur oxides (SOx)
AL 0.13 0.14 8%
Particulate matter (PM)
& kL 0.26 0.26 -
EFFLUENT & WASTE 3% K B 8% e

The Group acknowledges the importance of waste
reduction and management and therefore, it
works diligently to implement measures to reduce
and dispose waste generated in its operations

properly.

During the year, the Group generated a total of
approximately 71.86 tonnes of waste with 5.59
tonnes of hazardous waste, mainly chemical
wastewater, and 66.27 tonnes of non-hazardous
waste. The total hazardous and non-hazardous
waste intensities were approximately 0.02 tonnes
and 0.20 tonnes per million pieces of product
produced respectively. We follow the principle
of “reduce, reuse and recycle”. Hazardous and
non-hazardous waste are separately stored and
well-monitored. Licensed waste contractors
are appointed to collect all the waste, including
the recyclables. Non-hazardous waste includes
industrial and office waste. Among 66.27 tonnes
of non-hazardous waste generated, about 73%
were recyclables such as scrap paper and used
zinc plates. Scrap paper is reused for different
purposes, for example, quality checking and
memo-pads for internal use. Rejected printing
products are recycled after shredding. If the
content of the printing products is unchanged, we
reuse the same zinc printing plates for production.

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited

AR WY 9 A A A B e Y TR > B
FRHEATHE M > DAURAD Jo 2% 3 D B T AR o it 2 Y
JEY o

RN o AHEE AR A 71.86 MEBE Y o B 5.59 M 7
AHEBREY > EERLEREK > 1 66.27 W E B R
Yy o B BE S B K R B R A 0.02 M E
JB% FEW) J2 0.20 M S F g By o HRAMBATT A ~
R RERER ] MER > SRERREZES
PRATF N M F BE Y > M T G R AT R 2 7 W
ERTA Y > SIFEY o MEEEY AT TE
B HEAZBEY) o Y 66.27 WA A MY EF W > 4
73% A [ e > T Jes A R 484 FH R B R o B A R
JRT B B e A B R AR AR R D 5 R A
R 5 0 A DR A% BT S o S BRI 9 R A A%
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BRI -tERELIEE

Total Waste (Tonnes)

ARETE) ()
40.13 48.20
FY 2018 FY 2019
TR \AF PR TR U BB
B Hazardous Waste ®Non-hazardous Waste (Disposal) Non-hazardous Waste (Recyclables)
HEBEEY MERBEREY (FH) I E BEREY) ([914%)

The chemical wastewater consists of sewage
discharged and chemical solution used for

AU B2 B 7K A 455 Az A 3 AL v R AR 3 K B A B o
Jo 7 A FR ) % 9 B R B B R A AR R AR HR A > R

production procedures. To ensure no sewage is WA RBIEBLAI5KPEE T KE -

discharged into the sewer, wastewater is reused

and filtered through a liquid waste treatment

system before being discharged.

ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE DATA FRUE GO % %

SUMMARY

Total Resources Consumption

AR FC R
Electricity kWh 1,052,784 1,289,921 (18%)
Hh TRk
Petrol litres 9,652.77 8,806.27 10%
Tl ATt
Total energy intensity GJ/million pieces of product produced 1243 9.93 25%
HRREREE TIREEH. /o o e A
Water m? 327117 4103.87 (20%)
IS RIS
Water intensity m?¥million pieces of product produced 9.92 8.27 20%
FEKH STk T A
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BE MgRELIHRE

Air Emissions

e Rt Pt

Nitrogen oxides (NOx)
AN

Sulphur oxides (SOx)
k=Rl

Particulate matter (PM)
Waste
::E 7]

Total waste generation

W R

Hazardous waste

HEBEEN

Hazardous waste intensity

HE B

Non-hazardous waste

TEE B

Non-hazardous waste intensity

Recyclables

Ie] ey

Sent to landfill
R

tonnes

W

tonnes

L

tonnes/million pieces of product
produced
W

tonnes

L

tonnes/million pieces of product
produced
WA LR

tonnes

L

tonnes

L
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3.58

0.14

0.26

71.86

5.59

0.02

06.27

0.20

48.20

18.07

3.58 0%
0.13 8%
0.26 0%
64.60 1%
6.39 (13%)
0.01 100%
58.20 14%
0.12 67%
40.13 20%
18.07 0%
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BE dgREIHRSE

2

Greenhouse Gases Emissions and Intensity

5 SRR e o
GHG emissions tCOe 562.60 681.28* (17%)
S R W AL R
GHG intensity tCO e/million pieces of product produced 1.71 137 25%
L 5 SR WL R S
Scope | tCOe 25.68 2342 10%
i — W SRR R
Scope Il tCOZe 536.92 657.86* (18%)
i — W AL R
Usage of Packaging Materials
SRR
Paper boxes pieces 41,463 54,663 (24%)
Eivi] fi
Paper boxes intensity pieces/million pieces of product produced 125.77 - -
AR M, /5 i e
Transparent wrap rolls 1,056 2,064 (49%)
et %
Transparent wrap intensity rolls/million pieces of product produced 3.20 - -
BB IEH &/ EE R
Rubber band pieces 438,750 205,450 114%
i i
Rubber band intensity pieces/million pieces of product produced 1,330.83 - -
10z P W/ BE R

TR B M7= — S B S
Loy =g
BATLL T R R s RS A A

RS RRHE - O RO AR > A R AR
i A BUE ~ B R P IREs > DL R A AR AR

*2018 data is restated
OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE

It is our commitment to ensure product quality
throughout the production process, from raw
materials and production to trading and customer
services. Understanding and meeting customers’
expectations, complying with relevant laws,
regulations and standards are our main focus in
the context of product responsibility.

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited ~ Annual Report 2019 4
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UPHOLDING THE HIGHEST STANDARDS

The Group strives to provide consistent and
quality printing products to its customers.
We have formulated policies and objectives
related to the quality management system, and
established and maintained internal policies
related to requirements of ISO and CPSIA. The
Administrative and Sales Departments check
the latest updates on laws and regulations of
relevant regions, especially in relation to FSC™
products, on a regular basis. Updates on applicable
international conventions are identified, so as to
allow prompt response to compliance on product
safety and trading.

International Qualifications [F B2 75

BRI - iERERWE

A+ dp v B e

A SR [ B B K P R A 4G A — i 48R A B R A
dh o B A oy SR R A PR A0 AH BE RGBSR A A
Kbl E R EATEISOMCPS I A RA B Y 79 30 B
SR o AT AN G B 0 P A A R R M [ A R i B
B BEHE » OB FS CT™EE Sh A B > SIS B
T )V [ B A o DA S SRK [l G e R R
B 5 WA B

*Quality management: ISO 9001:2015 Quality Management System

BB 1 1SO 9001:2015 SV E LA S

*Printing proficiency: G7 Master Facility Qualification

ENRIZRF = G7 @8l i 388K -1

*The requirement of the apparel industry: Achievement Award on the Trim Supplier Qualification

Programme

MRAEATIEER - BIEHEAFTrim Supplier Qualification Program s &

*The Consumer Product Safety Improvement Act (“CPSIA”) of the US

FKBTHE M Z 2 BUEEZ ([CPSIAL)
eThe Sales of Goods Ordinance

(& A E b))

*Relevant trading, custom and excise ordinances in respective countries

AU B B 2 ~ 1B e iE BB R

Quality Management /i B & P

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited
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BRI - tERERWE

Our business does not involve advertising
activities. Therefore, this aspect does not have
significant impact on our operations. During
the year, there were no reported incidents of
infringement of laws and regulations regarding
product health safety, labelling and privacy matters
relating to products and services. There were no
cases of product recalls due to product or health
and safety issues.

QUALITY CONTROL DURING PRODUCTION

We follow stringent production procedures
clearly stipulated in the quality manual. The orders
are reviewed carefully in terms of customers’
demands, regulatory requirements and
standards of practices because this
determines the materials to be
prepared in the next stage. Materials

such as paper and ink are inspected

and tested against the agreed
quality requirements. Tight control

and monitoring activities are

Validation
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conducted, especially on colour of Checking

ink to be matched with the samples W
approved by customers, as well

as preventing the mix-up of FSC™

and non-FSC™ products. Three .
main steps of quality control are Ins;)ﬁe%tlon

implemented before, during and after
the printing process.

Non-conforming products are labelled,
separated and recorded for further action
decided by the Production Department. If the
products are being reproduced, they should
undergo all the three steps of quality control
before being delivered. In cases of non-conformity
with FSC™ detected after delivery, selling of the
products is ceased immediately and customers
are notified within three business days. Further
actions are taken to investigate the cause of non-
conformity to prevent recurrence.
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Detailed guidelines are established for all
procedures, including the person responsible,
use of various printing machines, product
development, standards for inspection, storage,
packing and delivery. Internal assessment is
conducted regularly to improve the quality
management system. Each area is evaluated,
from quality control, internal and external
communication, to procurement and training etc.
to decide whether the related guidelines should
be modified. This is to make sure the management
system remains effective and up to the ISO
standard.

LABELLING

Product labelling is important for protecting the
Group’s integrity, especially for FSC™ products.
Practices have been established for checking the
usage of FSC™ labels. FSC™ labels can only be
used after approval by an external certification
body, and it can only be used on products that
satisfy FSC™ requirements. To prevent the selling
of unqualified FSC™ products with false usage of
labels, guidelines have been set for suspending
the transaction and recalling the products if non-
conformity is found. During the year, the Group
was not aware of any non-compliance on laws and
regulations regarding product labelling.

CUSTOMER SATISFACTION

Engaging with customers is essential for
maintaining a high level of customer satisfaction.
Customer satisfaction surveys are conducted
regularly to keep abreast of their concerns,
including but not limited to areas like product
quality, delivery, communication and complaint
handling. Feasible measures for improving
our services are implemented to address their
concerns and suggestions.

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited
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We verify and confirm the designs and
requirements with customers and handle
complaints in a sincere manner. Once a customer
complaint is filed, we investigate complaint issues
and take corrective actions before providing
feedback to customers. All records of complaint
handling and products returned must be
documented in order to monitor the effectiveness
of the complaints handling mechanism.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

Recognising that products and services provided
by suppliers have a direct impact on product
quality, the Group organises procurement
activities according to established procedures
in order to make sure the raw materials are up
to standard. Background checks are conducted
for every new supplier. Selection criteria include
product quality, price, stability of products
delivered, etc. Suppliers and subcontractors
approved by the management are listed on the List
of Qualified Suppliers and are assessed annually.

Suppliers of FSC™ products are managed
separately to ensure the materials provided meet
the FSC™ requirements. FSC™ qualifications of the
suppliers must be verified through FSC™ website
before procurement. Products from suppliers
are inspected and checked against the purchase
orders before proceeding to storage. Records of
procurement are kept for internal auditing.

To ensure compliance throughout the
procurement process, we prohibit any purchases
from suppliers who fail to comply with trading
laws and regulations. Suppliers are asked to
provide valid customs clearance documents
when necessary. If the imported materials contain
substances of species listed on the Convention on
International Trade in Endangered Species of Wild
Fauna and Flora CITES (“CITES”), the Group checks
whether the supplier holds the relevant CITES
permit.
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INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS &
CUSTOMER PRIVACY

Since our business involves printing for various
branded products, we pay high attention to
preventing infringement of intellectual property
rights. Strictly complying with the Copyright
Ordinance and Trade Marks Ordinance, we use
trade marks for production only under the consent
of the customer. We apply control measures to
verify the product designs before production,
ensuring the printed product satisfies the
customer’s requirements and does not infringe
intellectual property rights.

Intellectual property rights (“IPRs”) are an
important part of customer privacy protection.
Together with other customer information, IPRs
are protected under our document and data
control procedure. All confidential documents
are centrally managed by the document control
center, with restrictions on copying and
distribution imposed. During the year, the Group
was not aware of any non-compliance of laws and
regulations regarding intellectual property rights
and customer privacy.

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited
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ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Group has high expectations of its staff in
terms of integrity and honesty. For complying with
the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance, any forms of

R
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corruption such as bribery, extortion, fraud, and
money laundering are strictly prohibited in the
Group. We are committed to achieving the highest
possible standards of openness and integrity
through adopting good corporate governance
systems and effective anti-corruption measures
which involve all levels of employees.

eAttending anti-corruption training conducted by the Independent
Commission Against Corruption (“ICAC”)
2 BB B ALY R E5 5

*Receiving information of the latest anti-corruption laws and regulations,
anti-corruption programmes and policy, etc.

BRI R BIEPIRE AL ~ R EwH B BRSO -

Senior Management
= A PR

eSupervising proper execution of daily operations and business
processes to ensure lawful compliance
B H W S SR R AT DA DR B AL

eOverseeing their subordinates’ business conduct
BB T R R SEAT Ry

eRaising suggestions to the management or relevant departments to
improve the procedures and practices
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Managers and
Supervisors

RBMER

*Complying with the Internal Control and Operational Manual and other
anti-corruption policies
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*Reporting suspicious misbehavior to the Group
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Anti-corruption Management /R &5 &P
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The Group facilitates whistleblowing by
establishing a communication channel for
employees and other stakeholders to raise
concerns over misconduct, malpractices or
irregularities in any matters related to the Group.
Any staff member who becomes aware of any
suspected misconduct is encouraged to report the
same to the designated department via a written
report, formal meeting with protected reporting
coordinator, reporting line or complaint mailbox.

The Group has a confidentiality mechanism in
place to protect whistleblowers from fear of
threats and any disadvantage to the informant’s
employment and relationships. Any cases or
matters suggested to be related to criminal
offence, corruption or bribery are subject to
disciplinary actions including termination of
employment and are reported to the ICAC.

During the year, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on
the Group relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering.

GIVING BACK TO COMMUNITY

The Group strives to operate as a socially
responsible corporate and continually support
local communities through charitable donations.
We focus on environmental protection, poverty
alleviation, community cohesion, healthcare and
other areas.

STRIVING FOR ENVIRONMENTAL
WELLBEING

The Group is committed to protecting the
environment and has been adopting and
promoting environmentally-friendly initiatives.
It is the second year for us to be engaged in
the World Wide Fund for Nature’s Earth Hour
by turning off all unnecessary lightings for an
hour to reduce energy consumption, thereby
demonstrating our commitment to conservation of
natural resources. We have also pledged to adopt
sustainable consumption practices by minimising
waste, especially eliminating use of disposable
plastic products.

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited
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POVERTY ALLEVIATION

We are committed to offering care and support
to the underprivileged in society. We continue to
support the Sowers Action Challenging 12 Hours
Charity Marathon 2019 by donating HK$5,000. It
is organised by the Children’s Home of Sowers
Action with a vision of “no child should be
deprived of education due to poverty.” The
donations are used as multipurpose educational
aid targeting orphans and the underprivileged
in China. The funding covers areas of school
construction, student sponsorship, children’s
home, teacher training and special education
provision.

COMMUNITY COHESION

We have donated HK$5,000 for the Community
Chest 50th Anniversary Walk for Millions 2019,
organised by the Community Chest of Hong
Kong. It aims to foster and reinforce the caring
relationships among families, providing an
optimum environment for children’s development
and assistance for neglected children, and
promote men’s and women'’s personal growth and
development.

HEALTHCARE

The Group also participates the Love Teeth Day
jointly organised by the Community Chest of
Hong Kong, the Hong Kong Dental Association
and Oral Health Education Unit of the Department
of Health, with more than HK$4,000 of donation is
collected.

Employees receive a pack of oral care products
for a certain amount of donations. The collected
funding is used for enhancing oral health services
for the needy provided by the Chest’'s member
social welfare agencies without any administrative
cost deduction. It takes care of teeth health whilst
showing care to those in need.

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited
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OUR PEOPLE

The Group has adopted a people-oriented
management approach, striving to offer its
employees a safe and healthy workplace, and
facilitate them to excel and reach their full
potential.

OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH & SAFETY

The Group strictly complies with the laws and
regulations related to occupational health
and safety, including but not limited to the
Occupational Safety & Health Ordinance, the
Factories and Industrial Undertakings Ordinance
and the Fire Safety Ordinance.

Ensuring health and safety of our employees is one
of our prime responsibilities. By integrating it into
our business operations on all fronts and stating
the responsibility of managerial staff clearly, health
and safety in workplace is safeguarded. A Safety
Committee compromising the General Manager,
the Administration Manager, and representatives
from different departments, is established to
implement a series of health and safety regulations
and measures to ensure the working environment
is safe for our employees.

Monitors the safety and
health system

BRERERRERRR

Formulates an annual
safety plan with targets
and strategies

BRI - iERERWE
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Supervisor
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Safety Committee Structure and its Responsibility &2 Z 5 B4k R H &
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In order to maintain the effectiveness of the
system, we have set a measurable organisational
goal by way of a Key Performance Indicator, on
accident rate and provision of training and safety
inspection. Safe working procedures and rules
have been established for hazardous processes,
and conformity to these procedures and rules is
checked by regular safety inspections.

We conduct internal and external safety
evaluations regularly. The Administration Manager
regularly identifies safety risks, adequacy of
protective equipment and implementation of
safety measures. The review officers from the
OSH Council conduct an annual safety review at
our production sites under the requirements of
the Continual Improvement Safety Programme
Recognition of System (“CISPROS”) Level Two.

PR AT 5 BUR 2R B 8 AR S

B BLAE A DR 265 A it b s

Adopt certified operational equipment that meet governmental requirements

Formulate policies related to chemicals usage and record consumption and storage of flammable items in workshop
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Provide personal protective equipment and conduct regular inspection
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We have made the corresponding improvements
in the Safety Plan. A separate evaluation of noise
level of the printing production workshop is also
conducted to identify any risk of noise disturbance
employees may face and evaluate effectiveness
of ear protectors provided by the Company. It is
expected that our safety management system will
be further optimised in the future.

The Group was not aware of any non-compliance
of relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group relating to
providing a safe working environment and
protection employees from occupational hazards.

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited
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SAFETY TRAINING

To ensure employees follow appropriate safety
guidelines, we conduct regular safety training
for all employees. Managed by the Safety
Committee, each training course is designed
according to different job positions. Training
needs are identified, and competent personnel
are appointed to provide in-house training.
During the year, occupational safety and health
training courses received by employees included
external and internal training, which covers safety
supervision and inspection, behaviours for fire
prevention, fire drills and related policies and
regulations, etc. Effectiveness of the training
programmes is evaluated regularly for further
improvement.

Specific training on handling and use of dangerous
materials is also provided. We also regularly
hold seminars to provide health and safety
information to employees to reduce the incident
rate. After training, supervisors from relevant
departments evaluate the effectiveness and make
corresponding adjustments.

To ensure that all accidents and dangerous
occurrences are timely reported and recorded,
related guidelines are formulated. In the
safety plan, we have a detailed procedure for
accident or incident investigation. Accident
cases are investigated by the Administration
Manager. Employees are required to strictly
abided with the internal policies. Although
no accident investigation training record was
observed, it was found through interviews that all
relevant personnel were aware of the reporting
procedures. There was no accident reported
during the year.

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited
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EMPLOYEE COMMUNICATIONS

The Company encourages mutual communication
between the management and the workforce.
Employees are regularly assessed based on their
attendance and work performance by their
supervisors. Comments and feedbacks are given
to the employees for skills improvement. The
Human Resources (“HR”) Department formulates
plans or strategies for the Company’s talent
management approach with reference to appraisal
results. If our talents propose constructive
ideas to the Company, they may be rewarded or
offered promotion opportunities under the newly
established reward system.

The Group encourages internal communication
and has also established a grievance redressal
system for reporting of any suspicions. If
employees are aware of any suspicious behaviours
or practices, they are expected to report it to the
supervisor or related departments. Employees
can also report the issue to the Board through
channels such as letters, emails and hotlines, etc.

TRAINING & DEVELOPMENT

Annual training courses are held for employees,
mainly covering production and professional
skills for academic qualifications. The HR
Department prepares the annual training plan of
the Company according to the needs of different
departments. Personnel from the HR Department
also participate in training sessions to further
understand the progress of training courses and
collect feedback.

We design specialised training courses for various
employees. New employees are required to
participate in induction training and managerial
staff receive training on personal development.
All employees in the production area are required
to receive safety training for safe operations,
practices, relevant laws and regulations.

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited
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To equip our talents with the knowledge and skills
necessary for their positions, training programmes
related to relevant quality standards such as ISO
9001 and FSC™ are provided. Specific training is
arranged for employees involved in production
of FSC™-products. Trainers for FSC™ education
programmes, from both external institutions and
internal talents, are required to possess related
professional qualifications.

LABOUR PRACTICES

We strictly comply with the Employment
Ordinance, Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, Minimum Wage Ordinance,
Employees’” Compensation Ordinance and other
relevant laws and regulations to protect the
legal rights and welfare benefits employees are
entitled to. We maintain an open, fair and equal
environment for all our employees. Employment
policies in respect of salary, compensation,
working hours, overtime, performance evaluation,
recruitment, reimbursement and statutory
holidays are listed in the Employee Handbook.
Equal opportunity and anti-discrimination
policies are implemented to ensure no one is
discriminated against due to gender, age, disability
or ethnicity, etc.

We prohibit employment of child or forced labour.
During recruitment process, the Human Resources
Department investigates candidates’ educational
qualifications and personal backgrounds to ensure
there is no child or forced labour. During the year,
the Group was not aware of any non-compliance
with laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the Group relating to compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination and other benefits and welfare,
nor were there any reported cases regarding child
or forced labour.

We care about employees’ lives and help them
achieve a work-life balance. During the year,
we organised various activities for employee
engagement, for example, 2019 Spring Dinner,
Love Teeth Day etc. These activities can help
employees to cultivate a sense of belonging and to
strengthen cohesion and solidarity.

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BR -HIEREIHLE

HKEX ESG CONTENT INDEX

FER B - R FHRNEHT

issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

KPIs HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks
P AHEREE | FBRDCRY - LB R RTDER T, ik

A. Environmental

A B/

Aspect A1: General Disclosure ENVIRONMENTAL
Emissions Information on: COMPLIANCE

& A1 : (@) the policies; and BIEAM

Pk (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the

— I
A R BE SR B 1 2 SRR ~ K R MBS ~ A5 e S B e M A A
(@) BOK: K
(b)  JNY BB AT N AT ER S B A Bl 5 SR R R
KPIA1.1 |The types of emissions and the respective emissions data. AIR EMISSIONS
Bk | e UM B PR g ZESR BRI
AL
KPIA1.2 |Greenhouse gas emissions in total and, where appropriate, intensity. AIR EMISSIONS
Bgg | WK &, I - ZER I
HEiAL2
KPI A1.3 | Total hazardous waste produced and, where appropriate, intensity. EFFLUENT & WASTE
Bk | P M AR R, I, JEE 7K B g% )
HELAL3
KPIA1.4 |Total non-hazardous waste produced and, where appropriate, intensity. EFFLUENT & WASTE
PSR AR | BT S S AR T, WO A JiE 7 S g 52
HEEA1.4
KPIA1.5 |Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results achieved. RESOURCES
Y-SR | 00 R AV S P 5 7t 2 P A5 R CONSERVATION
HELALS HIRHEA
KPIA1.6 | Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, EFFLUENT & WASTE
B#t4 | reduction initiatives and results achieved. K BL s B )
WELAL.6 | R B T T R T A 4 A A B B B AR
Aspect A2: Use | General Disclosure RESOURCES
of Resources | Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw materials. | CONSUMPTION
Ji i A2 : — i i HHUFEH
a8 AR IR (EAGREIR - 7K S S AJERRE) BIBSR o
KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total and intensity. ENERGY
BHSbHOE | S A A BB I S IR AR I AR A R - AEUR
HBiA2.1
KPIA2.2 |Water consumption in total and intensity. WATER
BB | BB R - PIS
HEEA2.2
KPI A2.3 | Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results achieved. RESOURCES
PSR | A HE IR st it B S B AR CONSERVATION
HEiA2.3 BRI
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BE HERELIHRE

KPIs HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks
PAHEREE | FBRDCRY - R E R RTDER T, ik
KPIA2.4 | Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for the | WATER
WEA | purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results achieved. K
MEEA2.4 | HESRIOE FIKIR L T4 FE 0 1) DL B 3T K Bkt w0 BB A Rt
KPI A2.5 |Total packaging materials used for finished products and, if applicable, with | RESOURCES
Bk | reference to per unit produced. CONSUMPTION
WEEA2.5 | RS BT bR A i R, Y P e A o HHFEH
Aspect A3: The | General Disclosure RESOURCES

Environment

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the environment and natural

CONSERVATION;

and Natural resources. RAW MATERIALS
Resources — e % MANAGEMENT
JEi T A3 : IRAR AT NS ERBE I R AR I B F RS B Y BURE - BHURETAY
BRBE B R AR B JEUAERHE B
KPI A3.1 Description of significant impacts of activities on the environment and RESOURCES
B#A3 | natural resources and actions taken to manage them. CONSERVATION;
TEEA3 | HRSEBHE B B R R AR IR T I TR IUE B B B AT E) o RAW MATERIALS
MANAGEMENT
A 5
JE AR B
B. Social
B. i€
Aspect B1: General Disclosure LABOUR PRACTICES;
Employment Information on: EMPLOYEE
J¥ i B1 ¢ (@) the policies; and COMMUNICATIONS
B (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the | JE{E1E#1 5
issuer H T
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest
periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.
— e 5%
A BRI B AR ~ SRR T~ TARRE ~ B - PR S - ool - R R R
il
(@) B K
(b) AP EBAT AAT TR B R B 2 S LI B R -
Aspect B2: General Disclosure OCCUPATIONAL
Health and Information on: HEALTH & SAFETY
Safety (a) the policies; and Tkl e e % 2
¥ i B2 : (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
fil e B %2 4 issuer
relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.
— e 5%
A B2 A TAREREE e DR e 08 B E S I S e A v
(@ BUR; K
(b) AP ERAT ANAT TS B R B S L Y R -
KPIB2.3 | Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, how they | OCCUPATIONAL
W% | are implemented and monitored. HEALTH & SAFETY
FEEB2.3 | M PR AN IR A e B2 A - DL BT R SR i TR R T % 4
Aspect B3: General Disclosure TRAINING &
Development | Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties at work. | DEVELOPMENT
and Training Description of training activities. B s

JE i B3 :
R B H

— I
A BASRTHRE B BAT TA I B0 0 B b BRI BOR o BERREFDIGEE) -

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited

Annual Report 2019 4£#

73



74

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BR -HIEREIHLE

KPIs HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks
PSSR | FRR SRS - Hf BRI Bk T, ik
Aspect B4: General Disclosure LABOUR PRACTICES
Labour Information on: TR AR 1 )
Standards (@) the policies; and
J¥tiii B4 : (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
5 THE issuer
relating to prevention of child or forced labour.
— e
A B 1L 3 T a5 LAY
(@) BOR; &
(b) 3P BFEEAT AT TR B A B W SR F R
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and | LABOUR PRACTICES
Bsksi | forced labour. AR 1 3]
FEEB4.1 | SRR R A AL P A DA S TR R L
KPIB4.2 | Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered. LABOUR PRACTICES
BHOR AR | 0020 TR % 2 AL IR 3 B AT TR 1 00 B BRI 25 B (Y
Hi#iB4.2
Aspect B5: General Disclosure SUPPLY CHAIN
Supply Chain | Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain MANAGEMENT
Management | —Bt% 3 A PR
J¥i i B5 : A T MR G 1y BT AL P S\ BB -
A A B o . . . . .
KPIB5.2 | Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers | SUPPLY CHAIN
WAk | where the practices are being implemented, how they are implemented and | MANAGEMENT
/1 B5.2 | monitored. 36 HE 4 B
AT T PR OB TR AR A o 1k EC AT BRI DR RE R R ~ LR AT B B
PIAT R R GE T s
Aspect B6: General Disclosure UPHOLDING THE
Product Information on: HIGHEST STANDARDS
Responsibility |(a) the policies; and He i RS
J¥% 1iii B6 : (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
AT issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to
products and services provided and methods of redress.
— et
A BT R AL S AIRBS A B2 A - B PSR R AARR R L B Al RO Y
(@) BOK: &
(b) AP EAT AAT TSR R B 2 S L) SR -
KPIB6.3 | Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual INTELLECTUAL
PSS | property rights. PROPERTY RIGHTS &
TBLB6.3 | il DAk T AR e R A R A L CUSTOMER PRIVACY
ARkERESLR P AARR
KPIB6.4 | Description of quality assurance process and product recall procedures. UPHOLDING THE
BHYRAR | 00T B A R S e s TR HIGHEST STANDARDS;
15 B6.4 CUSTOMER
SATISFACTION
HERF I A 5
H S
KPIB6.5 |Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how they are | INTELLECTUAL
W#43% | implemented and monitored. PROPERTY RIGHTS &
HEEB6.5 | M L ORI AL RRBOR > DB BT R B i 3 - CUSTOMER PRIVACY
ARk AL P AL RR
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BE HERELIHRE

KPIs HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks
PAHEREE | FBRDCRY - R E R RTDER T, ik
Aspect General Disclosure ANTI-CORRUPTION
B7: Anti- Information on: BT
corruption (@) the policies; and
JE Wi B7 : (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
R TG issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
— e
A BB LM~ B~ TR DR RS
(@) BOK; K
(b) 3N BFEEAT A AT TR B A B s SR R R
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought ANTI-CORRUPTION
BEA | against the issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the RE5
##B7.1 | outcomes of the cases.
A RESR I P 8847 A AR B3 I DR A5 BT A SRR P B TR AR o
KPIB7.2 |Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, how | ANTI-CORRUPTION
WL | they are implemented and monitored. R ETG
EEB7.2 | B WA B R > DA B AT R R o
Aspect B8: General Disclosure GIVING BACKTO
Community Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the communities where | COMMUNITY
Investment the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into consideration the communities’ | [l €
i i B8 interests.
I B ¥E — e

A B DA Ik 22 B Y AR AT N HEE T A Ak I ) 75 A e DR L ST 4% 58l o % e I ) i 1
4 o

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution. GIVING BACKTO
Bgk G | SRR RIS o COMMUNITY
#82B8.1 ol AL

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus area. GIVING BACKTO
B | A S G T ) U o COMMUNITY
#8B8.2 [Dfi-giNc
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Directors’ Report
EREHRE

The Board is pleased to present their annual report
and the audited financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 30 June 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company,
the principal activities of its principal subsidiaries
are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business during the year,
which includes a discussion of the uncertainties
and opportunities facing by the Group, an analysis
of the Group’s performance using financial key
performance indicators, particulars of important
events affecting the Group during the year,
an indication of likely future developments in
the Group’s business and discussion on the
relationships with its stakeholders, can be found
in the section headed “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages
4 to 11 of this annual report. The discussion forms
part contained in this directors’ report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

The Group recognises the importance of
compliance with rules and regulations and the
impact of non-compliance with such rules and
regulations on the business. The Group has been
allocating system and staff resources to ensure
ongoing compliance with rules and regulations
and to maintain cordial working relationships
with regulators effectively through effective
communications. During the year ended 30 June
2019, the Group has complied, to the best of our
knowledge, with all relevant rules and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Company.
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USE OF PROCEEDS AND CHANGE IN USE OF
PROCEEDS

The Company’s shares have been listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange since 18 May
2016.The receipts of proceeds, net of listing
expenses (including underwriting fee), including
both recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income and deducted from the share premium
from the Company’s listing were approximately
HK$36,100,000 (the “Net Proceeds”). In respect of
the proposed applications set out in the section
headed “Net Proceeds from the Share Offer”of the
announcement of offer price and allotment results
dated 17 May 2016 (the “Allotment Results”),
the Board has resolved to change the use of the
unutilised Net Proceeds, the details of the utilised
Net Proceeds up to 30 June 2019 and the proposed
change of use of proceeds are summarised as
below:

Planned use of
Net Proceeds
as stated in
the Allotment
Results

(e
B
ZitHng

Use of Net Proceeds
Bt m NG

HKS million
[ 49

Directors’ Report
EFEERE

Pt F3k BN 3 B S W0 F sk N 3

R ONAE T H )\ H R TR A2 B
B CLA £ 5 48 4 J% JC At 4 i Wi 4
@*m%%tﬁﬁiiﬂﬁ@

m TR WO Z P A RS A
03 iﬁ(rﬁﬁ%%%kﬂiﬁﬁﬁﬁj) o MR H % —
FANFIA U H BB SR B AR A (TR
Egnnﬁﬁj) [ 4y 8% 45 WY o A5k JEL Y 900 ] — B T S
&

?ﬁé?
&
= B

F3& > 35 O v B O B A P A sk S A
s RZZ N A =1 H A A R
ﬂﬁﬁ&%ﬁﬁ%*ﬁ%%ﬁﬂﬁ@@ﬁﬁ%ﬂw

Utilised Net
Proceeds

up to

30 June 2019
220
AHZTH
L e
AHH
HKS million
i

Unutilised Net
Proceeds

as at

30 June 2019
i S k2
AZEH
3 il
HKS million
il

Proposed change
of use

of proceeds
SRS Rt
HKS million

(i £90

Expected time
for utilisation
G
HKS million

[iF. 27

Acquisition of one set of six-colour offset ~~ BEA— A& IR NIA R
printing machine (the “Acquisition”) (THE BBl ])
Expansion of sales and marketing team BABERTSERANR 42 19 23 - NA AR
Research and development of the EARAS TR NS 88 - 88 - NARER
know-how of the application of heat
transfer technology
Continuous upgrading of our ERPsystem ~ f#4E MK ERP 25 30 29 01 01 On or before
31 December 2019
SFMECA
i vd ]
Expansion and/or upgrading of BREBAAERAR /5 38 10 28 - NARER
production facilities or development Tt SR
of potential projects through
acquisition or cooperation
Working capitel and general coporate ~ AEEX A R—HAT i 07 07 - 53 On or before
purpose 31 December 2019
A
Syt ed |
Development of potential projects BRI A R - - - 139 Under evaluation
through acquisition or cooperation ik
Total it 36.1 168 193 193
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REASON FOR CHANGE IN USE OF
PROCEEDS

The Acquisition was completed and the printing
machine was put into full operation in 2018. The
unutilised Net Proceeds of the Acquisition of
approximately HK$5.3 million was due to the
foreign currency exchange difference arisen
from settlement and special discount obtained
from vendor. To better utilise such unutilised Net
Proceeds, the Company decides to reallocate the
same to working capital and general corporate
purpose.

Furthermore, in relation to (i) expansion of
sales and marketing team; (ii) research and
development of the know-how of the application
of heat transfer technology; and (iii) expansion
and/or upgrading of production facilities
(collectively, the “Original Plans”), due to the
global geopolitical and economic instability
around the world and the US-Mainland trade
and technology tensions, the Company did not
formulate a concrete timeframe for application
of the unutilised Net Proceeds allocated for the
Original Plans. To better utilise such unutilised
Net Proceeds, the Company decides to reallocate
the same to the development of potential
projects through acquisition or cooperation.

The Board considered the impact of the proposed
change in the use of the proceeds on the Group’s
business and believes that, in view of the Group’s
operation and business updates, the reallocation
of the unutilised Net Proceeds will facilitate
efficient allocation of financial resources and
strengthen the future development of the Group,
and it is appropriate and in the best interests of
the Company and its shareholders as a whole.
The Board will continuously assess the plans
for the use of Net Proceeds to cope with the
changing market conditions and strive for better
performance for the Group.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND
PERFORMANCE

The environmental policies and performance of
the Group for the year ended 30 June 2019 is set
out in the section headed “Environmental, Social
and Governance Report” on pages 42 to 75 of this
annual report.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES AND
CUSTOMERS

The key relationships with the Group’s employees
and customers is discussed under section headed
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report”
on pages 42 to 75 of this annual report.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH SUPPLIERS

The Group understands that the sustainable
supply of quality products is indispensable for
long-term business development. In view of this,
the Group has adopted a supplier management
policy to ensure quality and sustainability of
product supply. The Group selects its suppliers
prudently. The suppliers need to fulfill certain
assessment criteria of the Group, including
meeting the Group’s standards for the quality
of raw materials, reputation, environmental
friendliness, production capacity, financial
capability and experience. We view our suppliers
as partners who make important contributions to
the success of our business.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year are set out
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income on page 101 of this
annual report.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 30 June 2019, the Company’s reserves
available for distribution, calculated in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Law,
Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands, amounted to
approximately HK$70,683,000. After the end of the
reporting period, the Board proposed a dividend
in respect of the year ended 30 June 2019 of HK5.00
cents per ordinary share (2018: HK5.00 cents
per ordinary share), amounting to HK$9,200,000
(2018: HK$9,200,000) (note 11 to the consolidated
financial statements). This dividend has not been
recognised as a liability at the end of the reporting
period.

DIVIDEND

The Board resolved to recommend to the
shareholders of the Company of a final dividend of
HK5.00 cents per ordinary share for the year ended
30 June 2019 (2018: HK5.00 cents per ordinary
share) to be paid on Friday, 20 December 2019
to the shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on Monday,
9 December 2019.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements of the property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out
in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group
and of the Company during the year are set out
in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on page 104 and set out in note 21 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

DONATIONS

During the year ended 30 June 2019, charitable and
other donations made by the Group amounted to
HK$10,000 (2018: HK$65,000).

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The 2019 AGM will be held on Friday, 29 November
2019.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining the identity of the
shareholders entitled to attend and vote at the
2019 AGM, the register of members will be closed
from Tuesday, 26 November 2019 to Friday, 29
November 2019, both days inclusive, during which
period no transfer of shares will be registered. All
transfers of shares accompanied by the relevant
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
transfer office and share registrar in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Monday, 25 November 2019.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share
capital for the year ended 30 June 2019 are set
out in note 20(a) to the consolidated financial
statements.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, redeemed or sold any of the
Company’s listed securities during the reporting
period.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate
insurance cover for Directors’ and officers’
liabilities in respect of legal actions against its
Directors and senior management arising from
corporate activities. The permitted indemnity
provision is in force for the benefit of the Directors
as required by section 470 of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong)
(the “Hong Kong Companies Ordinance”) when
the Report of the Board of the Directors prepared
by the Directors is approved in accordance with
section 391(1)(a) of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out
on page 168.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and
up to the date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr Fung Man Wai Samson
Mr Fung Man Kam
Mr Fung Kar Chue Alexander

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Dr Loke Yu
Ms Fung Po Yee
Ms Sung Ting Yee

In accordance with, amongst others, Articles 83(3)
and 84(1) of the Articles, Mr Fung Man Kam and
Mr Fung Kar Chue Alexander will retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming 2019 AGM.

INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION

The Company has received from each of the INEDs
a confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all of the INEDs are independent.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The remuneration policy in respect of the
employees of the Group is formulated on the basis
of merit, qualifications and competence.

Emoluments of the Directors are decided, based
on factors such as their duties, responsibilities
and contribution to the Company, the prevailing
market conditions, time commitment and the
desirability of performance-based remuneration.
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The remuneration of the Directors and the
details of the five highest-paid individuals of
the Company are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER’S INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 30 June 2019, the interests or short positions
of the Directors in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company, its holding
company, any of its subsidiaries and other
associated corporation (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO”))
which were notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to
be entered in the register referred to therein, or
which were required, pursuant to the Model Code,
are set out below:

(i) The Company

£

Directors’ Report
EFEERE

5 I S AR 2 ) T B v S I 2 A O A
BB R M8 [ 9

AR B AT AR AR By - A R By B R Y
B

REF-NAEANA=1H EFRARLAE - K
JBe 2 ) 2 HE AT A R 2 ) B Al A M 2 I (o 9
AU B3 571 Tl g M B e ([ 8 2 00 1 1k
Bl 1) 585 XV ) B By ~ AH BB B Al v A AR
5 27 B BRI 3 XV IR 58 7 e 8 43l JH I AR A v e
Yt 22 P 48 % 114 BEE i 0 T (B A AR Rl O % M)
] FHY 2% “5 AUk SR AR B0 2 B IO RE SR SRR )
SO Bl 2 M ) B R 1) 45 352 38 A L R Bk
P 25 T P R 28 IR SRR A S S A e
BRI T

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in

Number of ordinary
shares/underlying

Long position/ shares held the Company
Name of Director Nature of interest short position PiFe @ A5 A 7] JBeRE iy
W4 PR W8/ R JBe by iy ¥ H BE&E 2 e
Mr Samson Fung Interest of controlled Long position 138,000,000 75%
SRk corporation (Note 1) iFE
B A v R RS (FFRE 1)
Mr David Fung Interest of controlled Long position 138,000,000 75%

P& b i
JA R ] > vl B RE AR (P 1)

Note 1: Mr Samson Fung and Mr David Fung are the
beneficial owners of 62% and 38%, respectively, of
the issued share capital of HSSP Limited (“HSSP“)
and are deemed to be interested in the shares in
the Company held by HSSP by virtue of Mr Samson
Fung and Mr David Fung being entitled to exercise
or control the exercise of one-third or more of the
voting power at general meetings of HSSP.
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(ii) Associated corporation

(ii) M1 H

Number of
shares held/
Name of associated interested Percentage of
Name of Director corporation Capacity/nature Pi%s B HERR Y shareholding
WA f R i 45 B4 Iy ¥ H P Al R /3 be
Mr Samson Fung (Note 1) HSSP Beneficial interest 62 62%
U5 CfReA (RFRET) HSSP jigny £
Mr David Fung (Note 1) HSSP Beneficial interest 38 38%
PGS (k) HSSP €y

Note 1: Mr Samson Fung and Mr David Fung are the
beneficial owners of 62% and 38%, respectively, of
the issued share capital of HSSP and are deemed
to be interested in the shares in the Company
held by HSSP by virtue of Mr Samson Fung and Mr
David Fung being entitled to exercise or control the
exercise of one-third or more of the voting power at
general meetings of HSSP.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors
of the Company and/or any of their spouses
or children under eighteen years of age had
any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the
Company, or its holding company, any of its
subsidiaries and other associated corporations as
at 30 June 2019 as recorded in the register required
to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share
Option Scheme”, no equity-linked agreements
were entered into during the year or subsisted at
the end of the year ended 30 June 2019.

Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted the Share Option Scheme
pursuant to the written resolutions of the
shareholders passed on 26 April 2016. Pursuant to
the Share Option Scheme, the Board may, at its
discretion, offer to grant an option to subscribe
new shares in aggregate not exceeding 30% of the
shares in issue from time to time.
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The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme
are summarised as follows:

0]

2

Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is
to provide an incentive for the participants
(defined below) to work with commitment
towards enhancing the value of the Company
and the shares in the Company for the benefit
of our shareholders and to attract and retain
persons whose contribution is or may be
beneficial to the growth and development of
the Group.

Participants of the Share Option Scheme and
the basis of determining the eligibility of the
Participants

The Board may at its discretion grant options
to (i) any executive Director, or employees
(whether full time or part time) of the
Company, any member of the Group or any
entity in which any member of the Group holds
an equity interest (“Invested Entity”); (ii) any
non-executive Directors (including INEDs) of
the Company, any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity; (iii) any supplier of goods or
services of the Company, any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity; (iv) any customer
of the Company, any member of the Group or
any Invested Entity; and (v) any such persons
(including but not limited to consultants,
advisers, contractors, business partners or
service providers of the Company or any
member of the Group or any Invested Entity)
who in the absolute discretion of the Board
has contributed or will contribute to the Group
(individually, the “Participant”, or collectively,
the “Participants”).

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited
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C))

(5)

Total number of shares available for issue
under the Share Option Scheme

The limit on the total number of shares of the
Company which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to
be exercised under the Share Option Scheme
and any other scheme(s) of any member
of the Group must not exceed 10% of the
nominal amount of all the issued share capital
of the Company as at the Listing Date (which
shall be 18,400,000 shares) unless approval of
the shareholders of the Company has been
obtained, and which must not in aggregate
exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to
time.

As at the date of this report, the total number
of shares available for issue under the Share
Option Scheme is 18,400,000 shares, which
represents 10% of the issued shares as at the
date of this report.

Maximum entitlement of each Participant

The total number of shares issued and which
may be issued upon exercise of all options
(whether exercised, cancelled or outstanding)
granted to any Participant in any 12-month
period up to the date of grant shall not exceed
1% of the issued shares as at the date of grant.

Basis for determining the subscription price

The subscription price for the shares under
the options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme will be a price determined by
the Board at the time of grant of the options,
and will be not less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the
date of grant which must be a business day;
(ii) the average closing price of the shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of a share.
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(6) Time of exercise of options

An option may be exercised in accordance
with the terms of the Share Option Scheme
at any time during a period to be notified by
the Board to each Participant who accepts
the grant of any options, which must not be
more than 10 years from the date of the grant
(subject to acceptance) of the option.

(7) Payment on acceptance of option

HK$1.00 is payable by the Participant who
accepts the grant of an option in accordance
with the terms of the Share Option Scheme on
acceptance of the grant of an option.

(8) Remaining life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and
effective for a period of ten years commencing
on the Listing Date, i.e. 18 May 2016.

Other details of the Share Option Scheme are set
out in the Prospectus dated 30 April 2016.

No share option under the Share Option Scheme
has been granted by the Company since its
adoption and up to the date of this annual report.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 30 June 2019, so far as is known to the
Directors, the following persons (other than the
Directors of the Company) had interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company which were required to be notified
to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.
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Number of
ordinary shares/
underlying shares

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in

Long position/ held the Company

Nature of interest short position  Fifs@BEH, < AAA G BHERY

Al g PR IS 3 BB by B H R ONEpid:a

HSSP? (Note) Beneficial interest Long position 138,000,000 75%
HSSPT (Ffik) iR LiyES

Note: It is directly wholly-owned by Mr Samson Fung and Mr
David Fung. They are controlling shareholders holding
138,000,000 shares of the Company.

T HSSP, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands with limited liability on 8 October 2015.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not
aware of any other persons who have interests or
short positions in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Other than the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” disclosed above, the Company, its
holding company or any of its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was at no time during the year
a party to any arrangements which would enable
the Directors to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate. Save
as disclosed in this annual report, none of the
Directors or any of their spouses or children under
the age of 18 was granted any right to subscribe for
the shares or debentures of the Company or any
other body corporate, or had exercised any such
right during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a
service agreement dated 25 November 2015 with
the Company for an initial fixed term of three years
commencing from 1 December 2015 and expired
on 30 November 2018. On 30 November 2018, each
of them entered into a new service agreement
with the Company for a term of three years with
effect from 1 December 2018. Each of the executive
Directors may receive a discretionary bonus, the
amount of which will be determined by reference
to the comments of the Remuneration Committee
of the Company.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors
have signed a letter of appointment dated 26 April
2016 with the Company for an initial fixed term of
two years commencing from the Listing Date and
expired on 25 April 2018. On 24 April 2018, each
of them entered into a new letter of appointment
with the Company for a term of two years with
effect from 26 April 2018.

None of the Directors who are proposed for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Saved as disclosed in notes 8 and 23(i) to the
consolidated financial statements, no transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance to which
the Company, its holding company or any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and
in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the
code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by the Directors. Having made specific enquiries
of all Directors, the Company confirmed that
all Directors have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code.

CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

The Group has entered into a number of
transactions with parties who, upon the listing
of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange,
became connected persons of the Company under
the Listing Rules. Details of such transactions are
set out below.

Connected Persons

(1) Karwin Corporation Limited (“Karwin”)
Karwin is principally engaged in the business
of property investment and is wholly-owned by
Mr Samson Fung.

(2) Super Champion Limited (“Super Champion”)
Super Champion is principally engaged in the
business of property investment and is wholly-
owned by Mr David Fung.

Fully exempt continuing connected transactions

The following connected transactions constitute

fully exempt continuing connected transactions

for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.
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TENANCY AGREEMENTS A i

Background GE)

(a) A Bl 3 o o L

(@) Tenancy agreement relating to Karwin

On 10 December 2018, Hang Sang (Siu Po)
entered into a tenancy agreement with Karwin
for the leasing of the property at House 24
(comprising the ground, first and second
floors and the terrace thereof, parking area,
yard, garden area and slope), The Riviera, 10
Pik Sha Road, Silverstrand, Sai Kung, New
Territories, Hong Kong with a saleable area
of approximately 2,208.8 sq.ft. to the Group
for a current monthly rental of HK$80,000
(inclusive of rates, service charges and other
outgoings) commencing from 1 January 2019
to 31 December 2020. The leased property is
used as a director’s quarter of the Group. The
aggregate rental payments payable to Karwin
for the years ended 30 June 2018 and 2019
approximately HK$840,000 and HK$900,000
respectively.

(b) Tenancy agreement relating to Super

Champion

On 10 December 2018, Hang Sang (Siu Po)
entered into a tenancy agreement with Super
Champion for the leasing of the property at
Flat A, Ground Floor, Content Lodge (duplex
apartment A on G/F and 1/F and the garden
adjoining to the apartment), 140 Waterloo
Road, Kowloon Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong
with a saleable area of approximately 2,869.7
sq.ft. to the Group for a current monthly rental
of HK$80,000 (inclusive of rates, service charges
and other outgoings) commencing from 1
January 2019 to 31 December 2020. The leased
property is used as a director’s quarter of the
Group. The aggregate rental payments payable
to Super Champion for the years ended 30 June
2018 and 2019 are approximately HK$840,000
and HK$900,000 respectively.
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TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and
exemption available to shareholders by reason of
their holding of the Company’s securities.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the percentage of sales
attributable to the largest customer and the five
largest customers of the Group is 4.3% and 16.0%
respectively.

During the year, the largest supplier and the
five largest suppliers of the Group accounted
for approximately 15.3% and 44.1% of the total
purchases of the Group respectively.

None of the Directors, their associates or any
substantial shareholder (which to the knowledge
of the Directors owns 5% or more of the number
of issued shares of the Company) had an interest in
the major suppliers or customers set out above.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the subsidiaries of the Company are
set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available
to the Company and to the knowledge of the
Directors, the Directors confirm that the Company
has maintained sufficient public float as required
under the Listing Rules during the year and up to
the date of this report.

COMPETITION AND CONFLICT OF
INTERESTS

During the year, save as disclosed in this annual
report, none of the Directors or substantial
shareholders of the Company or any of their
respective associates has engaged in any business
that competes or may compete with the business
of the Group.

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited
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A BE > AR B KK P KA KRE P A W8
H o e s ik 4.3% % 16.0% °

TAAAE FE > A 45 1 B KBt E B M B E 7 43 A
A K [ B i AR 40 15.3% M 44.1% o
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report on the corporate governance practices
adopted by the Company is set out on pages 19 to
41 of this annual report.

AUDITOR

At the conclusion of the 2019 AGM, Grant
Thornton Hong Kong Limited shall retire as auditor
of the Company and a resolution will be submitted
in the 2019 AGM to re-appoint Grant Thornton
Hong Kong Limited as the auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Fung Man Wai Samson
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director
Hong Kong, 20 September 2019

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited
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Independent Auditor’s Report
b RvR 3 L

Q GrantThornton
H[E

[=]

To the members of Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding
Company Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group”) set out on pages 101 to 167, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June
2019, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 30 June 2019, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s “Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants”
(the “Code”) and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

<

Independent Auditor’s Report
b RvR 3 L

o i i 2

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional o) S 2 TR AR R A Y B A B
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the i A S A A A T 5 R A A A
consolidated financial statements of the current period. B I o Ja b g IE O AR A A A
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit B A B B R St H 7 S R A i B
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and B o FRAM A € i L =5 T PR 48k BB Y

in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a B, o

separate opinion on these matters.

Revenue recognition

The key audit matter
I S i 290

Please refer to note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements and the accounting
policies as set out on note 2.3.

i 2 Bl AR B B A P RE 5 SR BB W 2.3 2
FRTEUR

Revenue from customers principally
comprises revenue from the sales of apparel
labels and packaging printing products.

W% ) Eﬁ%ﬁi%ﬁﬂﬁ%@ﬁ&@%@ﬁ]%
fih P 89 5 WA B

Sales of apparel labels and packaging printing
products are recognised at a point in time
when the customers obtain control of the
promised goods in the contract.

JI e A % B 5 Dl i Y B A R P U
AR R T o 42 ) R I D,

We identified the recognition of revenue as
a key audit matter because revenue is one of
the key performance indicators of the Group
and it is a significant audit risk area.

«‘ﬂdf‘ﬂﬂ‘?f 68 0 W e R a2 R R T
R R A G T A B
&Ej(%%ﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂ% °

How the matter was addressed in our audit

AE 7 i v g % 29 I

Our audit procedures to assess the revenue recognition
included the following:

SR W i e R ) P A SRR e b B DL T AR

* reviewing sales orders from customers, on a
sample basis, to understand the terms of the sales
transactions to assess if the Group’s revenue
recognition criteria were in accordance with
the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;

o UMby AFRIK AR P Z ST R > DL T R
Gy Z kK > PE T RPAl B A T A i R A R S A

FHATE R ZBUE 5

o assessing, on a sample basis, whether specific
revenue transactions around the financial year end
had been recognised in the appropriate period by
comparing the transactions selected with relevant
underlying documentation, including goods
delivery notes and the terms of sale as set out in the
sales invoices;

o DLy SN Ll e i A2 By B BRI SO > B B i
L K G A8 PR P SR S B AR o A R B BUAE R Y
A Wi i A8 B A LI T 0 D e .

e reviewing if there are any significant adjustments
to revenue during the year, understanding the
reasons for such adjustments and comparing the
details of the adjustments with relevant underlying
documentation.

o EPFENERA LT E KPR TR N K&
A i 28 A0 B0 LR R SC PR AT B L
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B BE RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)
o e it 2 5 (A

Expected credit losses (“ECL"”) assessment of trade receivables

U5 HEWBGK SR TEO0 4 80 8 ([ BU A £ 38 1) A

The key audit matter
IR Sl

Please refer to notes 4 and 16 to the
consolidated financial statements and the
accounting policies as set out on note 2.9.

i 2 P AR B BB AR I R 4 B2 16 DA B BRFE 2.9 P
WERHBOR -

As at 30 June 2019, the Group had trade
receivables of HK$4,660,000, net of loss
allowance of HK$1,079,000.

R JUERA=TH - BEREH 5K
K 4,660,000 #TT » 411 5 1848 i 1,079,000 #
7‘5 o

Loss allowance for trade receivables
are based on management’s estimate of
the lifetime ECL to be incurred, which
is estimated by taking into account the
historical credit loss experience, existing
market conditions as well as forward-looking
estimates, all of which involve a significant
degree of management judgement.

S5 M WAL B SELHR 0 7% AL 5 B0 7
2 A B BUDI S B AE 1 Bt 5 BT 2
0 5 I O £ S0 AELA A - BLAT 0SB
FET AR > 4795 R e L 1 B 4 o

We have identified the ECL assessment
of trade receivables as a key audit matter
because of the assessment involves
significant management’s judgement and use
of estimates.

B B2 o IR W S TELIOA £ 8 s 4L Al ) 2
IR T I o J DR A i A O M KA B
FUE KA AL o

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited

How the matter was addressed in our audit

e i v o g S % 29

Our audit procedures to assess the ECL allowance of trade
receivables included the following:

SHLGPPA B S MBS VL TR 5 50 M 4L 945 4 T ) 0y o R e o
HUTR

reviewing the Group’s procedures on credit policy
given to customers.

B HAEMRME PR EEBORRR -

checking the correctness of the ageing analysis by
customer on a sample basis.

AR AL AL R P RO MR 0 i e A

assessing the reasonableness of management’s ECL
allowance estimates by examining the information
used by management to form such judgements,
including testing the accuracy of the historical
default data, evaluating whether the historical
loss rates are appropriately adjusted based
on current economic conditions and forward-
looking information and examining the actual
losses recorded during the current financial year
and assessing whether there was an indication of
management bias when recognising loss allowance.

0 05 B TR0 5 606 LR 0 7 00 1 1 2
G AT B 8 2 BV o 4 I kR 0 0 240 0B
S 8 10 A RS AL 2 A R
U 022 e 2 5 B A T G 4
B 105 M (G2 B
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included in
the 2019 annual report of the Company, but does not include
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors assisted by the Audit Committee are
responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

e obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

e evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies

used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also (Continued):

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Level 12

28 Hennessy Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

20 September 2019

Chan Tze Kit
Practising Certificate No.: P05707

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
GeEReEREMZEKEE

For the year ended 30 June 2019
BEZE—JEANAZTHIREE

2019 2018

“R—-hAE R )\E

HK$’000 HK$'000

T#L T#T

(Note)

(Fh&E)

Revenue B2k 5 82,170 106,864
Cost of sales BB AR (53,430) (62,622)
Gross profit BH 28,740 44,242
Other income HAe A 6 1,525 1,842
Selling expenses BB SZ (6,591) (8,112)

Administrative and other operating 47 & oAt 487 B 32

expenses (22,259) (22,901)
Profit before income tax B3 9 £ BE 1 e 7 1,415 15,071
Income tax credit/(expense) At 4, (B %) 10 250 (2,359)

Profit and total comprehensive A AE BE A B 2 v W 2k
income for the year Fik 1,665 12,712

Earnings per share attributable to A2 HlHEREHEAT A MEAY
equity owners of the Company IR A

Basic and diluted FEAC L 12 HK0.90 cents 4l HK6.91 cents i#fil
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 9 at 1 July 2018. Under the Fifek : AR O % — LA — H W REEH A
transition methods chosen, comparative information is not restated. See note 3. 5 R 58 15 SR AT s B s R R RSB 9 5F o AR
PP R Z AL T 0 WS LR o SR
WE3 o

The notes on pages 106 to 167 are an integral part of these A 106 £ 167 H Z M sERE A SR &
consolidated financial statements. Bk 2 HEARAR 43 o

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2019 SRR 1 01
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ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Deposits paid for acquisition of
property, plant and equipment

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Current tax recoverable
Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities

Net assets

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited

A & L

FERLBh ¥
Wik ~ R Kt

S B ~ W5 B LA

2

L)

&

B 50 B At RE Wk H
A Wi Tl B A I
Bl& RBE%FHY

B £
B 50 B A REA 0

B
A P L B £ A

FEiA B £14%
IR AR

R I

16

15
16

17

18

19
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
REMBKLE

As at 30 June 2019
W NWEANH=TH

2019

— AR
HK$’000

T

2018
—F—)\4
HK$’000
Tt
(Note)
(BftwE)

17,062 20,132
2,680 2,255
19,742 22,387
3,555 4,102
9,323 15,383
1,308 1,058
69,062 68,576
83,248 89,119
8,021 8,346
75,227 80,773
94,969 103,160
1,543 2,199
93,426 100,961




o

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
REMBKAE

As at 30 June 2019
R_R—IEAH=1H

2019 2018
ZEJUE EF )\
HK$’000 HK$"0(£)
T T
(Note)
(FR=E)
EQUITY HEAR
Share capital A 20(a) 1,840 1,840
Reserves it 91,586 99,121
Total equity RE A A8 93,426 100,961
Mr Fung Man Wai Samson Mr Fung Kar Chue Alexander
30 e A WA
Director Director
HF HF
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 9 at 1 July 2018. Under the Fifek : AR O % — LA — H W REEH A
transition methods chosen, comparative information is not restated. See note 3. 5 R 58 15 SR AT s B s R R RSB 9 5F o AR
PRI MU Ty % > WIRTE S LR B R o S
i3 e

The notes on pages 106 to 167 are an integral part of these U 5 106 % 167 B Z B RERE AR 55 5
consolidated financial statements. Bk 2 HEARAR 43 o
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D

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

= A, P
FeEQEnR
For the year ended 30 June 2019
BREZR-NEANAZTHIREE

Equity attributable to equity owners of the Company

Share

AR v M A A MEAY B
Share Capital  Retained

capital  premium

B IBebrit
HK$'000
TH#T
(note 20(a)) (note 20(b))
(WaE20@) (WaE20(b))

HK$'000
Tl

reserve
g ]
HK$'000
SRV
(note 20(c))
(P& 20(c))

earnings
ReERA
HK$'000

T

Total
At
HK$'000
T

As at 1]July 2017 RoZE—tHELH—H 1,840 77,105 (22,594) 31,898 88,249
Profit and total comprehensive A4 JE il J 2 Thi W2 40 4

income for the year - - - 12,712 12,712
As at 30 June 2018 (note) and AZF— AR = H (HE)

1July 2018 R=%— LA —H 1840 77105 (2594 44610 100961
Profit and total comprehensive A BERF K 2 i I 25 40 A

income for the year - - - 1,665 1,665
Transaction with owners: S NS
Final dividends in respect of ERIY NN T Fukes

previous year declared and WHBUAE B 2 AR B

paid (note 11) (k1) - - - (9,200) (9,200)
As at 30 June 2019 REZ- AN =TI 1,800 7705 (22,59) 37,075 9342

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 9 at 1 July 2018. Under the
transition methods chosen, comparative information is not restated. See note 3.

The notes on pages 106 to 167 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited

BFaE o AR TR =B — )AL A — B E R A
54078 2 1) 5 15 Y S A i A5 A U 9 B o R
PRI T ¥ > WA LR o FLK
FE3e

U SR 106 2 167 H Z B RER A SR &
Bk 2 HE AR 4y -

Annual Report 2019 4E#t



y

£

-

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before income tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation

Impairment loss on other receivables

Impairment loss on trade receivables

Interest income

Gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Operating profit before working
capital changes
Decrease in inventories
Decrease in trade and other receivables
Decrease in trade and other payables

Cash generated from operations
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid

Net cash from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property,

plant and equipment
Interest received

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of
the year

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 9 at 1 July 2018. Under the
transition methods chosen, comparative information is not restated. See note 3.

The notes on pages 106 to 167 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited

FERaRER

For the year ended 30 June 2019
BEZZNEANH=1THILERE

2018
ZE)\E
HK$'000
T
(Note)
(FhE)

2019
ZF
HK$000
Ti#n

BEHEN SRR

e
A B W I R il B
% %ﬁ%@%ﬁﬁ@ﬁ

T ~ W B s

()

6 - (100)
BEE S B A A
4,604 17,844
HEHA 547 732
B 5 R I A RE W A 6,094 295
5 B A RE A kR A (325) (1,179)
RBP4 10,920 17,692
O FBHER (656) (4,005)
BEEHIMI 2T 10,264 13,687
BEEIA B AR R
i EE ~ W B (928) (3,936)
Pkl - 100
BG5S 350 5
LB TBREN I 25 (578) (3,831)
RS E B A R
oA RE 11(b) (9,200) -
BETHREM I 25 (9,200) -
B4 BB A B 486 9,856
EPBA RIS EY
68,576 58,720
ERBE RBE %Y
17 69,062 68,576

Fifek : AR O % — LA — H W REEH A
T I 5F 15 0E M A v A i ISR O % o
TR IRZ YT s o N TS LR} o S
3 e

RSB 106 2 167 H Z s B A 45 A Bt
B 2 mEARER S -
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Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited

. GENERAL INFORMATION

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company
Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in the
Cayman Islands on 8 October 2015 as an exempted
company with limited liability. The address of the
registered office of the Company is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands. The principal place of business of the
Company is Block C, 5/F., Gee Hing Chang Industrial
Building, No. 16 Cheung Yue Street, Cheung Sha Wan,
Kowloon, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 18 May 2016.

The parent and ultimate holding company of the Company
is HSSP Limited, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands (the “BVI”) and is beneficially owned by
Mr Fung Man Wai Samson (“Mr Samson Fung”) and Mr
Fung Man Kam (“Mr David Fung”) (collectively referred
to as the “Controlling Shareholders”). The Company is
an investment holding company. The Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) are
principally engaged in manufacturing and sale of apparel
labels and packaging printing products.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in thousands of Hong Kong dollars (“HK$000”), which
is also the functional currency of the Company and its
subsidiaries, unless otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
30 June 2019 were approved and authorised for issue by
the board of directors on 20 September 2019.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR

For the year ended 30 June 2019
BE_FJEANH =T HILEE

1. —BEF

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International
Holding Company Limited ([ &2
A DR -+ H)\HEMHS
T B W W S 2 M R R AT B R
AR V) FE A R Y M HE 2 Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands o A& ) 28 3
HuB R A TURE R D E R E698 5
BB TERE S CE o RAHE KM
/I NG 5 W=y AN S R 273 ey
2 oy A B4 7] ([ BB A2 B 1) L o

AN ) 2Z BE A R B 1 B ] Ay
HSSP Limited » — % J* 2% & J& &
5 (38 R e 5 ) sk i o iy
2] > Sl E O SRR AR (U SR
Az ) B 5 S 8 S A (U e ek )
(Gl [ BR D EREER - AQ
GIDAE: 8- € IR N/ )& N )
J&§ A W) (Bt ([ AEE E ) 32 B4 35 3
a0 5 7l 2 A % e % BV R S 5 o

B 55 A1 RE I A > A B R D
TWwxE( THWIE) 2RI > ZEWS
A T R L H 4 R Sh RE £

BEZF-NEANA=ZTHILEE
ZEAMBRECR F-ENR
H A R i ofe Je BT 4% -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR

For the year ended 30 June 2019
BEZFJUEAH =T ALK

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation

2. EAEEHBORBER

2.1 Gk

These annual consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (“Listing Rules”).

The significant accounting policies that have been
used in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements are summarised below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented unless otherwise stated. The
adoption of new and amended HKFRSs, changes
in accounting policies and the impacts on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements, if any, are
disclosed in note 3.

The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared on the historical cost basis. The
measurement bases are fully described in the
accounting policies below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates
and assumptions are used in preparation of the
consolidated financial statements. Although
these estimates are based on management’s best
knowledge and judgement of current events and
actions, actual results may ultimately differ from
those estimates. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
note 4.

AR B R T IR PR i
P 7 i B 2 i 7 i B ([ 78 9 B
ek R ) AR > v B
WO IS A vt A ([
a2 1) e B4 A 9 A
A B A At
R (T A sl ) KR
BB WA A o

AR T B R )RR 5 7 v A )
Aol M Bt 22 v 2 B LRI (|
HRLR L) B A B R L o

B A iAo » SRSt AR &
B ER N ER B 2 st BUORME
RO o % SFBOR CE R
TERT 2 A PR 42 5 o SRANHT AT
B KEAG T 7 o6 A 2 e YR ] > 7
W RS ) M A5 P B 5 B
e Z 8 (AT ) DEER T B3

Ao B S 5 A LR R S A
ARG o R R A Gt
R 7o A -

WETERL > A & I 5 e iy 1
o ahlat RBE o fRA ST
il 7% A L S A
A7 B A e R e D A L
AELEE B3 SR S5 4 VT R 7 B % <5 Al
IGLEENEER: 285 2l e
R S > BB Sl S A
o B 2 R T A K Y S >
BT 4 % o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 30 June 2019
BE_FJEANH =T HILEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited

2.2 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 30 June each year.

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the entity.
When assessing whether the Group has power over
the entity, only substantive rights relating to the entity
(held by the Group and others) are considered.

The Group includes the income and expenses of a
subsidiary in the consolidated financial statements
from the date it gains control until the date when the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains and losses on transactions between group
companies are eliminated in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Where unrealised
losses on intra-group asset sales are reversed on
consolidation, the underlying asset is also tested for
impairment from the Group’s perspective. Amounts
reported in the financial statements of subsidiaries
have been adjusted where necessary to ensure
consistency with the accounting policies adopted by
the Group.

2. FOANErahBORBEE (4)

2.2 By

A B S 5 R AR A A W) B L MY
JBARIREFEANA=ZTHIEZ
Pup 2

WEF Jag 2 ] 2y A 45 L 4 ol ) T
A4 L 1R 22 L i R 4 T
D] S8 Py L, o 8¢ S 4 o Y
A > AR Z I B R AR

SRS IR o B ]
% TR o Y REA AR B B A
A T W 1 > (RS
A7 B % T TR RE R (A4
A B AN o

ACEE B I PR R ) i
H 5 B Jag 2> 7] B W\ % B 32571
NG MBHRE » HEAREEA
T A O JES 2> ] 42 i BE 2 H 2
1k o

T B B A B B B Iy > AR
AFHZ RS ~ &tk RIEFTR 5
Ik 2 RSB LA M B AR T AR
B o AR Py A B 2 R
Bl A AR IR B e E > A
I3 I A5 P A SR AT
TR o PR A ) A B e
v 5t B <o T L 2 R A L
B > DUE DR BLACKE [ P $R 44 14 17
RFBOR—2L -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR

For the year ended 30 June 2019
BEZFIUEAH = HILEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2. FOANErRhBORBEE (4)

2.2 fR e REHE (4)

2.2 Basis of consolidation (Continued)

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less any
impairment loss (see note 2.10) unless the subsidiary
is held for sale or included in a disposal group. Cost
is adjusted to reflect changes in consideration arising
from contingent consideration amendments. Cost

T BRI B T AR AR 2
PRAE S 1E (B 2.10) SRR A A
) BB ARG AR 5 BRIERZ B
JE 23 W 2 R A B A A
AR o JRAS K83 2 DL IR e fes ol B
AARME B A AR S B o AR

also includes direct attributable costs of investment. DINRAES S GiINER:S 700 %N
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Bi g > ] =2 S 48 FH AR A R
Company on the basis of dividends received and HIRZ Bl R R B 5IMR © Fr

receivable at the end of the reporting period. All
dividends whether received out of the investee’s

A e S (B i R AR A48 S O WO
i BB A% 4 v A1) e IR ) 3 1

pre or post-acquisition profits are recognised in the AN v HE 25 R R o
Company’s profit or loss.

2.3 Revenue recognition 2.3 Wi
Revenue arises mainly from the sales of apparel labels Wedt AR A AR AR ER S f R B
and packaging printing products. il 7 b ) 8 o

To determine whether to recognise revenue, the
Group follows a 5-step process:

Ty T E A WE DML AR o ARSI
R TLARE 2555 3

1. Identifying the contract with a customer 1. REHEEFHEH

2. ldentifying the performance obligations 2. REAHNMEREE

3. Determining the transaction price 3. BERSH

4. Allocating the transaction price to the 4. BZGHEHTBEEHINEK
performance obligations JB# EAT:

5. Recognising revenue when/as performance
obligation(s) are satisfied

In all cases, the total transaction price for a contract
is allocated amongst the various performance
obligations based on their relative stand-alone selling
prices. The transaction price for a contract excludes
any amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

5. (S BEEA AL ST
e R I 2

PR OT » SR8 5 3%
A R S S A B R 20 T A% 0
JBAEAT: - F A2 S HABIENR
R =07 ORI B -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 30 June 2019
BEZFEIEAHZTHILEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.3 Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue is recognised either at a point in time or over
time, when (or as) the Group satisfies performance
obligations by transferring the promised goods or
services to its customers.

Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to
the customer for more than 12 months, revenue
is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
with the customer, and interest income is accrued
separately under the effective interest method.
Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to
the Group, revenue recognised under that contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the
contract liability under the effective interest method.

The Group takes advantage of the practical expedient
in paragraph 63 of HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts
with Customers” (“HKFRS 15”) and does not adjust
the consideration for any effects of a significant
financing component if the period of financing is 12
months or less.

2. FOANErahBORBEE (4)

2.3 Wi e 2 (4

B (B ) AR I 7 £ ek
Il 5 T % P T AT R A EAT:
IRF > Wi DA RS — IR ] R e 0 e A
He— IRy Beffewd

ik 5 40 B4 1 0 P SRR 12
FEON: g lE 3T g0 %o |
W i M WA < L Y S 5 A
i) il S A2 i v O I R Y B R
Bl BlEwHE > A S A RI$%
TR AR 00 B Rt - A A
B Iy AR S [ 323t Kl i ) 2
PR Ay > FIARYRRE A A0 e Y
e gk B AE IR E BRI R A A
FURE R 2R R L BH S o

A5 BT P 7 T 25 o A A 5
1598 REK P AR s (T
W MR ISR 1558 1) SR 63 BE
Hh A AT AT AR TEL 9 il 0
12fE BT > J 36 A8 7K
A3 BT Aoy 5 A R AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR

For the year ended 30 June 2019
BEZEIEAHZHILEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2. FOANErRhBORBEE (4)

2.3 Wi (4)

2.3 Revenue recognition (Continued)

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other A A5 (B A 2 e LAl A A T R R
income recognition policies are as follows: AR — 25 TR O RO ¢
Sale of apparel labels and packaging printing products B b2 3 D )

Revenue is generally recognised at a point in time
when the customers obtain control of the promised
goods in the contract. A receivable is recognised
when the goods are delivered as this is the point in
time that the consideration is unconditional because
only the passage of time is required before the
payment is due.

A contract liability is recognised when a customer
pays consideration, or is contractually required to
pay consideration and the amount is already due,
before the Group recognises the related revenue.
The Group recognised its contract liabilities under
“Trade and other payables” as receipt in advance in

Wi 38 S 7 P IDURS ) ARG
sl P22 T RE B 0 o MEWSGRR LI
AT B RS, > PRI 2 B IRE 0 Bl
PR RER] 2 SRR Y > (R
I ] 20 5 B T WACHRUARE K

AR AR R P ST R > 3
AR ZH AT AR LA BRI
BT DARERD, o F ] & LA A
AF% P e A B M 2 2 W o AR
HEIE A A0 B R 2 TGO A
A BARDLE N [ 55 % S0t e

the consolidated statement of financial position. FaKIE | THERR -

For a single contract with the customer, either a net MEEFME—FAME > 54
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented. BEFHKGHAEFEYET
For multiple contracts, contract assets and contract BT - s a#im s » AH
liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented on B ARG R EE R EHAEAR
a net basis. TR AR o
Commission income IEC N

Commission income is recognised when the related A7 4 W A A 318 3% 1 B R 85 Iy e
services are rendered. W

Interest income A

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method. For financial
assets measured at amortised cost that are not credit-
impaired, the effective interest rate is applied to the
gross carrying amount.

AR MBCABE FEEE BR) 23% 3 42 B ]
P A1) e M A 0 o 2 B BRAC
i HL S A7 8 9 A <2 Rl 2 T
o BRI AR PR BRI o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 30 June 2019
BE_FJEANH =T HILEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses (see note 2.10). Historical cost
includes purchase price and expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the item.

Depreciation of item of property, plant and equipment
is provided to write off the cost less their residual
values, if any, over their estimated useful lives using
the straight-line method, at the following rates per

annum:
Plant and machinery 10-30%
Motor vehicles 30%
Furniture and fixtures 20%
Office equipment 20%

The assets’ residual values, depreciation methods and
useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,
at the end of each reporting period.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal
is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other expenses,
such as repairs and maintenance are charged to profit
or loss during the financial year in which they are
incurred.

2. FOANErahBORBEE (4)

2.4 W3 ~ B Bt

W~ W S TG FR IR S R AR
R T K B M E SR
(FLFHFE2.10) o JE 5 BAS 43 5 W
EE%EHE%EHZ%EE&
,ﬁ °

Yok ~ WG S IE H T %
Al T 43 DL AR T
ACIRIL IG5 A (A7) w42 > B
FRAAERIT

i B b 2% 10-30%
v A 30%
YA 20%
WA M 20%

B M RBR R ~ P85 05 ¥ AT
5 A ST 5 9 AR e e
B ) -

JoE B g 1 A Y WA s TR 3
S8 O e ] B B v ] Y
FERHOE - W HE MR o

A% A H AR TH EAH B AR A 48
A 2551 € I A AR 4B [ % g A T
SERTRIE H BAKE > J5 € L8 E
VLT 5 A 2 MR i s e sl
WL R o I 4 A R (A
IETERR o Hifes M AR5 BT HoAlh
S > i A B AR ) 3R
LRI o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR

For the year ended 30 June 2019
BEZFJUEAH =T ALK

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2. FOANErRhBORBEE (4)

2.5 g

2.5 Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
time in return for a payment or a series of payments.
Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a
lease.

ik A 55 1 ek 2 — JEL 48 4 (A i B
—IRA G — R BN AR 5 AL Hit
AR A T B 2 S0 D 19 o — I
A P B 2 T R DA I — T
s AT > A% R B
S EME o HEE TR B
ZHEEE A B REAG T AR > A
iﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂ@&%iﬁ

Classification of assets leased to the Group R A 4 19 % % e 1y 23 8
Assets that are held by the Group under leases which A A RS T A AR 4 A 43
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and JoR i e [ s S 2 A A L
rewards of ownership are classified as being held FRAT 0 42 43 S50 A R T R AL
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer BERANERE - WA A RER
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to R8BS B e el R AR
the Group are classified as operating leases. M A E B R -
Operating lease charges as the lessee fERRRLA R BRI RN

Where the Group has the right to use of assets held
under operating leases, payments made under the
leases are charged to the profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the lease terms except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the time
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased
assets. Lease incentives received are recognised in
profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments made. Contingent rental are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in which
they are incurred.

ik A 55 0 A B2 P AL 0 A8 AL B
A RE A > MRS B AR Y
RO B3] N 2 B AR T AR
7 5 MEMGAT 55— Rk A B 22
B R A A Y W
e R ] R BR A o W R AL
HER AR R RS o A A L AR
P AR B AR 43 o B8R
ﬁ%%@i%@%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁm

2.6 Foreign currency translation 2.6 A IS
In the individual financial statements of the consolidated T S Y {18 ) B 5 R
entities, foreign currency transactions are translated A 3E By %38 5y RE RISy

into the functional currency of the individual entity
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. At the end of the reporting

118 31 R A Ty e B o T Rk
A > AN RHIE Y 8 0 8 R B
fRGHEE H B E ME R 05T o i

period, monetary assets and liabilities denominated S22 T fh L B R SR TR
in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign SR e SR A Y A1 e
exchange rates ruling at that date. Foreign exchange B R AR T o

gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the end of the reporting period
retranslation of monetary assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 30 June 2019
BEZFJEANH =T HIREE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates and are not retranslated (i.e. only
translated using the exchange rates at the transaction
date).

2.7 Accounting for income taxes
Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax assets and/or liabilities comprise those
obligations to, or claims from, fiscal authorities
relating to the current or prior reporting period, that
are unpaid at the end of the reporting period. They
are calculated according to the tax rates and tax laws
applicable to the fiscal periods to which they relate,
based on the taxable profit for the year. All changes
to current tax assets or liabilities are recognised as a
component of tax expense in profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method
on temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences, tax losses available
to be carried forward as well as other unused
tax credits, to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit, including existing taxable temporary
differences, will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses
and unused tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary differences and
it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

2. FAErahBORBEE (4)

2.6 AP 5T (41)

TR S A B DL AR s B Y
FEECHE T B ¥ 0 FH 4G HOAY HE
ESCE N E AR
Sy H A FH ME R IGH) o

2.7 P By fr il e 2L

e 45 7 45 B 391 Ao L % 20 2 A
IE o

BRI BIE  E  R EA A
e 45 191 1] 88 1 e o 400 1] (LR
e AR AR AT 1 BB R
B ARBLK B BT B E A B A
R HBK PR - P B
LA B FoF B 17 1 A B 3 B
Bk A N HERR B v Al it 55 o B
YOI B R B P A S R
ﬁﬁ¢ﬁ%%ﬁﬁ%i%*%

RSB T3 o WIAR A 5 1
P A P9 B B AR v i B
R A ey B 0 2 AL
At 5 o IRSEBUIE B L e &P
A RERR B IRy 22 B RS, o JRIERL
YEU¥E E 5 8k B A AT BT I 2
W AT AL s 1R DL S AR
FE FH A0 5 41K SR W R o DL WT BB
A HE SR B A (645 B A HE B
B T 25 ) T G B T B R R 2
T~ AR B2 s 1R S AR B
BRI GO B

T O A ) ) 458 S o A M R
W Ik 2 i 2 R S AU £
A v A % T R O 2 T
Bl > A% IR 2 B T S AR
] BEHE [ BRA o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR

For the year ended 30 June 2019
BEZFJUEAH =+ HILENE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2. FOANFrahBORBEE (4)

2.7 P BLny €l L ()

2.7 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period the
liability is settled or the asset realised, provided they
are enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss, or in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity if they relate to items
that are charged or credited to other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.

When different tax rates apply to different levels of
taxable income, deferred tax assets and liabilities
are measured using the average tax rates that are
expected to apply to the taxable profit of the periods
in which the temporary differences are expected to
reverse.

The determination of the average tax rates requires
an estimation of (1) when the existing temporary

AR S B 3 1 TR 5 1 R
5 B e B0 I e P Y B R 5
(AVETBL) > WeAT B e 3 7 i
%ﬁ?ﬁ% TR 38 B B _E AR A Y

ARSI A B S T 28
FRES, o oA SR At 2 TG W 2
BRI R AR B A
B o B At 2 TG WA 85 BB
WEss e o

CRNEEES V) b S Qi)
PRBLHCER IF o W AR A B
AR R R0 FH S et T B 2 T
%%%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ?ﬁﬂﬂﬁ?ﬁﬁ%
iR

A T3 BER A ()R BUA Y
I 2 RE A 488 o] I % (2) i AR

differences will reverse and (2) the amount of future AR R W 25 4 A o
taxable income in those years.
The estimate of future taxable profit includes: A 2R R A i ) A i L

(@) income or loss excluding reversals of temporary
differences; and

(b) reversals of existing temporary differences.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are
presented in net if, and only if:

(a) the Group has the legally enforceable right to set
off the recognised amounts; and

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(a) 7 B 4% 48 Il B IRf 22 3 2 1R
3 R

(b) 18 [EIEA 225 -

B 30158 2 e L B SO0 B O R
NV RAVRE S E Y

(a) ACHR KA 0 ) B4 T HE T
DA Ol R 5 &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 30 June 2019
BEZENEAH=ZHILER

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.7 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)
The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred
tax liabilities in net if, and only if:

(a) the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities;
and

(b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either:

(i) the same taxable entity; or

(i) different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets
on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected
to be settled or recovered.

2.8 Financial instruments
Recognition and derecognition
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position
when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the financial instrument.

Financial assets are derecognised when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or when the financial asset
and substantially all of its risks and rewards are
transferred. A financial liability is derecognised when
it is extinguished, discharged, cancelled or expires.

2. FOANErahBORBEE (4)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR

For the year ended 30 June 2019
BEZFIUEAH = HILEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2. FOANErRhBORBEE (4)

2.8 4k T H (%)

2.8 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets A A

Policy applicable from 1 July 2018 ZFE—NELH — HAEE R
B

Classification and initial measurement of financial 2 R E Y 23 T BB it B

assets

Except for those trade receivables that do not contain B A B 5 F R o BAE AR 5

a significant financing component and are measured AETAR AR AR AT 8 T 5 ik o B R 56 15

at the transaction price in accordance with HKFRS 15,
all financial assets are initially measured at fair value,
in case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL”), plus transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset.

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost.

SERt B B 5 GRS > B
S A AR SR >
b IR IR A AR AR 2R
(M#%A R fEs ARSR ) > Bl E
L il 7 WA % < ol 7 ) 2
Gy IR o

ST A TR A

The classification is determined by both: SREEL T WA EE

- the entity’s business model for managing the — B PR A B SR
financial asset; and A &

— the contractual cash flow characteristics of the - ZMEEMNGHBSWE
financial asset. o

Expected credit losses (“ECL”) of trade and other
receivables are presented within “Administrative and
other operating expenses” in profit or loss.

S 5 B HL At MBS T v TR M5
e 48 (T R4 0B 4R ) [ 47
e FoA A8 P SZ [Pt e 251 -

Subsequent measurement of financial assets Sl pe i SR
Debt investments HHRE
Financial assets at amortised cost e B AR L Y

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost if the
assets meet the following conditions (and are not
designated as FVTPL):

— they are held within a business model whose
objective is to hold the financial assets and collect

ik <5 il S 72 AT DA T R A (Sl
FEIR & T IR A AL A AH )
S % A B A i

- DA AE G AR A P
Ao HH MR FFR Sl E

its contractual cash flows; and SE WCER L A 8 B A IR & 5
K
— the contractual terms of the financial assets give — R A A AR A Y
rise to cash flows that are solely payments of B 4 o Ay A 4 e R AR
principal and interest on the principal amount AREHIFIE o

outstanding.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 30 June 2019
BE_FJEANH =T HILEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.8 Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Policy applicable from 1 July 2018 (Continued)

Subsequent measurement of financial assets (Continued)
Debt investments (Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost (Continued)

After initial recognition, these are measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in “Other income” in profit or
loss. Discounting is omitted where the effect of
discounting is immaterial. The Group’s cash and cash
equivalents and trade and other receivables fall into
this category of financial assets.

Policy applicable prior to 1 July 2018

Financial assets are classified into loans and
receivables. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition depending on the purpose for which the
financial assets were acquired and where allowed and
appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at the end
of each reporting period.

When financial assets are recognised initially,
they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case
of investments not at FVTPL, directly attributable
transaction costs.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Loans and receivables
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any impairment
losses. Amortised cost is calculated taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and
includes fees that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate and transaction cost.

2. FOANErahBORBEE (4)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR

For the year ended 30 June 2019
BEZEIEAHZHILEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2. FOANErRhBORBEE (4)

2.8 4k T H (%)

2.8 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities . §ER

Classification and measurement of financial liabilities S BN 2 8 G i

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and AL SRR AR S R
other payables. oM AT FRIE o

Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value,
and, where applicable, adjusted for transaction costs
unless the Group designated a financial liability at

Sl £ BRI AL SRR
Fe (oni i ) B A 45 1 i 5 4 i
BRI T AR 2R > HEE

FVTPL. B T AN e 8 o
Subsequently, financial liabilities are measured at BEAR - i e ATAE A E BER Sk
amortised cost using the effective interest method. FRHR G RATHT B o

All interest-related charges are included within i A R B HH R 2 A A R
finance costs. A o

Trade and other payables B 5 A 50

Trade and other payables are recognised initially
at their fair values and subsequently measured at

S5 o At AR s S 5 ) DAL 2
FUAERRERE > BEARE B B A B

amortised cost, using the effective interest method. PR AR B AT i o
2.9 Impairment of financial assets 2.9 Sk A WA

Policy applicable from 1 July 2018

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (“HKFRS 9”)’s
impairment requirements use more forward-
looking information to recognise ECL — the “ECL”
model. Instruments within the scope included loans
and other debt-type financial assets measured at
amortised cost and trade receivables.

;%%’?*/(fﬁ‘bﬁ*ﬂﬁ’@ﬁi%
B

A s B 2 o6 4 ) 5 9 ST el T
H ([ Bl e 2 99 1)
PR ok AL A2 % P B L i S e 4
T R TR A e 4R — [ A
B B o R R SRS R T
FLALE B ARS8 A B

Al 35 265 S5 01 4 b i X L ) B
WOk -
The Group considers a broader range of information A P e A A5 B I B K i
when assessing credit risk and measuring ECL, HMESEBREXEEREEZNE

including past events, current conditions, reasonable
and supportable forecasts that affect the expected
collectability of the future cash flows of the
instrument.

B> BIEBAE S - BHR
SR T H R AR B i B R Wl
W [T P ) B R TE T o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 30 June 2019
BE_FJEANH =T HILEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited

2.9 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Policy applicable from 1 July 2018 (Continued)

In applying this forward-looking approach, a
distinction is made between:

— financial assets that have not deteriorated
significantly in credit quality since initial
recognition or that have low credit risk (“Stage 1”)
and

- financial assets that have deteriorated
significantly in credit quality since initial
recognition and whose credit risk is not low
(“Stage 2").

“Stage 3” would cover financial assets that have
objective evidence of impairment at the end of the
reporting period.

“12-month ECL” are recognised for the Stage 1
category while “lifetime ECL” are recognised for the
Stage 2 category.

Measurement of the ECL is determined by a
probability-weighted estimate of credit losses over
the expected life of the financial asset.

For trade receivables, the Group applies a simplified
approach in calculating ECL and recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECL at the end
of each reporting period. These are the expected
shortfalls in contractual cash flows, considering
the potential for default at any point during the life
of the financial assets. In calculating the ECL, the
Group has established a provision matrix that is
based on its historical credit loss experience and
external indicators, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

To measure the ECL, trade receivables have been
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics
and the past due status.

2. FOANErahBORBEE (4)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR

For the year ended 30 June 2019
BEZFIUEAH = HILEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2. FOANErRhBORBEE (4)

2.9 Impairment of financial assets (Continued) 2.9 Sk A WA (4)
Policy applicable from 1 July 2018 (Continued) ZFE—NELH — HEE R
BAE(H)

The Group measures the loss allowance for other
receivables equal to 12-month ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime
ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should
be recognised is based on significant increase in the
likelihood or risk of default occurring since initial
recognition.

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial assets at the end of the reporting period
with the risk of default occurring on the financial
assets at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

— an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the financial asset’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

- significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase

AR I F2 R A5 12418 BN AR B
e 18 < e i At R WSRO Y U
BB > NG B 025 R DA AR AR
SRR B R B o R A 4 e
KL TG BB o REA R AR
RS 4 B T 5 B RS 207 B
120 W0 DA AR % A 0 A B T RE
SRR B K W S e

TR Al 7 B R B 5 0 2 e
PAAC CL R kg > A [ Ll i
<o Tl S P S A TRt B ) Y
JE I S < i R 0 28 e H
Y] Hh B A4 B R o A R Al
RF > ARG B 5 A B BRI A
BREEER > SRR X
S JEAE B B IR A NS ) B Al
SRR HE DR o

JEILHR: > A7 B B A K i
34 kg€ 5 B8 SR

- rfh TRAME (A ) Sm

- fERE R RSN A G f R
KIEAL > BlnFEE 82 -

in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices BN B A5 B8 2 300 K
for the debtor; Ham s

— existing or forecast adverse changes in business, - TS EEARE N BT HAR
financial or economic conditions that are B AR B RE ) KR T Fe i 3

expected to cause a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

FHBAA ) 5
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 30 June 2019
BE_FJEANH =T HILEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited

2.9 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Policy applicable from 1 July 2018 (Continued)

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor;

— an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at
the end of each reporting period. A debt instrument
is determined to have low credit risk if it has a low
risk of default, the borrower has strong capacity
to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the
near term and adverse changes in economic and
business conditions in the longer term may, but will
not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to
fulfill its contractual cash flow obligations.

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collateral held by the
Group).

Detailed analysis of the ECL assessment of financial
assets measured at amortised cost are set out in note
24.3.

2. FOANErahBORBEE (4)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR

For the year ended 30 June 2019
BEZEIEAHZHILEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2. FOANErRhBORBEE (4)

2.9 Impairment of financial assets (Continued) 2.9 Sk A WA (4)
Policy applicable prior to 1 July 2018 (Continued) A FE—NELH — HFiE
BAE(H)
At the end of each reporting period, financial assets B EEIR - SWEES T

are reviewed to determine whether there is any
objective evidence of impairment.

B > DAE R R A5 A ] i AL P
FBIEE o

Objective evidence of impairment of individual A1 31 < b L P 2 B R 0%
financial assets includes observable data that comes BREAREETEB T —HEKE
to the attention of the Group about one or more of TE s 18 T S Y W] B R

the following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor; N v NG NS

a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- EREH > WA AR
F B EAL 5

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter —  BRB O\ AT e A s AT At
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; W EA

- significant changes in the technological, market, - BE - W B EIR
economic or legal environment that have an iy ORI A
adverse effect on the debtor; and AREE s K

- the disappearance of an active market for that — DRI L ) B 2 4
financial asset because of financial difficulties. HREREGRTE o

Loss events in respect of a group of financial assets
include observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows from the group of financial assets. Such
observable data including but not limited to adverse
changes in the payment status of debtors in the
group and, national or local economic conditions that
correlate with defaults on the assets in the group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 30 June 2019
BEZFIEANH =T HILEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.9 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Policy applicable prior to 1 July 2018 (Continued)

If any such evidence exists, the impairment loss is
measured and recognised as follows:

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
on loans and receivables carried at amortised cost has
been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition). The amount of the
loss is recognised in profit or loss of the period in
which the impairment occurs.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed to the extent that it does
not result in a carrying amount of the financial asset
exceeding what the amortised cost would have been
had the impairment not been recognised at the
date the impairment is reversed. The amount of the
reversal is recognised in profit or loss of the period in
which the reversal occurs.

Impairment loss on financial assets other than trade
and other receivables that are stated at amortised
cost are written off against the corresponding assets
directly. Where the recovery of trade and other
receivables is considered doubtful but not remote,
the impairment losses for doubtful receivables are
recorded using an allowance account. When the
Group is satisfied that recovery of trade and other
receivables is remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against trade and other
receivables directly and any amounts held in the
allowance account in respect of that receivable
are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account are
reversed against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off directly
are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR

For the year ended 30 June 2019
BEZFJEAH =T HILEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2. HOAFrRhBORBEE (4)

2.10 FE4x b % A WAL

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipment and investments in
subsidiaries in the statement of financial position
of the Company, are subject to impairment testing.
They are tested for impairment whenever there are
indications that the asset’s carrying amount may not
be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value,
reflecting market conditions less costs of disposal,
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessment of time value of
money and the risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where

Y3k ~ W Be S o UL R
A B 5 AR DA A B R 4 ] Y
BOF WAL T o H A B
G5 WY M i L T 2 9 WA
Bl s R EEAT AL B -

00 4R 4% R v 3L
T W] < A Y 2 > B A R
Z BASZ o AT WA IB] 4 ARy IR T
DUBA 2 o B Uk 5 R A S
B W B e o o AN B
R > Al AR SR B 4 il 2 4R
JA B Wi B A 9 B B LB
L B IR i 5 ) £ ey ] 4
B I A A T P A

Z e A DA > i B E I 28 E A

an asset does not generate cash inflows largely R B b S At 3 A Y B
independent from those from other assets, ARG QD EE B R YA
the recoverable amount is determined for the EABSRANR/NGEHS

smallest group of assets that generate cash inflows
independently (i.e., a cash-generating unit). As
a result, some assets are tested individually for
impairment and some are tested at cash-generating
unit level.

Impairment losses recognised for cash-generating
unit are charged on a pro rata basis to the assets in
the cash-generating unit except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs of disposal, if
measurable, or value in use, if determinable.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount and
only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2019
BE_FJEAH =T HILEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.11 Inventories

2.11

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in-first-out method
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.
The amount of write-down of inventories to net
realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal
of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised
as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.

2.12 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at banks and
on hand, deposits held at call with banks and other
short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value.

2.13 Provision and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present (legal or constructive) obligation arising
as a result of a past event and it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the
amount of the obligations can be made. Where the
time value of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure expected to
settle the obligation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MEHRERME

For the year ended 30 June 2019
BEZFJUEAH =+ HILENE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2. FOANErahBORBEE (5)

2.13 54l B AR £ (D)

2.13 Provision and contingent liabilities (Continued)

All provisions are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
uncertain events not wholly within the control of
the Group are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.

2.14 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital
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2.14 AR
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is determined using the nominal value of shares that BAT IR A E o
have been issued.
Any transaction costs associated with the issuing of BB AT IR0y M B 4 A AT 38 ) B

shares are deducted from share premium (net of any
related income tax benefit) to the extent they are
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incremental costs directly attributable to the equity A2 5 HLF MEAN W 384 B AS 2 B
transaction.

2.15 Employee benefits 2.15 i B fi A
Retirement benefits BARHR
Retirement benefits to employees are provided B PR A A 77 3 2 R E it OB AR
through defined contribution plans. i (g B gt

The Group operates a defined contribution
retirement benefit plan under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all of its
employees who are eligible to participate in the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries.

Contributions are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss as employees render services during
the year. The Group’s obligations under these plans
are limited to the fixed percentage contributions
payable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2019
BE_FJEAH =T HILEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited

2.15 Employee benefits (Continued)

Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when it recognises restructuring
costs involving the payment of termination benefits.

2.16 Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the consolidated
financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing
the performance of, the Group’s various lines of
business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MEHRERME

For the year ended 30 June 2019
BEZFZ-NEANA=ZTHILEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. WK ErEhsoR w2 (5Y)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.17 Related parties 2.17 BB 5
For the purpose of these consolidated financial Mz FEEMBMENT - &
statements, a party is considered to be related to the A DL A i N 4 2 B
Group if: 4 A7 B B
(a) the party is a person or a close member of that (@) ZALBFFEU TN
person’s family and if that person: TERHBEERBEA » B
At s
(i) has control or joint control over the Group; (i) BFASHE B A o ) BE s 3L
GEcTL:
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or (i) WARLEHEE ERLE
B,

(iii)is a member of the key management (ifi) 4% A< 52 [ i A 42 [ ) 20
personnel of the Group or of a parent of the m R A B E -
Group.

(b) the party is an entity and if any of the following (b) A& EHREFGUTE
conditions applies: et :

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the (i) % B R AR I 2 W] —
same group. FER B AH o

(ii) one entity is an associate or joint venture (i) ~RIEEES —EHN
of the other entity (or an associate or joint /A 1 A
venture of a member of a group of which the (RABHE—FEEREZ
other entity is a member). B AR e Bk

T % % — B 2 % 5
HH) -

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of (iii) % BT R B A4 1 2% ) —
the same third party. BT BB

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity (iv) ~ I EBAREE=FE
and the other entity is an associate of the third BHEEMAE M —
entity. H A= HEN

B A o
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For the year ended 30 June 2019
BEZFEIEAH=ZTHILER

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.17 Related parties (Continued)

(b) the party is an entity and if any of the following

conditions applies: (Continued)

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the

Group or an entity related to the Group.

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by

a person identified in (a).

(vii)a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or

of a parent of the entity).

(vii)ithe entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the

Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with

the entity.

2.18 Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to
prepare an interim financial report in compliance
with HKAS 34 “Interim Financial Reporting” in
respect of the first six months of the financial year. At
the end of the interim period, the Group applies the
same impairment testing, recognition, and reversal

criteria as it would at the end of the financial year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED HKFRSs

New and amended HKFRSs that are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 July 2018

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first
time the following new and amended HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA, which are relevant to the Group’s operations
and effective for the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the annual period beginning on 1 July
2018:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments

Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration

HK(FRIC) - Int 22

Other than as noted below, the adoption of the new and
amended HKFRSs had no material impact on how the
results and financial position for the current and prior
periods have been prepared and presented.

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period, except for the amendments to HKFRS
9 “Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation”
which have been adopted at the same time as HKFRS 9
“Financial Instruments”.

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”, including the
amendments to HKFRS 9 “Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation” (“HKFRS 9”)

HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement” (“HKAS 39”). It
makes major changes to the previous guidance on
the classification and measurement of financial assets
and introduces an “ECL” model for the impairment of
financial assets.

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited
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Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED HKFRSs
(CONTINUED)

New and amended HKFRSs that are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 July 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”, including the
amendments to HKFRS 9 “Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation” (“HKFRS 9”) (Continued)

When adopting HKFRS 9, the Group has applied the
standard retrospectively to items that existed at 1 July
2018 in accordance with the transition requirement and
also applied transitional relief and opted not to restate
prior periods. Differences arising from the adoption of
HKFRS 9 in relation to classification, measurement, and
impairment are recognised in retained earnings.

The adoption of HKFRS 9 has impacted the following
areas:

Classification and measurement of financial assets and
financial liabilities

HKFRS 9 categorises financial assets into three principal
classification categories: measured at amortised cost, at
fair value through other comprehensive income and at
FVTPL. These supersede HKAS 39’s categories of held-to-
maturity investments, loans and receivables, available-
for-sale financial assets and financial assets measured
at FVTPL. The classification of financial assets under
HKFRS 9 is based on the business model under which the
financial asset is managed and its contractual cash flow
characteristics.

Cash and cash equivalents and trade and other
receivables are held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding. Accordingly, these financial assets are
continued to be subsequently measured at amortised
cost upon the application of HKFRS 9.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED HKFRSs
(CONTINUED)

New and amended HKFRSs that are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 July 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”, including the
amendments to HKFRS 9 “Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation” (“HKFRS 9”) (Continued)

Classification and measurement of financial assets and
financial liabilities (Continued)
The measurement categories for all financial liabilities
remain the same. The carrying amounts for all financial
liabilities as at 1 July 2018 have not been impacted by the
initial application of HKFRS 9.

Expected credit losses

HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss” model in HKAS 39
with the ECL model. The ECL model requires an ongoing
measurement of credit risk associated with a financial
asset and therefore recognises ECL earlier than under the
“incurred loss” accounting model in HKAS 39.

The Group applies the new ECL model to financial assets
measured at amortised cost (including cash and cash
equivalents and trade and other receivables).

For trade receivables, the Group applies a simplified
approach of recognising lifetime ECL as these items do
not have a significant financing component. To measure
the ECL, trade receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics such as past due status
and credit risk ratings. For other financial assets, the
Group measures on a 12-month ECL basis of recognising
ECL if there had been no significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition.

The directors of the Company considered that the
adoption of HKFRS 9 does not have a significant impact
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED HKFRSs
(CONTINUED)

New and amended HKFRSs that are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 July 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”
(“HKFRS 15%)

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for
recognising revenue and some costs from contracts
with customers. HKFRS 15 replaces HKAS 18 “Revenue”
(“HKAS 18”), which covered revenue arising from
sale of goods and rendering of services, and HKAS 11
“Construction Contracts” (“HKAS 11”), which specified
the accounting for construction contracts, and several
revenue-related Interpretations.

The Group has elected to use the cumulative effect
transition method. Comparative information has not been
restated and continues to be reported under HKAS 18.

To determine whether to recognise revenue, the Group
follows a 5-step approach:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) performance
obligations are satisfied

Revenue is recognised either at a point in time or over
time, when (or as) the Group satisfies performance
obligations by transferring the promised goods or
services to its customers.

Revenue from the sale of apparel labels and packaging
printing products are generally recognised at a point in
time when the customers obtain control of the promised
goods in the contract.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED HKFRSs
(CONTINUED)

New and amended HKFRSs that are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 July 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”
(“HKFRS 15“) (Continued)

A receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered
as this is the point in time that the consideration is
unconditional because only the passage of time is
required before the payment is due.

A contract liability is recognised when a customer
pays consideration, or is contractually required to pay
consideration and the amount is already due, before
the Group recognises the related revenue. The Group
recognised its contract liabilities under “Trade and other
payables” as receipt in advance in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

The directors of the Company consider that the adoption
of HKFRS 15 has no material impact on the Group’s
financial position and results of operation.

Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated
financial statements, certain new and amended HKFRSs
have been published but are not yet effective, and have
not been adopted early by the Group.

HKFRS 16 Leases!

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?

Amendments to HKFRS
10 and HKAS 28

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement’

Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures'

Amendments to HKAS 28
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR

For the year ended 30 June 2019
BEZFEIEAH=ZTHILER

3.

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED HKFRSs
(CONTINUED)

Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business?

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

Definition of Material?

Amendments to HKFRSs ~ Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-

2017 Cycle!

HK(IFRIC) - Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax

Treatments'

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

4 Effective date not yet determined

5 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for which the

acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2020

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of the impact of these new and amended HKFRSs upon
initial application. Currently it has been considered that
adoption of them is unlikely to have an impact on the
Group’s results of operations and financial position,
except for the following:

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (“HKFRS 16”)

HKFRS 16 replaced HKAS 17 “Leases” along with three
Interpretations (HK(IFRIC) — Int 4 “Determining whether
an Arrangement contains a Lease”, HK(SIC) — Int 15
“Operating Leases — Incentives” and HK(SIC) - Int 27
“Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the
Legal Form of a Lease”).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED HKFRSs
(CONTINUED)

Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (Continued)
HKFRS 16 “Leases” (“HKFRS 16”) (Continued)

As disclosed in note 2.5, currently the Group classifies
leases into operating leases. The Group enters into leases
as the lessee.

Once HKFRS 16 is adopted, lessees will no longer
distinguish between finance leases and operating leases.
Instead, subject to practical expedients, lessees will
account for all leases in a similar way to current finance
lease accounting, i.e. at the commencement date of the
lease, the lessee will recognise and measure a lease
liability at the present value of the minimum future lease
payments and will recognise a corresponding “right-
of-use” asset. After initial recognition of this asset and
liability, the lessee would recognise interest expense
accrued on the outstanding balance of the lease liability,
and the depreciation of the right-of-use asset, instead
of the current policy of recognising rental expenses
incurred under operating leases on a systematic basis
over the lease term. As a practical expedient, the lessee
can elect not to apply this accounting model to short-
term leases (i.e. where the lease term is 12 months or
less) and to leases of low-value assets, in which case the
rental expenses would continue to be recognised on a
systematic basis over the lease term.

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting as
a lessee of leases of properties and plant and machinery
which are currently classified as operating leases. The
application of the new accounting model is expected to
lead to an increase in both assets and liabilities and to
impact on the timing of the expense recognition in the
profit or loss over the period of the leases.

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited

e MR

For the year ended 30 June 2019
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Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED HKFRSs
(CONTINUED)

Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (Continued)
HKFRS 16 “Leases” (“HKFRS 16”) (Continued)

HKFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2019. As allowed by HKFRS 16, the Group
plans to use the practical expedient to grandfather the
previous assessment of which existing arrangements are,
or contain, leases. The Group will therefore apply the
new definition of a lease in HKFRS 16 only to contracts
that are entered into on or after the date of initial
application.

The Group plans to elect to use the modified
retrospective approach for the adoption of HKFRS 16
on 1 July 2019 and will recognise the cumulative effect
of initial application as an adjustment to the opening
balance of retained earnings at 1 July 2019. Comparative
information will not be restated. In addition, the Group
plans to elect the practical expedient for not applying the
new accounting model to short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets and not to perform a full review of
existing leases and apply HKFRS 16 only to new contracts.
Furthermore, the Group plans to use the practical
expedient to account for leases for which the lease term
ends within 12 months from the date of initial application
as short-term lease. As disclosed in note 22(b), as at 30
June 2019, the Group’s future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases amounted to
HK$8,841,000 for properties and plant and machinery.

Other than the recognition of lease liabilities and right-
of-use assets, the Group expects that the transition
adjustments to be made upon the initial adoption of
HKFRS 16 will not be material. However, the expected
changes in accounting policies as described above could
have a material impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements from 2020 onwards.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 30 June 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 2, management is
required to make estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experiences and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets within the next financial
year are discussed below:

Depreciation charges of property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the
assets, after taking into account the estimated residual
value, if any.

The Group regularly reviews the condition of property,
plant and equipment (i.e. whether it is available for use)
as well as the estimated useful lives of the assets in order
to determine the amount of depreciation expense to be
recorded during each financial year. The useful lives are
based on the Group’s historical experience with similar
assets and taking into account anticipated technological
changes. The depreciation expense for future periods is
adjusted if there are significant changes from previous
estimates. Carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment is set out in note 13.

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited
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Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Estimation of impairment of trade and other receivables
Since the initial adoption of HKFRS 9, the Group makes
allowances on items subjects to ECL (including trade
and other receivables) based on assumptions about risk
of default and ECL rates. The Group uses judgement in
making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the
impairment calculation, based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, existing market conditions as well
as forward-looking estimates at the end of each reporting
period as set out in note 2.9. When the actual future
cash flows are different from expected, such difference
will impact the carrying amount of trade receivables and
other items within the scope of ECL upon application
of HKFRS 9/other financial assets before application of
HKFRS 9 and credit losses in the periods in which such
estimate has been changed. Any increase or decrease in
impairment losses would affect profit or loss in future
periods. For the year ended 30 June 2019, the impairment
losses of HK$60,000 and HK$Nil were recognised on trade
receivables and other receivables, respectively. Carrying
amount of trade and other receivables is set out in note
16.

Before the adoption of HKFRS 9, impairment losses on
trade and other receivables were assessed and recognised
based on management’s regular review of ageing analysis
and evaluation of collectability. A considerable level of
judgement was exercised by management when assessing
the creditworthiness and past collection history of each
party. Any increase or decrease in impairment losses
would affect profit or loss in future periods. For the year
ended 30 June 2018, the impairment losses of HK$78,000
and HK$186,000 were recognised on trade receivables and
other receivables, respectively.

Write-down of inventories

The Group performs regular review of the carrying
amounts of inventories with reference to inventories
ageing analysis, historical consumption trends and
management judgement. Based on this review, write-
down of inventories will be made when the carrying
amounts of inventories decline below their estimated net
realisable value. Due to changes in market trends, actual
consumption may be different from estimation and profit
or loss could be affected by accuracy of this estimation.
Carrying amount of inventories is set out in note 15.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax

As 30 June 2019, the Group has recognised a deferred
tax liabilities of HK$1,543,000 (2018: HK$2,199,000). This
balance was measured using the average tax rates that
are expected to apply to the taxable profit of the periods
in which the temporary differences are expected to
reverse. The determination of the average tax rates that
are expected to apply depends, in turn, on an estimation
of (1) when the existing temporary differences will
reverse and (2) the amount of future taxable income in
those years. These estimates and the resulting average
tax rates will affect the amount of deferred tax asset/
liability recognised. Where the actual timing of reversal
of the temporary differences and/or the amount of future
taxable income differ from what is expected, a material
adjustment to the deferred tax balance may be necessary.
Details of deferred taxation are set out in note 19.

Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in jurisdictions
in which the Group operates. Significant judgement is
required in determining the provision for income taxes.
There are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in
the year in which such determination is made. Details of
income tax are set out in note 10.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

All of the Group’s revenue and operating profit are
generated from manufacturing and sale of apparel
labels and packaging printing products, net of any trade
discounts. Revenue are generally recognised at a point in
time when the customers obtain control of the promised
goods in the contract. The chief operating decision-
maker has been identified as the board of directors of
the Company. The board of directors regards the Group’s
business of manufacturing and sales of apparel labels and
packaging printing products as a whole to make decision
about resources allocation and reviews the overall results
of the Group. Accordingly, no business segment analysis
information is presented.

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

The amount of revenue recognised is as follows:

Sale of apparel labels and packaging
printing products

Geographical information

The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of the Group’s revenue. The
geographical location of revenue is based on the country
in which the customer is located.

Hong Kong (place of domicile) A (g b )
South Korea [0
Vietnam R

Taiwan B

United States e

China o g
Bangladesh EYIEA
Indonesia e

Sri Lanka W B R
Others oAt

All property, plant and equipment and deposits paid
for acquisition of property, plant and equipment of the
Group (“specified non-current assets”) are physically
located in Hong Kong.

Major customers

There is no single external customer contributed more
than 10% of the Group’s revenue for the years ended 30
June 2019 and 2018.

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 using the cumulative effect
transition method. Under this method, the comparative information is not
restated and was prepared in accordance with HKAS 18. See note 3.

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited
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— A
HK$’000
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HK$’000
Tt
(Note)
(BfFE)

T#x

82,170

106,864
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2019 2018
“2—hsE ZF—)\&
HK$’000 HK$'000
Tl T
(Note)

(BfHE)

19,251 26,284
13,264 19,985
12,422 20,313
9,829 11,382
7,504 5,807
5,970 7,009
2,893 770
2,382 4,276
2,113 1,324
6,542 9,714
82,170 106,864
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MERRME

For the year ended 30 June 2019
BEZFE—JEANAZTHIREE

6. OTHER INCOME 6. JLfBIA
2019 2018
“RUE SR )\E
HK$’000 H K$'O(£)
T#x T#T
Interest income AEHA 444 5
Commission income HaBA 215 914
Net exchange gain B ME S0 AR 802 609
Gain on disposal of property, e - BB B filas
plant and equipment - 100
Others HAth 64 214
1,525 1,842
PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 7. BRPAHBLwT A
The Group’s profit before income tax is arrived at after 7 55 H [ P 45 B0 T 46 A © 1 Bk R 5
charging: FIH

2019 2018
ZR U SR\
HK$’000 HK$'000

T#x Tt
(Note (a))
(F5E (@)

(@) Staff costs (including directors’ (@) B THA (453530 4

remuneration (note 8)) (note (b)) (FE8)) (Kl (b))
Salaries, allowances and other benefits  FF7#l ~ Htls & HABEF) 27,284 28,008
Contributions to defined 1) 8 BEFOR R Gl Atk
contribution retirement plans 939 1,012
28,223 29,020

(b) Other items (b) HAbXH
Auditor’s remuneration 1% B Rl 4 900 1,000
Cost of inventories (note (b)) 1B AR (K (b)) 53,430 62,622
Depreciation (note (b)) g (MH5E (b)) 3,573 2,614
Marketing services fee T 5578 8 s 2 5,475 6,742
Impairment loss on other receivables L th e Wk 38 3ol A M5 488 - 186
Impairment loss on trade receivables B 5 HE WG IE /A 9 {46

(note 16 (b)) (M 16 (b)) 60 78
Operating lease charges (note (b)): KRB AL A (BT (b)) ¢

- plant and machinery — W B 862 777

— premises L JE 3 8,132 7,847

Notes: P -

(@) The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 9 at 1 July 2018. Under (@) AEEOR T /N\ELH—HEKEMNGE
the transition methods chosen, comparative information is not restated. See TS R A ) AS 15 98 R A Vs T R R A 9
note 3. E o MBI R IR PE T B o MR S LR S

B o FLHFRES o

(b) For the year ended 30 June 2019, cost of inventories includes HK$15,614,000 by HREZF—NEAH=ZTHILEE > FHEK
(2018: HK$16,591,000) relating to staff costs, HK$2,521,000 (2018: HK$1,746,000) A 43 45 8L B TS A B 149 15,614,000 ¥ 06 (=
relating to depreciation and HK$5,424,000 (2018: HK$5,310,000) relating to Z— )4 116,591,000 6 7T ) ~ BLIT 85 4 B (4
operating lease charges, which amounts are also included in the respective 2,521,000 ¥ 76 ( — % — J\4E : 1,746,000 # 7T )
total amounts disclosed separately above for each of these types of T B AR 7 L% B A B 4 5,424,000 9 8 (%
expenses. —J\4E : 5,310,000 70 ) > T % 55 & 5 43

i?\i)’(@ﬂﬂh‘lﬁﬂ%ﬁ IR 40 P 2% E L S
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M ERRME

For the year ended 30 June 2019
BREZRIESNAZTHIREE

).

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S
EMOLUMENTS

8. Y B AT BRI

IR A RGBS 383 (1) R X A H]
(P A 25 EORE) BB SR 2 BR %
HIE R RATHAAR M AT -

Remuneration of the directors and chief executive officer
disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation, is as follows:

Salaries,
allowances
and benefits Retirement
inkind Discretionary scheme
Fees  #4 iy bonuses  contributions Total
weE  REDAG WREA R L Eig
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T
2019 Sk
Executive directors (note (a)): BHEF (W (@) «
Mr Samson Fung (Chairman and Rt (a7
Chief Executive Officer) fTBA#) - 2,052 88 18 2,158
Mr David Fung S - 2,052 88 18 2,158
Mr Fung Kar Chue Alexander RS - 1,152 88 18 1,258
Independent non-executive L DRy £
directors:
Dr Loke Yu PR 120 - - - 120
Ms Fung Po Yee ot 120 - - - 120
Ms Sung Ting Yee KR &t 120 - - - 120
360 5,256 264 54 5,934
2018 “E-0\E
Executive directors (note (a)): BHER (W (@) «
Mr Samson Fung (Chairman and BRI (R
Chief Executive Officer) fra##) - 1,920 60 18 1998
Mr David Fung P& Yt - 1,920 60 18 1998
Mr Fung Kar Chue Alexander P - 1,080 9 18 1,19
Independent non-executive BuanES
directors:
Dr Loke Yu BRI 120 - - - 120
Ms Fung Po Yee HAELL 120 - - - 120
Ms Sung Ting Yee K&t 120 - - - 120
360 4,920 218 54 5,552

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S

EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(@) Included in the directors’ remuneration were rental benefits for
accommodation provided to Mr Samson Fung and Mr David Fung totalling
HK$1,800,000 (2018: HK$1,680,000), represented by HK$900,000 (2018:
HK$840,000) to each of the directors during the year ended 30 June 2019.

(b) The remuneration of directors are determined by the remuneration
committee with regards to the performance of individuals and market
trends.

. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

The five highest paid individuals of the Group include
three (2018: three) directors for the year ended 30 June
2019, whose emoluments are disclosed in note 8. The
aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the remaining
two (2018: two) individuals are as follows:

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ~ #4 ~ Bl S B 35

Discretionary bonuses s ABAL
Retirement scheme contributions R PR ) Ak

The above individuals’ emoluments are within the
following bands:

T < 4 [

Emolument band
HK$Nil to HK$1,000,000

There was no arrangement during the years ended 30
June 2019 and 2018, under which a director or the five
highest paid individuals waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration, and no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the directors or the five highest paid individuals
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office.

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited

F#ITE 1,000,000 5T

e MEERRME

For the year ended 30 June 2019
BEZE—JEANA=ZTHIREE

. HEE AT WO AR 4 (4)

Wi

(@) BE_FNENA=ZTHILEE 4B
Ji1) U5 S S 2k T U S B s A S A AR B I
900,000 #7G (=% — )\ 4F : 840,000 ¥ 70) » &k
1,800,000 # 7T (=& — J\4F : 1,680,000 #IC)
EREIRGN &5 iU

(b) %i%mmﬁm%%@ﬁ?ﬁ}\iﬁ&ﬁﬂ%ﬁ%

9. I vy 6 T A A L2

BEZZ-NUEAH=1THILF
JEE > AR [ T 44 55 N L
SHER(CFE)NE =ZH) W
FEZHIM O Ak 8 1R o SR T I
(%) i) AL &40
FEHIT

2019 2018
ZRE DR\
HK$’000 HK$'000
T THT
1,369 1,304
215 218
36 36
1,620 1,558
Bl Ak 2 AT T SR

Number of individuals

A¥

2019 2018
T - Sy

2 2

RBEEZZ-NERZFN\ER
HE=+HIR4ERE > RSB AkN
ot I\ 58 JEE AR R AT o 2 R g B B
IF) 725 7l B A o M < L A 455 1) 7 e
Te] 0 2 o T4 d e 0 N & ©L AT
T <8 > DA AR 2 B A 4 T s
S A A L R B <l A PR
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Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited

10. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis
on profits arising in or derived from the jurisdictions in
which members of the Group are domiciled and operate.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and the BVI, the Group is not subject to any
income tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI.

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No.7) Bill 2017
(the “Bill”) which introduces the two-tiered profits tax
rates regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 March
2018 and was gazetted on the following day.

For the years ended 30 June 2019 and 2018, Hong Kong
Profits Tax is calculated in accordance with the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime. Under the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime, the first HK$2,000,000 of profits of the
qualifying corporation will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits
above HK$2,000,000 will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of
corporations not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax
rates regime will continue to be taxed at the rate of 16.5%.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR

For the year ended 30 June 2019
BEFJEANH =T HIREE

10. Prf388 (148 ) B 3¢

A 4 ) 760 A 45 11 5 o W) P A
R  Z w] R I A A B XAY iR
A > TR AR T B o

AR5 B 5 T 0y I o L T O 9 A
R e AR o AR 6 B 2
B 5 o V& LR B B AN AT AT P A58 o

WoZF—)NE=A=+—H  F#H
LB IRCQ0T7 BB (BET) (58
7BBRBIER) ([HAIER]) » &k
B B 5] AT AP 5B R B S o 3%
HPI R 2 — ) E=H =+ N\
H %8 ok B > W % H O & it
LFI%E

BEZZR-NERFE—)EARH
=+ H IR > Fr s RSB W A%
I A5 B0 23 B8 ) 515 o AR B8 W AR5
BLE ] > A & 2% I % 8.25%
i) i 2R Bt 152,000,000 ¥ JC i A B
ABLIE > K 42 16.5% B Bl X 8% 4l
2,000,000 % 7T DA b % A Z FLIH o A
A T 4R 5 5 2 o) i A 3 ¥ A
W 48 51452 16.5 % BIBLR AR o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MERRME

For the year ended 30 June 2019
BEZE—JEANA=ZTHIREE

10. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 10. BifdBe (mldg)BH 3% (%1)
Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss G e TR AR B At 2 W A R 2 B
and other comprehensive income represents: 5 :

2019 2018
ZRUiE &R )

HK$’000 HK$'000
T T#T

Current tax-Hong Kong Profits Tax P BLIE — A s A AL

— Provision for the year — ARAE FEHE A 438 1,564
— Over-provision in respect of — A B AR
prior year (32) (60)
406 1,504
Deferred tax (note 19) WEFERLIE (FRFE 19)
— (Reversal)/provision for the year — ARAEJE (B8] ) B A (656) 1,001
— Effect on opening deferred tax — PRIAAE PE AL A Y
balances arising from a change HHAERIEEBLIE 45 R
in tax rate during the year W - (146)
(656) 855
Total income tax (credit)/expense JIABE (Il dgE) B S Bl (250) 2,359
Reconciliation between accounting profit and tax B 5l e A B b0l B B R EH A 2 B IE
(credit)/expense at applicable tax rate is as follows: (1E14%), Bz Z IR SR I T -
2019 2018
“R—-hAE R )\
HK$’000 HK$’000
TH#x T
Profit before income tax W B 455 i ¥ ) 1,415 15,071
Tax at the applicable tax rate 90 L 35 2 B 159 2,218
Tax effect of non-taxable income PR ARBUR N 2 BB i B (68) -
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses A Al 118 B 37 2 Bl s 5 2 149 347
Effect on opening deferred tax PRI A4 JBE At < S5 Bl 4 4 )
balances arising from a change ESERUH G55 2 B
in tax rate during the year - (146)
Utilisation of tax losses previously B ) S i R R BB s 1R
not recognised (28) -
Over-provision in respect of prior year #f:4F BB HH M (32) (60)
Others oAt (430) -
Income tax (credit)/expense AL (148 ) B % (250) 2,359
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11. DIVIDENDS

(a) Dividends payable to equity owners of the Company
attributable to the year:

o

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M ERRME

For the year ended 30 June 2019
BEZE—IEANAZTHIREE

11. B &

(a) Ji B A4 iy A A 2 ] A 25 e
AANZBR

2019 2018
“FUE ZF U

HK$’000 HK$'000
T#x Tioo

Final dividend proposed after the end of A ¥ 5 B AR AR BER A BB,

the reporting period of HK5.00 cents BB @ B 5.00 Al

(2018: HK5.00 cents) per ordinary share (Z=F—)\4:5.00%A) 9,200 9,200

The final dividend proposed after the end of the
reporting period has not been recognised as a liability
as at 30 June 2019.

(b) Dividends payable to equity owners of the Company
attributable to the previous financial year, approved
and paid during the year:

TR A R AR 2 Sl e A1 B I
BN _FJUEANA =1 H R
rEfE -

(b) ik o 3 1 B B0 4 JE I I AR A7 36
b I 57 Ak 2 B AR 2 T e 2
HAANZIBE

2019 2018
—R—JUE B )4

HK$’000 HK$'000
T Ti#IT

Final dividend in respect of the previous  fi i i 7 B B 45 J 3f

financial year, approved and paid AR RN A 2
during the year of HK5.00 cents B @ B 5.00 A1l
(2018: HK$Nil) per ordinary share (ZF— )\ : W ExT)
Z AR e B 9,200 -
12. EARNINGS PER SHARE 12, A
The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share 9 1 L A e 4 9 R R AR AR AR

is based on the profit attributable to equity owners of
the Company of HK$1,665,000 (2018: HK$12,712,000) and
the weighted average of 184,000,000 (2018: 184,000,000)
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Diluted earnings per share for the years ended 30 June
2019 and 2018 equate the basic earnings per share as the
Group had no potential dilutive ordinary shares in issue
during the years ended 30 June 2019 and 2018.

v HE SR B A N HE AN 2Z %3 A 1,665,000
Wt (=& — \4E : 12,712,000 #7T)
Fe B84 Y 184,000,000 B (—F— )\
4F. 184,000,000 Ji% ) 35 48 B 14 Jon HEE ~F-
¥WEtE -

BEZZ-NERZFN\EARA
= H kAR B A B A R SR
T REREACEF > T AR R A
EZRCNER R )EANNA
=+ H kAR B 2 O B AT HL
BH BB -

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited ~ Annual Report 2019 4
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Cost

At 1 July 2017
Additions
Disposals

At 30 June 2018 and
1July 2018

Additions

Disposals

At 30 June 2019

Accumulated depreciation

At1July 2017

Charge for the year
Written back on disposals

At 30 June 2018 and
1)July 2018

Charge for the year
Written back on disposals

At 30 June 2019

Net book value
At 30 June 2019

At 30 June 2018

JA
PoZ—-tEEA—H
E
ik

REF-NEAA=TH
B=F—\ELH—H

wE

ik

REZJUEAA=TH

ity
RoZ—LELH—H
AGE L8

5 AR e

REF-NEAH=ZTH
R=ZF—)\HELH—H

A BT

B AR el

REZ-HEAH=TH

W i ¥4
REZJEAA=ZTH

REF-NEAA=TH

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited

e MEERRME

For the year ended 30 June 2019
BEZE—JEANAZTHIREE

13. W3¢ ~ W55 Bk il

Furniture
and
Plant and Motor fixtures Office

machinery  vehicles %% equipment Total
Wi B i A YO  BegE WASSHE O
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
Tt TWE Tt TR TWE
28,390 2,239 2,262 2,331 35,222
10,007 1,279 513 1,243 13,042
(498) (762) - 1) (1,261)
37,899 2,756 2,775 3,573 47,003
411 - 8 84 503
(541) - - (748) (1,289)
37,769 2,756 2,783 2,909 46,217
20,231 2,239 1,190 1,858 25,518
1,746 96 480 292 2,614
(498) (762) - (1) (1,261)
21,479 1,573 1,670 2,149 26,871
2,521 384 293 375 3,573
(541) - - (748) (1,289)
23,459 1,957 1,963 1,776 29,155
14,310 799 820 1,133 17,062
16,420 1,183 1,105 1,424 20,132
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14. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 30 June 2019
and 2018 are as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M ERRME

For the year ended 30 June 2019
BREZR-NEANAZTHIREE

14. AW E A "l 8%

BFEER DR NEAA
=+H > REMEAFEHNT

Equity interest
attributable
to the Group Principal activities

2019

ARMENRES  TEEH

2018

“EE R )\E

Place and date of
incorporation
Name of company and operations Paid up capital
R4k dEMRL R R A AU
Directly held HERA
Hang Sang (Siu Po) Holding ~ The BVI HK$10
Limited 8 October 2015 107
RBELTE
“F-hEFANH
Indirectly held ksl
Hang Sang (Siu Po) Press Hong Kong HK$100,000,
Company Limited 12 November 1999 100,000 #7C

(“Hang Sang (Siu Po)") B
A (JRAR) B AT R A —“JhEF—R+ZH

(M4 (kBR) 1)
AW Printing & Packaging Hong Kong HK$300,000,
Limited (“AW Printing”) 29 November 1994 300,000 %70
ik
—fupulEt—AZ A
15. INVENTORIES

100%

100%

100%

15. 1%

100%  Investment holding
BB

100% Manufacturing and sale of
apparel labels and packaging
printing products

%é&%%ﬂﬁ%’%ﬁ&ﬂ%fﬂﬁﬂ
=]
102)

100% Sale of apparel labels and
packaging printing products

Raw materials JE AR
Work in progress TER
Finished goods B i

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited ~ Annual Report 2019 4
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2019 2018
e
HK$’000 HK$000
Tt R
1,848 2,329
107 66
1,600 1,707
3,555 4,102
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

e MEERRME

For the year ended 30 June 2019
BEZE—JEANAZTHIREE

Trade receivables (note (a))
Less: loss allowance (note (b))

Deposits, prepayments and other e ~ BRI
receivables MBI

Deposits s

Prepayments AR

Other receivables, net of loss allowance  HAtBEGKIE » F1ER BB

W IR 2

Less: non-current portion

Deposits paid for acquisition of property, BB - KiE Xk O

Z3%4 (W (o)

plant and equipment (note (c))

Current portion RN

(@) Trade receivables
The Group’s credit terms granted to customers
generally ranged from 0 to 2 months from the date
of billing. Further details on the Group’s credit
policy are set out in note 24.3. The Group usually
reaches an agreement on the term of each payment
with the customer by taking into account of factors
such as, among other things, the credit history of
the customer, its liquidity position and the Group’s
working capital needs, which varies on a case-by-case
basis that requires the judgement and experience of
the management.

S5 MEWOSK I (i (a))
W A (B (b))

16. B 5y Ko I i HE MOk
2019 2018
e Sy i 3 =R )\
HK$’000 HK$/000
Tl Tt
5,739 10,428
(1,079) (1,019)
4,660 9,409
5,000 4612
1,788 2,195
555 1,422
7,343 8,229
(2,680) (2,255)
9,323 15,383

(a) B 5 MEWk

ACER B R 1 % P R i S
L0 Z 248 A fF A - A B AR
V5 R SR 2 — 2 A AU B
7E24.3 o ARG — R B P A
SRR 2 B i > D T R
(CHerp ) % P A A5 Bt sk ~ 1
B B Btk U B A 45 1 7
ST RENE > F3A B DL
AR > 7K S5 B A
B M A

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2019 SRR 1 51



152

).

A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M ERRME

For the year ended 30 June 2019
BREZRIESNAZTHIREE

16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 16. B 5 B Ui ME ek T (4)
(@) Trade receivables (Continued) (@) B 5 REGRIE (5)
The ageing analysis of trade receivables, based on the B85 H 0 2 51 B0 B s 1R 4 A
invoice date and net of loss allowance, is as follows: F B 2 JRE WOk JE 1) B B 43 A
T

2019 2018

“ZsE ZF2)\E

HK$’000 HK$’000

T#T T

Within 3 months 3HM 4,020 6,659

Over 3 months but within 6 months 33 MHH £6fEH N 556 2,588

Over 6 months but within 1year B 6 i H R 14K 65 110

Over 1year eI 14 19 52

4,660 9,409

(b) Loss allowance of trade receivables

(b) B 5% Mok 3 s B 388

The movement in the loss allowance of trade B 5 FE WK JE e R R =z s
T

receivables is as follows:

2019 2018
“E-hAE CFR )\
HK$’000 HK$'000
TH#x T
Balance at 1 July B H— H &R 1,019 941
Loss allowance recognised during 4N CLHERR G B
the year 60 78
Balance at 30 June A7 H =1 H W& 1,079 1,019
(c) Deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant and (c) JEEWIZE - W5 Bk i AT 2 3%
equipment &
At 30 June 2019, the amount represented deposits REF-NEANA=ZTH » %
paid for acquisition of plant and machinery for the 0 A A 5 Rl A AR
Group’s production facilities and office equipment. J Btk b DA B e 2 28 S T S A
The related capital commitments are set out in note 3% 4 o FH BB ARIEHR 55 6
22(a) to the consolidated financial statements. W B ML 22(a) o

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MERRME

For the year ended 30 June 2019
BEZE—JEANA=ZTHIREE

17. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 17. B RB&HEY
2019 2018
S =
HK$’000 HK$000
Tt T
Cash at banks and on hand SRAT M FIRBL 4 29,062 68,576
Short-term fixed deposits T HIAE R 40,000 -
69,062 68,576
The short-term fixed deposits earn interest rate of 2% EMEMERAR R 2% (%
(2018: Nil) per annum and have a maturity of three months —)\4F %) > B A =MA(CF
(2018: Nil). —)\AE ¢ ) o
18. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 18. B85 B A M A sk
2019 2018
—R-EE SF )\
HK$’000 HK$'000
T#x THT
Trade payables (note (a)) 51 5 BEA 3R I (M T a)) 2,858 3,886
Marketing services fee payables JEAS i 3557 4 b s 2 373 451
Receipt in advance (note (b)) TR (BT (b)) 634 334
Accruals and other payables JE it 2 % At 8 A 5 I 4,156 3,675
8,021 8,346
(@) Trade payables (a) B SHMEAT kB
Payment terms granted by suppliers ranged from 1 L RE RGP P AT Sk R & A B B
to 3 months from the invoice date of the relevant R B B3 A o
purchases.
The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables, DL F B Y 5 AT SRR A K
based on invoice date, at the end of the reporting BB [ 2 R AT
period:
2019 2018
T S i
HK$’000 HK$'000
T#x T
Within 3 months 3EHA A 2,788 3,885
Over 3 months but within 6 months &% 3 i H 2 6 il H 70 1
2,858 3,886

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2019 SRR 1 53
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M ERRME

For the year ended 30 June 2019
BEZE—IEANA=ZTHIREE

18. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED) 18. B 50 B S A A Kk 9K
(b) Receipt in advance (b) TBCKE
The amount represents the advanced payments AR B AR i 2 TR P
from customers for goods, which revenue will be TE OGRS I 7 T R RS £ T
recognised when the performance obligation was P BB A EAR R o
satisfied through the goods were transferred to the
customers.

2019
—EZ A

HK$’000
T#x

Revenue recognised during the year that
was included in the receipt in advance

AR R AR I Z
s

at the beginning of the year (334)
The Group's contracts with customers are for period A B 1] B 50 ] 2 B — 4 DA
of one year or less. The entire receipt in advance FeRZF-NEAA=ZTHZH
balance at 30 June 2019 would be recognised into WK LI I T — B B4 B A B R
revenue in the next financial year. As permitted under TWLRR o A A v B e A R ) 4R 15
HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to these WA ZAEDLT - 3 5 B 5 4 i &
unsatisfied contracts which have an original expected % AR JBAT HLJF € FAHAE I % — 4R
duration of one year or less is not disclosed. BT ZEHZRZHHE -

19. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 19. I HEBL £
The movement in the deferred tax liabilities is as follows: ESERUH A 2 BT

2019
U

HK$'000
T

Accelerated tax depreciation IR B I By
At the beginning of the reporting period #7514 2,199 1,344
Effect on opening deferred tax balances  PRIZAAF i i 3 52 il 42 47)

arising from a change BRI A R 2 B (FiHE10)

in tax rate during the year (note 10) - (146)
Recognised in profit or loss (note 10) CR R e (FEE10) (656) 1,001
At the end of the reporting period HoEHR 1,543 2,199
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has R IR > AR A R B A B E
unused tax losses of approximately HK$4,816,000 (2018: M 18 4 4,816,000 % 70 ( —~F— )\ 4 :
HK$4,983,000) available for offset against future profits. 4,983,000 % J¢ ) Bl I DA HK 8 A 5k i
The unrecognised tax losses have no expiry dates. No A o KRR IR B R AR A -
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of PP AR AR B A AR B A v B > R
those tax losses due to the unpredictability of future i 2 S T T 0 AR A B o

profit streams.

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited ~ Annual Report 2019 4
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MERRME

For the year ended 30 June 2019
BEZE—JEANA=ZTHIREE

20. CAPITAL AND RESERVES 20. A B i i
(a) Share capital (@) B
2019 2018
“E-hE “F)\E
No. of shares HK$'000 No. of shares HK$'000
St ¥ H T et #i A T#T
Authorised: kR
Atbeginningand atend of — AEHIRAEA BB IR
the year, at HK$0.01 per 0.01%7C
ordinary share 760,000,000 7,600 760,000,000 7,600
Issued and fully paid: AT RAE
Atbeginningand atend of  FHI RAERTRLER
the year, at HK$0.01 per 0.01%7T
ordinary share 184,000,000 1,840 184,000,000 1,840
All shares rank pari passu with the existing shares in P A B AT WY S A8 4% 7 T 34 B2 B 8%
all respects. 11 1By S W) SR A o
(b) Share premium (b) JBe £y v 1
The share premium represents the difference B4y Va5 g AAS A ) 1A J5E Al T {1 B
between the par value of the Company and proceeds BT AN 5] e Ay BT WO P 45k T
received from the issuance of the shares of the Z W28 > CHIBRBAR 317 B
Company, net of shares issuance costs and the AR R AR W) O 84T B A T B AR
difference between the nominal value of the share AT EREH R _F—H4F
capital issued by the Company and the aggregate +—H+=H %A A 7 K
of the net assets value of Hang Sang (Siu Po) and By R A B AR bl 2 EAH ([ E
A W Printing acquired by the Company pursuant AL 1) W i A (IR AR ) R A W
to the group reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) Printing Z ¥ & A FHE Z [A 1) 2
completed on 13 November 2015 in connection with °

the listing of the Company’s shares on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange.

(c) Capital reserve (c) EAGHH
Capital reserve of the Group represents the share I £ [ ) S A it A 8 T AL R AHLBR
capital of entities comprising the Group prior to the ANEFMPEE RAR R EHEA
Reorganisation and the reserves arising from the PGt

Reorganisation.

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2019 SRR 1 55
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For the year ended 30 June 2019
BEZE—IEANAZTHIREE

o’

21. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE  21. KA a2 MR E

COMPANY
2019 2018
“E-sE ZF)\E
HK$’000 HK$’000
T-#IC Tt
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES % K g
Non-current asset T By e
Investments in subsidiaries LY A R g < 22,994 22,994
Current assets o 8l 2 e
Other receivables JL At ek VL 221 252
Amounts due from subsidiaries JRE WAL o 2 Rk T 45,139 4,917
Cash and cash equivalents Bl BB &8 4,611 25,501
49,971 30,670
Current liabilities i £ 4%
Other payables At EA 3R 442 421
Net current assets Bl 49,529 30,249
Total assets less current liabilities 4% %y W% B £3 f% 72,523 53,243
Net assets ¥ Ui 72,523 53,243
EQUITY B %
Share capital %N 20(a) 1,840 1,840
Reserves (note) b5 (B ) 70,683 51,403
Total equity B2 B 72,523 53,243
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of HHEFGR T -LERA ST HHM
directors on 20 September 2019. e B R AET 3% o
Mr Fung Man Wai Samson Mr Fung Kar Chue Alexander
5 3R ek WA
Director Director
HF HF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MERRME

For the year ended 30 June 2019
BEZE—JEANAZTHIREE

21. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 21, ARZ w] 20 B5R 98 % (%)
COMPANY (CONTINUED)
Note: BiFsE ¢
The movement in the Company’s reserves is as follows: AN BIT :
Share premium Accumulated loss
BBy ik Ribis#
HK$'000 HK$'000
T T
At 1 July 2017 R-F—LELA—H 77,105 (23,793) 53,312
Loss and total comprehensive expense for
the year ARAE B AR e A St A - (1,909) (1,909)
At30 June 2018 and 1 July 2018 R \ERA=TH
K=F—)UELH—H 77,105 (25,702) 51,403
Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year ARAE S R K A T AR - 28,480 28,480
Transaction with owners: B NZAES) ¢
Final dividends in respect of previous year &Ik M B it 3 A Fof W4 i
declared and paid (note 11) Z AW B (BRE 1) - (9,200) (9,200)
At 30 June 2019 RERAEAN =T 77,105 (6,422) 70,683

At 30 June 2019, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to the equity owners of the
Company was HK$70,683,000 (2018: HK$51,403,000).

22. COMMITMENTS

(@) Capital commitments
Capital commitments of the Group outstanding as at
30 June 2019 not provided for are as follows:

Contracted for: CEL -
- Office equipment A
- Plant and machinery — W B A

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited

RF—NEANA=Z1TH oy
VR T A A B RE 25 G N B fols A AR
#470,683,000% J6( = F — J\4F :
51,403,000 #570) °

22. 7RkE
(a) BEARIE
R_F—NENH=ZTH » K48
B R FHEZ EARBEWT -

2019 2018

—F—-NUE —F—)\4FE

HK$’000 HK$'000

F#on FH#oo

301 282

- 134

301 416
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22. COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

(@) Capital commitments (Continued)
In November 2018, the Group has signed a purchase
agreement for an office equipment amounted
to HK$320,000. As at 30 June 2019, a deposit of
HK$160,000 was paid.

In March 2017, the Group has signed a purchase
agreement for an office equipment amounted
to HK$1,500,000. As at 30 June 2019, a deposit of
HK$1,359,000 was paid.

(b) Operating lease commitments
At the end of the reporting period, the total future
minimum lease payments payable by the Group
under non-cancellable operating leases are as
follows:

14
14 K 5N

Within 1 year
After 1 year but within 5 years

The Group leases a number of properties, and
items of plant and machinery under operating lease
arrangements which run for an initial period of 1 to
5 years (2018: 1 to 5 years), with an option to renew
the lease and renegotiate the terms at the expiry date
or at dates as mutually agreed between the Group
and respective lessors. None of the leases include
contingent rentals.

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited

o

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M ERRME

For the year ended 30 June 2019
BEZE—IEANAZTHIREE

22. 7R (%)

(@) BEAARYE ()
W T )\E+—H » REEH %K
T 1 B 320,000 #5 JC B 3 A 28 5%
e BREFE—EA
H=Z1H > REMCEMN%E
160,000 ¥#7C ©

PR —LEEH » AREMEERT
Ji# B 1,500,000 #5 JG Y I 2 = 3%
itk e BREF—NLEN
H=Z1H > KEMCEMNEE
1,359,000 #5 7T °

(b) FEERIZIRE
A5 B o BT A AR A W R 88

A8 LA FEASF A R SR B (A 4
T

2019 2018
“FE ZF NS
HK$’000 HK$'000
T#L Tt
7,039 8,233
1,802 8,675
8,841 16,908

AREMRBEEEMELMEST
YISk ~ W5 MRS > I 1 =S
(TR )1 BS54 > AR
2] H oA 45 18 524 B AL 5 B
i o B4 0 PR AL A R R
FURGRAK o % 55 FH A0 NG 40 455 Bl AR A
4o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MERRME

For the year ended 30 June 2019
BEZE—JEANAZTHIREE

23. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 23. WKBB TR 5
(i) Transactions with related companies (i) MBBARZRY
Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated [ 5B B 55 R e At 3 P Tk R

FOh o AR > AR ] B R I
CHEAYIEON |y E K

financial statements, during the year, the Group
entered into the following material related party
transactions with related companies:

2019 2018
ZEOUE ZFNE
HK$000 HK$'000
Ti#n T

Nature of transaction

ZHNR

Name of company

kA W%

Relationship

Karwin Corporation ~ Controlled by Mr Samson Fung,a  Rental expense paid for a
Limited controlling shareholder who is director’s quarter (note)
EHEAMRAT also a director of the Group YA EEEANHEER
M 86 S fEE R (Bt
(ARSI E S ) P 900 840
Super Champion Controlled by Mr David Fung, a Rental expense paid for a
Limited controlling shareholder who is director’s quarter (note)
fEEH AT also a director of the Group TN EEFEENMEER
9 P P RO S B e (Fh&E)
(AR ARG 3 ) Pl 900 840
Note: Wz :

SEAY R S A A B 2 3 DA A4
T L5 J3) I W 2 0 LAY B a2 PO TR S A

The rental expenses paid and/or payable for directors’ quarters were made
at the prices mutually agreed between the Group and the respective related
companies.

BEZZ-NILR-F—/)EAA=ZTHILSE
JE > bRl BRI 7 A 5 R i BRI AE 14A T
SRS A IR A AT B SRR B AR B o AR - %
SR Gy MR S S TR AR 14A 2 B AL
& o THH RS 14A.76 (1) RIE T Z (K5

For the years ended 30 June 2019 and 2018, the related party transactions
above constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. However those
transactions are exempt from the disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules as they are below the de minimis threshold under Rule
14A.76(1).

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2019 SRR 1 59



o

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M ERRME

For the year ended 30 June 2019
BEZE—IEANA=ZTHIREE

A

23. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

23. TK Bl Bk 75 28 Bh (4)

(i) BZEFPA HW 4
AR A BB AR
SCAY T S O Bk 8 B8R ) J2 i
AT BLE ZKIEI T

(ii) Key management personnel remuneration
Key management personnel of the Group, including
amounts paid to the directors as disclosed in note 8§,
and senior management, is as follows:

2019 2018
L

=R )\
HK$’000
Tt

HK$000
T#x

Salaries, allowances and other

benefits B ~ T R AT 8,784 8,336
Discretionary bonuses B ABAL 777 752
Retirement benefit costs BRI A

- defined contribution plan — R kT 178 178

9,739 9,266

bR A AR AR Y T TOAS | (R
Fik7(@a)) °

Bk b 3C i 48 % 2 B 1B O 22 S A >
JEAR W) By Jovp— 07 AR A T R
Bl SR 2y W) A B 4 A o
L o T B AT TR 2R LR A4
JEAR B4 AT AT I ] A A5 2 LAt T
KREE Ty ~ B4

Total remuneration above is included in ‘staff costs’
(see note 7(a)).

Other than the related party transactions disclosed
above, no other transaction, arrangement or contract
of significance to which the Company was a party and
in which a director of the Company or a connected
entity of the director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE 24 B . Be 4% B K A e ffiwl
MEASUREMENTS

160

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited

The Group is exposed to financial risks through its use of
financial instruments in its ordinary course of operations.
The financial risks include foreign currency risk, credit
risk, interest rate risk and liquidity risk. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and

AL Y H OB LA b 4t
T L i A B R B o B S L B A
15 41 FEE R B ~ A5 B R B~ A 2L B
K B 4 B o A A R B
LR > DA AR B BRI A A
it 98 H i o AN 4 ) v e R

effective manner. The most significant financial risk to s IS T S
which the Group is exposed as discussed below.
74 5 1) < i T L T 38 2 Je i Y

There has been no change to the types of the Group’s
exposure in respect of financial instruments or the
manner in which it manages and measures the risks.

FCAE B et fah Il iz 0 Xl Sl 8 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MERRME

For the year ended 30 June 2019
BEZE—JEANA=ZTHIREE

24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED)

24. Y085 B 4 B R 4 Fefh ik (410

24.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities 24.1 il A K £ 4 8
The carrying amounts presented in the consolidated A M BHR PR AR HE S T
statement of financial position relate to the following B xR A B R A
categories of financial assets and financial liabilities: B

30 June 2019

1July 2018 30 June 2018
A

“F-N\F
AA=TH
HK$'000
Tt

tH—H
HK$'000
THxL

HK$'000
THxL

Financial assets SMEE

Financial assets at amortised cost — FHHERIEA71 2 192 7

—Trade and other receivables — B 5 e oAt e Wik B 7,535 13,188 -

- Cash and cash equivalents - B4 RBI&51E 69,062 68,576 -

Loans and receivables B RIEW S

- Trade and other receivables — B 5 B I b Wik oE - - 13,188

- Cash and cash equivalents —-Ble kB &EHY - - 68,576
76,597 81,764 81,764

Financial liabilities ECEEL

Financial liabilities measured HAHR AT 1Y

at amortised cost BRA R
- Trade and other payables — B 5 B A e 7,387 8,012 8,012
24.2 Foreign currency risk 24.2 A RE J B

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that the fair A1 M JL i i < i TR 2 A R R

value or future cash flows of a financial instrument AR B 4 i 2 R AP s B R A% B

will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange e by 2 Jm g o AL B 7R 52 2 A E

rate. The Group’s exposures to foreign currency risk JE B ok B 4 I B e

arise from its cash and cash equivalents, trade and B 5 B oAt BE WK T DL I ' 5 B

FoAt REAT K > BERESETE([ R
JC ) EHE © ST IER S AR
5 Z RURASEE 2 AR 2 e
W o

other receivables and trade and other payables, which
are primarily denominated in United States dollars
(“USD”). USD is not the functional currency of the
companies comprising the Group to which these
transactions relate.
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24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED)

24.2 Foreign currency risk (Continued)
Foreign currency denominated financial assets and
liabilities, translated into HK$ at the closing rates, are
as follows:

o

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M ERRME

For the year ended 30 June 2019
BEZZNESAZTHIREE

24. Y85 B 4 B R 4y Fe ik (40

Cash and cash equivalents Bl KB E Y
Trade and other receivables B 5 B A RN
AKIH
Trade and other payables B 5 B A KE AT
AKIH
Net exposure arising from T 0 B S A
recognised assets and liabilities PEAE 2 1 B

As HK$ is pegged to USD, the management does not
expect any significant movements in the USD/HK$
exchange rate and considers the Group does not
expose to significant currency risk.

The Group does not hedge its foreign currency risks
with USD as the foreign exchange rate between HK$
and USD is controlled within a tight range and the
Group is not exposed to material foreign currency
risk, therefore, no sensitivity analysis is presented.
Permanent changes in foreign exchange rates would
have an impact on consolidated financial statements.

24.2 A B o gt ()
VA4 o B An e W T B SR 4 B 4
W e E K AEDT -
2019 2018
e Sy (K 2 —F—)\4
UsD USD
X6 "
HKS$’000 HK$000
T T
23,084 37,669
5,630 10,716
(494) (930)
28,220 47,455

HR M C B ST b8l > 45 B T
WISETC, W T HE R A A A T
REEE > W Ry A 45 1 S 48 7K
B JEL B

HA HE TG 5t R0 . I 2% 3% 42 il if2
A TP A ik e Bl LA 455 P S e 7
R HE JEL B > AR 45 8 i 48 g 5 0
S LA U o PR JE 2 5
R 3T o B IE 2R 2 A 5
gﬂﬁ%%%ﬁﬁa‘%ﬁ%ﬁﬁi%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR

For the year ended 30 June 2019
BEZFJUEAH =+ HILEE

24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED)

24 W5 e B 4% B R 2 At o (48

24.3 Credit risk 24.3 1 2 MR BS

Credit risk relates to the risk that the counterparty
to a financial instrument would fail to discharge
its obligations under the terms of the financial
instrument and cause a financial loss to the
Group. The Group’s exposure to credit risk mainly
arises from granting credit to customers in the
ordinary course of its operations and from its
investing activities. The credit risks on cash and
cash equivalents are considered to be insignificant
because the counterparties are major banks located
in Hong Kong with high credit ratings.

The Group does not provide any guarantees which
would expose the Group to credit risk. The Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk for the components
of the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 30 June 2019 and 2018 is the carrying amounts as
disclosed in note 24.1.

At 30 June 2019, 35.1% (2018: 43.3%) of the total trade
receivables was due from the Group’s five largest
customers.

Policy applicable from 1 July 2018

The Group’s policy is to deal only with credit worthy
counterparties. Credit terms are granted to new
customers after a credit worthiness assessment by
the credit control department. When considered
appropriate, customers may be requested to provide
proof as to their financial position. Where available at
reasonable cost, external credit ratings and/or reports
on customers are obtained and used. Customers who
are not considered creditworthy are required to pay
in advance or on delivery of goods. Payment record of
customers is closely monitored. It is not the Group’s
policy to request collateral from its customers.

A B B i <k LAY 32 5
7 A R b TR B ek s AT 3T
BAE » W BB B S5 B i
B LBy o A 4 B 4 £ D
B 2 A B HIE W R R AR
BT EFREE L AERE) -
Bl 4 B B4 A A £ B IR B A
AT K > N2 5 FJ5
R AR W ELA R B AR £
ZERAT ©

AR ] Si R A A 45 L B 4 £ B
JRBE S BT AT DR o P ZF T
FERZFENA=ZTH > K
4 B gt A 5 B 85 IR0 A ARG 43
T I P 5 o A 5 Bt 2 R i 24,1
Fir 10 % A BR T

R_Z—NEANA=ZTH "5
WK TE AR AR 35.1% ( —F— )\
41 43.3%) B ERORSEE HoRE
K o

gl'b:;?#/( - H — H &I
A5 B FHy BORE  fHE BELAS P LB
RAHEFILS - BTHEFMN
5 SEI AL AR B B A P 45 WA
Bz o WBERHIT > HP K
BT ORI A B R DL A i
SO o AR EURAT » AR E
BUR &5 B SR A5 BT AR & Bk
Wtk o BB M5 HAER % P A
FEAT SR SO 22 A 8 b Tk
&P KR SR D o A
A5 M P BUR AN 2R % P LA

=]
AR °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 30 June 2019
BEZFIEANH =T HILEE

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited

24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED)

24.3 Credit risk (Continued)

Policy applicable from 1 July 2018 (Continued)

In addition, as set out in note 2.9, the Group assesses
ECL under HKFRS 9 on trade receivables based on
provision matrix, the ECL rates are based on the
payment profile for sales in the past 24 months as well
as the corresponding historical credit losses during
that period. The historical rates are adjusted to reflect
current and forward-looking macroeconomic factors
affecting the customer’s ability to settle the amount
outstanding. At the end of each reporting period, the
historical default rates are updated and changes in
the forward-looking estimates are analysed. However
given the short period exposed to credit risk, the
impact of these macroeconomic factors has not been
considered significant within the reporting period.

Trade receivables are written off (i.e. derecognised)
when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.
Indicators that there is no reasonable expectation
of recovery include, amongst others, the failure of a
debtor to engage in a repayment plan with the Group.

As at 30 June 2019, the Group has adopted ECL rate
of 0.3% to 5.2% (1 July 2018: 0.3% to 3.4%) for trade
receivables that are current or past due for within 1
year and ECL rate of 100% (1 July 2018: 100%) for trade
receivables that are past due for more than 1 year.

Other financial assets at amortised cost include other
receivables and deposits (excluding deposits paid
for acquisition of property, plant and equipment)
and cash and cash equivalents. In order to minimise
the credit risk, the management makes periodic
collective and individual assessment on their
recoverability based on historical settlement records,
past experience and available forward-looking
information. Other monitoring procedures are in
place to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts.

24 W e B 4% B R 2 et o (58

24.3 5 £ L gt (4)

HZ=F—/NE-LH—HEHH
B (48

b > W EEE2.9 R > AXEEH
R 7 94 B s i A ) 5 o B
i 9% A S 5 ) Ok T AR
T SR > TG S EX
To R AR 248 A B BB Y
Ak 3 0 DA B % 11 D 4 A R
S EEE o BRRE T
VAR W5 B0 5 46k SR A R T
877 2 A B i B e 2 AR
o NBHEBIAR > BRELR
O 550 K AT BE PR A 5 r s B O
AT © SR > 887 i B A B
Wi B PR e > N R R LR
PR R BRR R WAEK -

0 5 MM I A S8 £ B[] 1)
IR S (A% IR ) o S BR [E]
T A PR 3R A (3L P (35 ) 805
IR BB SEAC SR [ 5T Sk A o

RoE—HEANA=ZTH » A%
R B o B A R — R 2 B
5 FEWK TE$% 4 0.3% 2. 5.2% 1)
HHEEERE(R 2 — )\4F
LH—H :03%%3.4%) Kl
17— 2 B 5 E G TE AR A
100% MEHIE EBEHERE(A %
—)J4ELH—H :100%) °

e H B AR I A At R
A 355 Lt M R T S 4 4 (R
TR - W5 Bl AT
%) RBERBEEHY - K
A7 B2 B dse M b > A5 B AR 4%
JRE S A RO 8% ~ A A U S T
5 8 BT B A SR 380 45 9 T Wi ]
A 3G ) R ) Ay o L
HAbEE PR R > DLHEOR AT R IR
AT By W A 5
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 30 June 2019
BEZEIEAHZHILEE

24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED)

24. S5 B A P B 2 FefE it ik (4)

24.3 Credit risk (Continued) 24.3 {5 £ L Bgi (44
Policy applicable from 1 July 2018 (Continued) HZ=F—/NE-LH—HEHH
R ()

The Group measures the loss allowance of other
receivables equal to 12-month ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition.

After the management assessment of recoverability
and on-going business relationship, the management
is of opinion that there is no significant increase
in credit risk in other receivables and deposits
(excluding deposits paid for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment) as the risk of default is low after
considering the factors as set out in note 2.9.

Policy applicable prior to 1 July 2018

Impairment of trade and other receivables was
assessed based on the incurred loss model. Individual
receivables which were known to be uncollectible
were written off by reducing the carrying amount
directly. The trade and other receivables were
assessed collectively to determine whether there
was objective evidence that an impairment had
been incurred but not yet been identified. For these
receivables the estimated impairment losses were
recognised in a separate provision for impairment.

24.4 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value
or cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in the market interest rates.
The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from
bank balances. The exposure to interest rates for
the Group’s short-term fixed deposits is considered
immaterial. The Group therefore does not have
significant exposure to interest rate risk for the years
ended 30 June 2019 and 2018.

AR AR S 1248 A A B
e AR Rt WAk L e L 8%
i > BRIE B 0025 il DA SR AR B
LASNE DI

T B A AT WA R R A S
BB AR > AR > HARE
eV E e AR NIE e Y]
3~ W Kl DA IR A ) B fE
5, o S KW 38 > PR R
. PR i 2.9 P IR R AR R Ay o
AR B,

ﬁ}%?#ﬂ E-CH — H i il 1y
50 B L R WO Y AR 8 L
M s IR AT R A o TR T
WA Ity 7 ) WALk L 708 308 4
TR i L Yy S - B 5 S
i E ORI AT SR BB R A > DL
TE S A7 A T A AE W AR Y
WAL Z BB R o Bla% % EWGHRIH
T 55 > Al ol s TR Al P BE
TR TR

24.4 ) 3 Jl By

) 23 o o BEL < i T LA AL R
B i s o PR i B A S B A
T 35 B B JE B A B A SR T
R B AR H ST AR o AR
VR R B0 2 B0 A s 2 A 5 o Sl A
HA AEEEERBEE R
—NAERZZ)FERH=1H
kA R S 48 TR AR SRR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR

For the year ended 30 June 2019
BEZFENEAHZHILER

24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE

25.

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited

MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED)

24.5 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with its
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash
or another financial asset. The Group is exposed to
liquidity risk in respect of settlement of trade and
other payables, and also in respect of its cash flow
management.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserve of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and longer term.

At 30 June 2019 and 2018, the Group’s remaining
contractual maturities for its financial liabilities will
be either on demand or within one year. The carrying
amounts of its financial liabilities approximate their
contractual undiscounted cash flows.

24.6 Fair value estimation

Financial instruments carried at cost or amortised
cost were not materially different from their fair
values at 30 June 2019 and 2018 due to the short-term
maturities.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to (i) safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, so that it continues to provide returns
and benefits for its stakeholders, (ii) support the Group’s
stability and growth, and (iii) provide capital for the
purpose of strengthening the Group’s risk management
capability.

24. S5 B A P B 2 FefE it ik (4)

24.5 Ui B ¥ 4 M Bs

) B e A A I 5
A7 BRI 38388 22 Ao B 4 i Ll <
B A LAY 4 i £ AR B A L
B o A5 i i o A S 0
JFC At B ARk K L 5 B 5 < L e
WA B G iEAE B o

AR ) 2 B SRR i B e LR
B T Z DA R AR B BB A5
B 4o fih i DA M AE H77 J00 J =e
WZmBEeHE -

BB NER R )EARNA
= A S £ A5 B
B AR H S 2 PR EOR R — 4
o L4l £ A Y i i B
IR B BIB it A o

24.6 A feffiwt it

LI N EIR > 358 A Sk
JR AR B B F 4 il L S S
PR AR -

25. EAGE B

A A PR R H B () PR
B A 5% [ A7 BE O 5 A RS R > MR
A AR LA 0 3 BB [T S S P 25
(i) SCHRFAEE M Z B S B I J% (i) $2
PEEA I IRASR ) Z R BT B RE )
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

25. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure
and shareholders returns, taking into consideration
the future capital requirements of the Group and
capital efficiency, prevailing and projected profitability,
projected operating cash flows, projected capital
expenditures and projected strategic investment
opportunities. The Group currently does not adopt any
formal dividend policy. The Group’s capital management
objectives, policies or processes were unchanged during
the year ended 30 June 2019.

The Group is not subject to any externally imposed
capital requirements.

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited

e MEERRME

For the year ended 30 June 2019
BEZFR-IEASAZTHILEE

25. WA BIL (%)

74 4R R A 00 b e A B A 2
W > g SR B dp BEAE Y B AN K
JBEAR BTt 5 AR > ACKRE 5 R A I
Al AEE PR EART REE
ARGE ~ HE R Z BARE ) -
Nz BB e - AR
ST I M A M 4 o AR
B 14 R PR A8 AT o 1 BB B -
AL B 2 B E A - BORERE
FREZE-F-NLFEAA=ZTHIL
AR A o

ACHR ) A % A0S B G R AR R RE i
fi o
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Financial Summary
MGIHE

2019
= s
HK$'000

T#L

2018
—F-)N\F
HK$'000
F#soe

2016

e
HK$'000
TitE

2015
—E—HE
HK$'000
F#T
(Note)
(Fh3E)

—F Lk
HK$'000
T

Results £

Year ended 30 June BEANHZ1HIR4ERE

Revenue Wets 82,170 106,864 105,223 118,194 133,097
Profit before income tax 5 ft 584 il i A1) 1,415 15,071 13,389 7,850 32,900
Income tax credit/ P B lal 4 (B 52 )

(expense) 250 (2,359) (2,719) (4,692) (5,428)
Profit for the year ARAE BE S 1,665 12,712 10,670 3,158 27,472
Assets and liabilities Vot &=L
As at 30 June RAA=1+H
Total assets W e AR 102,990 111,506 100,561 95,538 77,796
Total liabilities B H (9,564) (10,545) (12,312) (17,959) (29,326)
Net assets B A 93,426 100,961 88,249 77,579 48,470
Note: P -

The results and summary of assets and liabilities for the year
ended 30 June 2015 which were extracted from the Company’s
prospectus dated 30 April 2016 have been prepared on a
combined basis to indicate the results of the Group as if the
Group structure, at the time the Company’s shares were
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, had been in
existence throughout those years.
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